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Chairman’s Statement

TEHRESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report
of China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
a total revenue of approximately RMB3,225.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 66.1% compared
with the year ended 31 December 2019. It was mainly due
to the increase of revenue in the property sales. The profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB420.5
million compared with a profit of approximately RMB482.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Basic earnings
per share was RMB8.27 cents (2019: RMB9.70 cents). The
contracted property sales of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB4,466.8 million with
contracted gross floor area (“GFA") of approximately 418,359
square meters (“sq.m”), representing an increase of 40.8% in
contracted sales and 31.9% in contracted GFA in comparison
with the year ended 31 December 2019.

REVIEW OF THE PERIOD

During the reporting period, the Group’s business had
substantially strengthened and increased, indicated and
evidenced by significant improvement of contracted sales
and total revenue results. The Group had disposed its hotel
business during the year to focus on its core businesses, being
property development and investment. The Group continues to
explore different channels to obtain and acquire development
projects in different regions for the continual growth and
enhanced profitability of its operation.

The Group’s operation and expansion have incredibly benefited
from the solid foundation as a result of the very substantial
acquisition completed in January 2019, and the Board is of the
view that this foundation will continue to support the Group'’s
strategic direction and future growth.
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PROSPECTS

With the easing situation of COVID-19 pandemic and the
prompt recovery of China’s economy, the Group is optimistic
about the prosperity and healthiness of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") property market in the long run. The
management will continue to actively look for investment
opportunities in relation to the real estate market in the PRC
and maintain a policy of replenishing our land bank selectively
and continuously, so as to enhance our overall competitiveness
and lay a solid foundation for the Group’s long term
development. The management believes that the Group is
well-poised for the challenges ahead and is determined to
strive for higher returns.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our valued
customers, suppliers and business associates for their
invaluable contributions and support. | also want to express
my gratitude to our management team and all staff of the
Group for their hard work during the year under review. Last
but not least, | am most grateful to our shareholders for their
continuous support and confidence.

Guo Jiadi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 19 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DN

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
a total revenue of approximately RMB3,225.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,283.5 million
compared with the year ended 31 December 2019.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB420.5 million as compared with profit of approximately
RMB482.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Basic
earnings per share was RMB8.27 cents (2019: RMB9.70 cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in property development,
and holding of property for investment and rental purpose.
The Group has ceased to carry on hotel operations since 31
December 2019.

Property development

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 18 property projects
under development which are situated in different cities in
the PRC and key cities included Shanghai, Fuzhou, and Xian.
The Group primarily focuses on the development of residential
properties, as well as residential and commercial complex
properties with product types including apartments, offices,
retail shops and villas, etc.

Contracted property sales

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group achieved
contracted sales of approximately RMB4,466.8 million with
contracted GFA of approximately 418,359 sqg.m, representing
an increase of 40.8% in contracted sales and 31.9% in
contracted GFA in comparison with the year ended 31
December 2019. Although the Group’s pre-sale and marketing
activities were interrupted by the COVID-19 epidemic during
the first quarter of 2020, those activities resumed in second
quarter of 2020. The increase in contracted sales is mainly
contributed from the new projects launched for pre-sales after
March 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

=5 =3 =4 aN
EEEFNWRER DN
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥ OEE s
Contracted property sales (continued) BHRYHEEE (&)
The table below illustrates the contracted sales (stated before TRIWRAEBAHEEZE_E_FTF+ A
the deduction of applicable taxes) achieved by the Group for =+ BIUEFEZAXHEEEE (K EA
the year ended 31 December 2020: TIERT) -
Percentage
of total
Contracted Contracted Average selling contracted
sales GFA price sales  Group interest
AHHE rEE
ANHESE ANBBREER AHTHER ag B
Property projects Type RMB'000 (sq.m.) RMB/sq/m % %
ESEE :hid ARBTR (FHK) AR%/EHK Al Bat
Fujian Province
)
Sand| Fengdap Yazhu Rpsidential 1,347,625 88,945 15,133 30.2 100
SEAM RS iz
Sandi Yungu Fengdan Residential 779,232 76,460 10,191 174 51
“HEARRN FE
Wt%whan Sandi New Times Square  Residential 374,140 21,317 13,696 8.4 60
BHERES ff®
Sandi Yasong Fengdan Garden Residential 352,787 23,369 15,096 7.9 100
“HEEENTE £
Shaanxi Province
REE
Sandi Century New City Residential/Commercial 511,511 64,478 7,348 1.5 100
=it tE/E¥
Sandi Jinyu Gaoxin Residential/Commercial 233,928 46,732 5,006 52 100
SR kx/B%
Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian  Residential/Commercial 205,104 6,047 20,502 4.6 100
Sandi
FZ =i o fT A Fx/H%
Shanghai
Lt
Sandi Manhattan Commercial 182,842 5,497 33,264 4.1 100
SHERE [EES
Others Rgesjdentia\l/Commercial 479,679 79,514 5,882 10.7
Hth Fx/B%
Rﬁi 4,466,848 418,359 10,360 100.0
Attributable to the Group 3,826,214 357,199
AEEEG

B =R ARAF
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Management Discussion

EEENWK DN

and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EKERE e

Contracted property sales (continued) BHRYHEEE (&)

Notes: TR

(i) Contracted sales and the calculation of average selling price are (i) AAEESBELTEHEBNTERENEK

kR & 5B, R ED R E M 0 IE 2 85

SR E

based on the sales revenue before the deduction of business/
value-added tax and other surcharges/taxes.

FEREFEMNSOHERREEEmE
TEREANHEREEEE R THIERE

(i) Contracted sales and GFA attributable to the car parking spaces (ii)
are excluded in the contracted GFA and average selling price

calculation. g
Property under development BRE Y

TR AEBER _ZE_EF+_HA
—t—BZEFEWEERIER:

The table below summaries the major property development
projects of the Group as at 31 December 2020:

Completed
BRI
Expected Planned GFA
completion Saleable GFA GFA available GFA under for future
dates Site area  delivered/pre-sold for sale development development  Group's interest
BRH/
Rt RETHE mHnE BRY BREE r5E
TIEH THER BEEER BEZER BREER BEZER i
Property projects sq.m. sq.m sg.m sq.m sq.m. %
N=ER Tk SR SN Fh* SN Bl
Fujian Province
3
Sandi Fengdan Yazhu 2022 58,169 - - 136,815 - 100
SRS
Sandi Jiangshan Waterfront 2021 310,176 10,525 - 84,424 40,086 100
SETILKE
Sandi Jinyu Yunjing 2023 46,719 - - 96,144 17,386 100
SHEHER
Sandi Xishanyuan 2021 177,010 - - 96,449 - 100
Z@ELk
Sandi Yasong Fengdan Garden 2022 38,539 - - 94,616 - 100
SERBEATER
Sandi Yungu Fengdan 2023 57,813 - - 115,772 - 51
SHEARA
Sandi Yungitai 2022 60,928 - - - 96,947 100
“EERR
Wuyishan Sandi New Times Square 2022 168,669 - - 157,823 - 60

RRUZEHBRES
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥XKOEE &)
Property under development (continued) BERYE ()
Completed
BRI
Expected Planned GFA
completion Saleable GFA GFA available GFA under for future
dates Site area  delivered/pre-sold for sale development development  Group's interest
Bxft/ %
Rt RETHE A& BEY BRAE rEE
RIEHR THER BREER ARZER BREER BREER i
Property projects sq.m. sq.m sq.m sq.m sq.m. %
EEY:] FHK FhK ThK FHK THK Bl
Shaanxi Province
REE
Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi 2022 124,304 191,815 67,919 169,921 - 100
Bx =i e d T EEE A
Sandi Bahe Yihao 2024 134,723 - - - 243,363 100
SHEIER
Sandi Century New City 2023 169,923 880,845 18,556 239,954 36,964 100
St Ry,
Sandi Jinyu Bowan 2023 59,789 - - 65,563 - 51
Y e acki)
Sandi Jinyunfu 2025 40,592 - - 152,221 - 100
ZHRTH
Sandi Jinyu Gaoxin 2023 65,157 - - 178,508 - 100
S@eEEn
Sandi Yunding Fengdan 2022 52,870 - - 133,359 - 100
=RERES
Shanghai
i
Sandi Manhattan 2021 104,251 94,048 16,931 77,698 - 100
SHERE
Zhejiang Province
HIA
Sandi Fengdan Yaju 2023 64,743 - - 108,427 37,252 100
SEERER
Jilin Province
EHE
Shouchuang International Plaza 2021 30,313 125,742 1,980 12,922 - 51
ELELS 3
Total 1,764,688 1,302,975 105,386 1,920,616 471,998
@
Attributable to the Group 1,624,742 1,241,362 104,416 1,762,300 471,998
REEEE

HE=HERERAR 2020F 9




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property under development (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The table above includes properties for which the Group has
obtained the relevant land use rights certificate(s) but has not
obtained the requisite construction permits or the Group has
received the confirmation letter on bidding of granting land use
rights but in progress to obtain the land use right certificate(s).
The figures for “GFA available for sale”, “GFA under
development” and “Planned GFA for future development”
are based on figures provided in the relevant governmental
documents, such as the property ownership certificates, the
construction work planning permits, the pre-sale permits,
the construction land planning permits or the land use rights
certificate. The categories of information are based on our
internal records.

The figures of “Saleable GFA pre-sold” and “GFA available
for sale” include saleable GFA of car parks lot; the figures
of “GFA under development” and “Planned GFA for future
development” also include non-saleable GFA such as ancillary
area.

“GFA available for sale” and “GFA under development” and
“Planned GFA for future development” are derived from the
Group’s internal records and estimates.

1 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) X ERE (e)

Property under development (continued) BEAYE(E)

The following section provides further details of the UTHDIREAEBEFTESERZIBER 2R
development progress of major ongoing projects of the Group. EE IS

1) Sandi Yungu Fengdan 1) ZHEAEA

Sandi Yungu Fengdan is located in Wuyi New District of —HMEAMAURNEEREEETESE
Nanping City, Fujian Province with a total site area of TR A E B 457,813 F Ko
approximately 57,813 sq.m. It is planned to be developed HBYREARKZEEEWE F8H
into low-rise apartment buildings which is scheduled to RoCE-=FFRT-ZBBHEER_Z
be completed by 2023. The project has been launched —_EFRARKRBEE-HE_T_F
for pre-sales in May 2020. The contracted sales amount F+_A=+T—"HILFE 8544
of approximately RMB779.2 million were recorded during sy E B4 A R#£779,200,0007T ©

the year ended 31 December 2020.

HE=aZERARAE 20205 8 1 1




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property under development (continued)

ES - IE1-CRE )
BREBYE (B)

2)  Sandi Century New City

Sandi Century New City is located in Jintai district,
Baoji City, Shaanxi Province, involving a site area of
169,923 sg.m planned for residential and commercial
development of which 899,401 sgq.m GFA was completed
and 276,918 sq.m GFA is under construction which
is expected to be completed in 2023. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the contracted sales amount
of approximately RMB511.5 million was achieved.

2)

A AD R
OB EEET S A
& 5 ETE A169,923F /K Kt
FEMEEERE  Hd899,401F /K
ZHESEEBED R I N276,918F 75
KIEFEERT EHER -_ZE-_=4F
T -BE—_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—
HEFE BEERANEHEBNAR
#511,500,0007T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥£FEOEE(#)

Property under development (continued) RERYE ()

3)  Wuyishan Sandi New Times Square 3)

The project is situated at 4 kilometres west of Da Hong
Pao Scenic Area (a PRC National 4A-level scenic spot),
Wuyishan City, Fujian Province, with a total site area of
168,669 sg.m, and is planned to develop into low-density
residential properties with a commercial complex.

Construction work commenced in July 2018 and the
project is expected to be completed in 2022. The first and
second phases of residential properties were launched for
pre-sales following its sales permit granted in November
2018 and contracted sales amount of approximately
RMB374.1 million were recorded during the year ended
31 December 2020.

BRI = #3705 &S

ZEB N EEERRILTALALER
B (PEEFIARRR) ABATIAE
B #8{5HbE15168,669F 5 K WAt
SERABRTEEEME WEkERD

i e A g
ESSE

BETREN_Z—N\E+AEM"
EHZEEBR T __FEI-F
—HRE_HEEWEER=ZT—N
F+—AEREETUERERMAGBE
TEE TREBEE_Z-_TF+_A
Z+—HIEFEHBAHNHEEBREHA
R #374,100,0007T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property under development (continued)

ES - IE1-CRE )
BREBYE (B)

4)  Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi

Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi is a residential
project located in Qujiang New District in Xian City,
which is a new urban development zone designated for
promoting the cultural and tourism industry. The project
occupies a site area of approximately 124,304 sgq.m in
total and divided into 3 phases in development and
each phase mainly comprised high-rise apartments with
ancillary facilities.

1 4 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 20
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property under development (continued)

4)

Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi (continued)
Phase 1 consists of two zones. Zone A consists of 3
blocks of residential buildings with certain retail units
and was completed in 2017. They are mostly delivered
to the buyers since then. Zone B consists of 2 blocks
of residential buildings and a kindergarten and was
completed in 2019. Pre-sales for Phase 1 had commenced
since 2015 and the contracted sales amount of
approximately RMB33.9 million was recorded during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Phase 2 and Phase 3 are currently under construction and
scheduled to complete in 2021 and 2022, respectively.
Pre-sales for Phase 2 had commenced since 2017 and
Phase 3 had launched for pre-sales in September 2018
after pre-sales permits were granted for 2 blocks of
residential buildings. During the year ended 31 December
2020, Phase 2 and Phase 3 recorded the contracted sales
amount of approximately RMB29.6 million and RMB141.6
million, respectively.

EEENWR DM

E£FEOEE(2)
BEBYE (B)
4) PR e BT EHEMS ()

FIHREMERE - ARBRIE=EE
EEFRETEEEM KT —+t
FRI - ARZHEMNTERNTTE
XeBRAEEMBEEET L — @4
FE R-_ZT—NFRI-F—HH
BEEEE T RAFHK BHZE=
E_EF+-_A=Z+—HIEFEHSE
B HHERTL AR E33,900,0000T

F2HAFIE3HE R EEERF - WAt
AR B —FR T _F5%
T-F2HMBEEE T —+FH
- MESHMNEFREEEEFN
E-E—NFNLAKESHEEHFIE
BELBEE -HE T -_FTF+ -8
=+—HIEFE F2HREIHRD T
BRIS & K HE A ARY29,600,000
7T M AR #141,600,0007T °

HE=aZERARAE

2020F & 1 5



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EHOE e
Property under development (continued) BEAYE (E)

STARBUCKS
LHANEL

: . !F!:_?, .

5)  Sandi Manhattan 5) ZHESRiE

Sandi Manhattan is situated in the prime location of “HERBEURLEENIEEZ S
Shanghai Songiang District, involving a site area of ER - EHBTEIFE104,251F 50K - @ —
104,251 sq.m planned for a mixed-use development EfEE#EREE R—ERARESE
complex and an office and shopping complex of which AIEE  EF110,979F 5 KBEER
110,979 sq.m GFA was completed. 77,698 sq.m GFA is MBI 77,698V KMEEEMME
under construction which is expected to be completed FEZZF BHER_T_—Fx
in 2021. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the IT-#H#E_ZT_TF+-_A=+—H
contracted sales amount of approximately RMB182.8 IFFE PERANHEEEHNARKE
million was achieved. 182,800,0007T °

1 6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 20




Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Land bank replenishment

The Group's strategy is to maintain a land bank portfolio
sufficient to support the Group’s own development pipeline for
the next few years. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a
quality land bank amounting to a total GFA of approximately
2,498,000 sg.m, of which approximately 2,339,000 sg.m were
attributable to the owners of the Company.

The table below summaries the landbank by location as at 31
December 2020:

EEENWR DM

¥ OEE(8)

THFEFT
NEFHRIERHEEE AT REBRK
HEBRR T IHWFHEEBEE - R_T_ZTF
+-_A=+t—H AEEBRBREEAE
492,498,000 F T KRES T - H
42,339,000 F A KBEBAARRNGIHEAR A °

ekt 8155 80 S0 6

Total GFA Attributable GFA

HEEEE REBLHEAEREER

(‘000 sq.m.) (‘000 sq.m.)
Landbank by location RiWEE S L FEE (FEHK) (FEFHXK)
Shaanxi Province T 1,306 1,274
Fujian Province ‘R4 936 816
Zhejiang Province HTE 146 146
Shanghai 5 95 95
Jilin Province EMHE 15 8
Total FE 2,498 2,339
Property Investment MERE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised rental income and property management and
related fee income of approximately RMB128.3 million
(2019: approximately RMB125.3 million), which is mainly
generated by two furniture malls situated in Fuzhou and
Baoji. The Group’s investment properties also include hotels,
kindergarten, commercial and office premise, which are all
located in the PRC and provided a stable income stream to the
Group.

HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HIEFE &
SERZHESWAURMEEERABEE
AU A4 AR #128,300,0007T (ZFE—H
4 AR #125,300,0000T) - T BEH
BURBNEBEOMRRERG G A%
EIREMENRBREURPHEE T
CRAENRAE WAAEEREBTI
N

HE=aZERARAE
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== =4 A yaN
Eiignq‘nﬂﬂﬁﬂ *ﬁ'
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) XBEE#)
Property Investment (continued) MERE (&)
Sets out below were the major investment properties held by TE®EHWAEFER _ZE_FEF+ A
the Group as at 31 December 2020: ST HREEZZEREWME:
Existing/ Approximate Group's
Location Intended use GFA interest
BE/ B A%H
A= RERR REEER Fl&
(sg.m) (%)
(FAXK) (%)
Completed investment properties
BERIRENE
Sandi Furniture Plaza, No.173 Gongye Road, Yizhou Street, Taijiang District, Shopping Mall 113,252 100%
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC
hERRERMNTAIRENGE TR 3R e RERS BYES
Various blocks, Sandi Kaixuan Fengdan, No.202 Minjiang Avenue, Cangshan Commercial/ 13,308 100%
District, Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC Hotel
hEERLBNTE RN A LT A B0 A N E T mE/EE
Red Star Macalline, Block 196 No. 8 Bao Guo Road Jin Tai District, Baoji City, ~ Shopping Mall 63,643 100%
Shaanxi Provingg the PRC
PEREAEET S AR E RS 196B A2 X558 B0ES
Sandi Plaza, Block 186 No. 8 Bao Guo Road lin Tai District, Baoji City, Shopping Mall 63,125 100%
Shaanxi Province, the PRC
PERAEEEEN S R ERRHK T 186E =AES BWHES
Ramada Hotel Block No. 184 No. 8 Bao Guo Road lintai District, Baoji City, Hotel 15,181 100%
Shaanxi Provingg the PRC i
PEREEERET S SR ERESRI 8B EXERE iy
Pesht Boutique, Block No. 25 No. 8 Bao Guo Road Jintai District, Baoji City, Hotel 13,520 100%
Shaanxi Province, the PRC : }
PEREEEED S 0 R E RIS F25E WA mEE BIE
Jinjiang Inn, Block No. 18 No. 8 Bao Guo Road lintai District, Baoji City, Hotel 7,094 100%
Shaanxi Provingg, the PRC i
hEREAEERET S AR ERESH 18RI 2B/ iy
Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Square Zone B, Fuxia Road, Cangshan District, Commercial/ 48,149 100%
Fuzhou City, Fu1|an Province, the PRC Hotel
hEERL BN TAILBERE R BB BEE =B E RS8R mE/BE
Lot N5, No.11 Zhongshan Street Neighourhood, Songjiang District, Commercial/ 61,084 100%
Shanghai, the PRC ) \ . Hotel
hE LTRSS NS R R mE/BE
Lot N11, No. 11 Zhongshan Street Neigbourhood, Songjiang District, Commercial 25,235 100%
Shanghai, the PRC ) L
RE L EmANTBRIEEI SN b SRR GES
Investment gropertles under construction
EEREY
Tang Kou,Xi Nan Village, Ge Ling Town, Yongtai County, Fuzhou City, Fujian Hotel 89,187 100%
Province, the PRC
hERRA BN T KRGS EEAE NS0 2 EEER IR
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Significant event during the year

Discloseable transaction — Acquisition of 51% equity
interest in a PRC company holding land parcels in
Baoji City, Shaanxi Province

On 2 November 2020, Baoji Sandi Real Estate Development
Company Limited (the “Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Baoji Ruixucheng Real Estate
Development Company Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to acquire
and the Vendor agreed to sell (i) 51% equity interest in Baoji
Xingyaocheng Real Estate Development Company Limited
(the “Target Company”); and (ii) 51% of the shareholders’
loan owed by the Target Company to the Vendor, at the
consideration of RMB143,784,300 (the “Acquisition”). The
principal assets of the Target Company are the land use
rights of two land parcels located at Weibin District, Baoji
City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC. Upon the completion of the
Acquisition, the Target Company would become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 2 November 2020.

EEENWR DM

ES - IE-CRE )
KEEEAEE

BFHEEXZ-KE—BRFERHAEE
BrmigzHE NG Z51%KRE

N_E-_TF+—F A AREZHE
2EWNBRARTIERE=aEMERBARA
ﬁﬁEEDE%%%Mﬁ%%E%%%
BAR([BEH DI Bt BAHR
EKRELREFREBELEESNESZERKEH
Eﬁ%ﬁ@ 7HEF“TDM%k%
MBI AGBERERAZREERZ51%
(BHEER )ﬁFﬁAE%M3m4mmz

(E=E]) -BRARZEIREERM
R EREEE %mﬁéEZWﬁﬂ%Z

b fE R - RUREB = IRTTA R - Eﬁm
BRSARRZHEZEWNE A

BEHRAAFIBBAE-_ZS -4

i
+t—AZRZ A&

B =R ARAF
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EEENWK DN

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, with series of anti-epidemic measures
implemented by the government and the ongoing vaccination
schemes, the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
is expected to mitigate. The epidemic is currently under
control in the PRC, and the economic activities were resumed
in the second half of the year. The Group had been closely
monitoring the development of the epidemic since the
outbreak and making every effort to minimize its impact to
the operation of the Group. The Group is confident to the
future development of the PRC economy arising from China’s
further opening-up and reforms over the long term. The
Group is also positive in the PRC government’s stabilization
policy which is important to accelerate the development of the
domestic economic system of China. Moreover, the reduction
of loan prime rate has played a key role in stabilizing economic
development, as well as the real estate industry. It will play a
positive role in stabilizing the market confidence in the real
estate market.

In a view of creating the maximum value for customers,
shareholders, employees and society, the Group will continue
to drive the diversified channels for the land acquisition and
proactively look into various opportunities in the property
investment sector to expand its operating scale for continuous
development and accomplishing sustainable growth in the
years ahead.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW % EX£Z& R KEEE

Revenue 1@\
The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from property sales, REBZIWATERRMEHEE  HEHZE
which contributed approximately 96.0% of the revenue for the TECERF+_A=+—HIEFEZRA

year ended 31 December 2020. The table below sets forth the  #]96.0% ° T~ Z& & 5| 1R FT =& & 5 # &l 5
breakdown of the Group’s revenue by operating segment as ZAREEU AR :

indicated:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
BE-Z2-%2F BE-_Z—NF
+T=ZA=+—-BLFE TZA=t—HIFE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®FTT % ARKFIT %
Property sales MEIHE 3,096,792 96.0 1,787,352 92.1
Property investment MERE 128,296 4.0 125,269 6.4
Hotel operation IS =B - - 28,944 1.5
3,225,088 100.0 1,941,565 100.0
Revenue from property sales MEHEKRA

The Group’s revenue from property sales increased to B2 - TF+_A=+—HIEE"

approximately RMB3,096.8 million for the year ended 31 KREEMEHEWNAEMNENDARE

December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB1,787.4 million). 3,096,800,000c (ZE— N F AR
1,787,400,0007T ) °

HE=aZERARAE 20205 8 21




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DM

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL

REVIEW (continued)

Revenue from property sales (continued)

The table below summarises the revenue from property sales

for the year ended 31 December 2020:

EEXERMKEERE#)

MEHEKRA (B)
TRz T -_ZEFE+-_A=1+—H

LEFEZMEHERA

Average Percentage

Sales selling of total
revenue GFA price amount
HESE
HEKA BEEE FHEE ZEDHL
Property projects Type RMB’000 (sq.m) RMB/sq.m %
AR#
YZIEH il ARBFTT (FFHK) F IR %
Fujian Province
BEE
Sandi Xicheng Fengdan Residential/Commerical 1,143,267 114,059 9,920 36.9
=P FE/Tm%
Shaanxi Province
b i)
Quijiang Xiangsong Fengdan Residential/Commerical 679,566 58,567 11,331 21.9
e Xian Sandi
FIZ =il e ph) T BB FE/E%
Sandi Century New City Residential/Commerical 550,957 76,278 7,221 17.8
=t AL T FE/Tm%
Jilin Province
ERS-)
Shouchuang International Plaza Residential/Commerical 328,016 59,326 5,432 10.6
BHEIERES FE /A%
Shanghai
i
Sandi Manhattan Commercial 240,874 5,376 44,806 7.8
ZHERE EES
Others Residential/Commercial 154,112 10,525 14,621 5.0
Hh FE /B
Total 3,096,792 324,131 9,450 100.0
BEr
Notes: et -

Sales revenue amount and the calculation of average price are
based on the sales revenue after the deduction of business/
value-added tax and other surcharges/taxes.

ii. GFA and sales revenue attributable to the car parking spaces i,
are excluded in the GFA sold and the average selling price

calculation.

China Sandi Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Revenue from property investment

Revenue from property investment including rental income
and property management and related fee income amounted
to approximately RMB128.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB125.3 million),
which was derived from the Group’s investment properties
situated in the PRC, including shopping malls, commercial
buildings and kindergartens.

Cost of properties sales

The Group's cost of properties sales increased to approximately
RMB2,076.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: approximately RMB1,284.7 million). The increase
was primarily attributable to the increase in the total GFA of
properties delivered during the year ended 31 December 2020
compared with 2019, which led to the increase in the cost of
properties sales.

Change in fair value on investment properties and
upon transfer to investment properties

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
a net fair value gain of approximately RMB18.2 million on its
investment properties (2019: approximately RMB19.7 million).

In addition, following a change of purpose of a property
during the year, the Group had reclassified the investment
property which previously classified as inventories of
properties. As a result, an increase in fair value of
approximately RMB82.9 million (2019: approximately
RMB382.1 million) was recognised to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and an increase in fair value
of approximately RMB402.0 million (2019:approximately
RMB943.4 million) was recognised to properties revaluation
reserve during the year.

EEENWR DM

BEXEBENMKLOE 8

MEREWRA
HE_T-TF+_-_A=+—HILFEZ
MEFBERA (BREEASWA) ARDESE
ERAEBEERRALASARE128,300,000
T(ZZE—NF:#H AR®125,300,000
TC)  EEBAEEMRAPE 2 IEEYE
(BREES HEEFRYPZA) -

Y EHE R AR
AEEREZ-_ZE-_TF+_A=+—8H
tifgzmﬁﬁﬁ%/ﬂzzwgbu%m/\ﬁ%
2,076,100,000C ( —ZE— N F :HARE
1,284,700,0007T) < i1 E Z R R EEE
“E-NFLAR REE-Z-_ZTF+=
A=T—HIEFERXNME L BREEMRME
N8 B W) K 5H E R AN IE ANFT BN o

REVERBZEREWELZ Z2ATEE
)
BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE"
AEBHAEKLEMEN QA TFERS FEE
HARE18,200,0000T (ZZE—NF:HA
E#19,700,0007T ) °

N AR ERN—REWERREE A&
EEEMoBEPEAMEREZRE
#@% FHi - FRERGEABEERPER

NFEEZL NG ARES2,900,000T (—F
— LEF 4 AR #382,100,0007T) @ WA
MEEHREBETIERATFELZENHDAR
#402,000,0007C (ZZE—NF - HARKE
943,400,0007T) °

B =R ARAF
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EEENWK DN

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Change in fair value of derivative components of
convertible bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised a fair value gain of approximately RMB48.3 million
(2019: fair value loss of approximately RMB9.3 million) on
the derivative components of the convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$500 million, issued to Primary Partner
International Limited (”Primary Partner”), which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), on 30 January 2019
as the consideration for acquisition of All Excel Industries
Limited. The derivative components of the convertible bonds
represented the conversion option to convert into shares of the
Company and early redemption option before its maturity date
on 30 January 2024, which are classified as derivative financial
instrument and measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised a gain on disposals of subsidiaries of approximately
RMB19.6 million which resulted from the disposal of 100%
equity interest in Baoji Sandi Hotel Co. Ltd, Baoji Sandi Pace
Boutique Hotel Co. Ltd, Baoji Sandi Ecological Catering
Management Co. Ltd and Baoji Sandi Ramada Hotel Co. Ltd
(collectively referred to as the “Disposed Subsidiaries”). Such
gain represents the difference between the sales proceed and
the carrying amount of the equity interest in the Disposed
Subsidiaries.

Other gains and losses

The Group recognised net other gains of approximately
RMB74.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately RMB125.5 million), which is mainly attributed to
net exchange gain during the year and the gain on disposals of
subsidiaries as mentioned above.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately RMB91.3 million from approximately RMB104.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB195.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which was mainly due to the increase in sales commission
recognised during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Administrative expenses

The Group’'s administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB70.1 million from approximately RMB143.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB213.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
increase was primarily attributable to the overall increase in
staff cost.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest expenses on bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds, promissory note, contract
liabilities and lease liabilities. The finance costs amounted
to approximately RMB103.1 million (2019: approximately
RMB139.4 million) for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease in finance cost was attributable to contract liabilities,
lease liabilities, and bonds payable which had been fully repaid
on 23 July 2019.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense mainly comprises the PRC enterprise
income tax and land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately RMB314.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB255.5 million). The
substantial increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
sales of properties recognised during the year.

Investments in security

As at 31 December 2020, the investment portfolio comprises
no equity security (31 December 2019: 2 equity securities
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)). The carrying amount of the
investment is equal to its fair values, which are determined
by reference to the quoted market bid prices available on the
Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group fully
disposed of 31,964,000 shares in Kingston Financial Group
(stock code: HK.1031) and 10,000,000 shares in EverChina
Int’l Holdings Company Limited (stock code: HK.202)
respectively. There are net realised losses of approximately
RMB4.1 million (2019: a net realised gain of approximately
RMBO.2 million) during the year.

No investment represented more than 1% of the total assets of
the Group as at 31 December 2020.

EEENWR DM
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EEENWK DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB8,429.9 million denominated
in RMB (31 December 2019: approximately RMB4,229.9
million denominated in RMB) and other debts comprising
convertible bonds, promissory note and amount due to a
related company in total amount to approximately RMB1,299.7
million denominate in HK$ and RMB (31 December 20109:
approximately RMB1,063.2 million denominated in HK$). As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, all bank and other borrowings
were secured with fixed interest rate. The bank and other
borrowings with maturities falling due within one year, in
the second year, in the third to the fifth year, over five years
amounted to approximately RMB2,958.2 million, RMB1,730.2
million, RMB2,982.5 million and RMB759.0 million,
respectively (31 December 2019: approximately RMB619.5
million, RMB813.4 million, RMB1,938.0 million and RMB859.0
million, respectively). Further details of the bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds, promissory note and amount
due to a related company are set out in note 26, 29, 30 and
42(a) respectively to the consolidated financial statements in
this report.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB838.0 million (31 December
2019: approximately RMB707.3 million) which were mainly
denominated in HK$ and RMB.

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio for the Group was
approximately 181.2% (31 December 2019: approximately
114.7%), calculated based on the net debts (comprising bank
and other borrowings and other debts comprising convertible
bonds, promissory note and amount due to a related company
less cash and cash equivalent) of approximately RMB8,891.6
million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB4,585.9
million) over the total equity of approximately RMB4,906.7
million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB3,999.5
million). The debt ratio was approximately 81.9% (31
December 2019: approximately 80.3%), calculated as total
liabilities over total assets of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)

The Group’s current available liquidity resources are sufficient
to meet its capital commitments. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group’s net current assets amounted to approximately
RMB3,178.6 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB1,052.7 million). The Group’s current ratio, being
percentage of its current assets and its current liabilities,
amounted to approximately 122.6% (31 December 2019:
approximately 110.1%).

The Group continued to adopt a prudent funding and treasury
policy to manage its liquidity needs. The objective is to
maintain adequate funds for financing working capital and
capture investment opportunities as and when they become
available. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
Shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of the Group and fund raising activities
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are summarised as
follows:

(i) Bank and other borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB8,429.9 million (31
December 2019: approximately RMB4,229.9 million), of
which approximately RMB2,958.2 million are repayable
within one year and approximately RMB5,471.7 million
are repayable beyond one year. The Group’s bank and
other borrowings bear interest rates ranging from
approximately 4.8% to 13.0% per annum. All the bank
and other borrowings were denominated in RMB.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Promissory note

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had
a 5-year promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) with
principal amount of HK$600 million issued to Mr. Guo, a
Director, with interest of 3% per annum for the first and
second years after the date of issuance, 4.5% per annum
for the third and fourth years after the date of issuance
and 6% per annum for the fifth year after the date of
issuance, with interest payable annually in arrears and the
principal will be repaid when the Promissory Note fall due
on 30 January 2024. The Promissory Note is denominated
in HK$. There was no early redemption of the Promissory
Note requested by the Company or Mr. Guo during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Convertible bonds

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had
a 5-year convertible bonds (the “CB") with principal
amount of HK$500 million to Primary Partner, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Guo, a Director, with interest of
1% per annum payable annually in arrears and carrying
a conversion price of HK$0.412 per conversion share,
with conversion rights to convert into a maximum of
1,213,592,233 shares. The principal will be repaid when
the CBs fall due on 30 January 2024 if no conversion
happened on or before 30 January 2024. The CBs are
denominated in HK$. There was no early redemption of
the CB requested by the Company or Mr. Guo during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Amount due to a related company

As at 31 December 2020, Nanping Sandi Yungu Real
Estate Development Co., Limited, an indirect owned
subsidiary of the Company, had a 3-year borrowing with
principal amount of RMB275.0 million, from Fujian Sandi
Real Estate Development Co., Limited (“Fujian Sandi”),
which is ultimately controlled by Mr. Guo. Interest is
payable quarterly with interest rate of 12% per annum
and the principal would been fully repaid when the
borrowing fell due on 14 April 2023. There is no early
repayment of the borrowing requested by Fujian Sandi
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 27 September 2020, Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd (“Fuzhou Gaojia”), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 51% interest
in Hanzhongxu Sandi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd
("Hanzhongxu Sandi”) from an independent third party at
a cash consideration of RMB5,100,000. Hanzhongxu Sandi
holds a piece of land for property development. Details of the
transaction are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed
of its 100% equity interest in the Disposed Subsidiaries to an
independent third party at a consideration of RMB18,954,000
and recorded a gain on disposal of approximately
RMB19,638,000 in aggregation. Details of the transaction are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements in
this report.

Except for investment in subsidiaries, there were no significant
investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above and the acquisition and disposal of
subsidiary disclosed in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section in this report, the Group had no other
material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures during the year.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD
There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the

Company or by the Group after 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this report.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Detail of the pledged assets of the Group are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had entered into agreements with certain banks to
provide guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
to purchasers of the Group’s properties. As at 31 December
2020, the Group provided guarantees for mortgage loans in an
amount of approximately RMB5,433.6 million (31 December
2019: approximately RMB3,566.9 million) to banks in respect
of such agreements. Certain subsidiaries of the Group has
provided corporate guarantees of approximately RMB981.2
million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB1,157.0
million) to certain financial institutions in respect of loan
facilities granted to certain companies that were indirectly
wholly owned or controlled by Mr. Guo. In addition, certain
subsidiaries of the Group had also provided corporate
guarantees amounting to approximately RMB122.9 million (31
December 2019: approximately RMB82.4 million) to certain
financial institutions in respect of loan facilities granted to
certain independent third parties during the year ended 31
December 2020.

COMMITMENTS

Detail of commitments of the Group are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the business operations in the PRC and
Hong Kong denominated in RMB and HK$, respectively. The
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries which
operate in Hong Kong as investment holdings companies
is HK$. The functional currency of its principal operating
subsidiaries in the PRC is RMB. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group did not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of its foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group
will closely monitor its foreign currency exposure and will
consider using hedging instruments in respect of significant
foreign currency exposure as and when appropriate. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency
swaps, hedging or other financial arrangements for hedging
purposes to reduce any currency risk nor made any over-the-
counter contingent forward transactions.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 702
employees (31 December 2019: 795 employees) of which 700
employees (31 December 2019: 791 employees) were hired in
the PRC and 2 employees (31 December 2019: 4 employees)
in Hong Kong. Total remuneration paid to the employees for
the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB144.9 million (2019: approximately RMB87.8 million). In
addition to competitive remuneration package offered to the
employees, the Group also provides other benefits including
contributions to mandatory provident fund, as well as group
medical and accident insurance. On-going training sessions
were also conducted to enhance the competitiveness of the
Group’s human assets. The Company also maintains a share
option scheme, pursuant to which share options may be
granted to the Directors, executives and employees of the
Company to provide them with incentives in the growth of the
Group.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuation on the Group’s investment properties
located in the PRC as at 31 December 2020 had been carried
out by an independent qualified professional valuer, Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited. The property valuation
was used in preparing the annual results. The valuation was
based on direct capitalization approach by making reference
to comparable market information as available in the relevant
markets. For investment properties under development,
the valuation has also taken into account the construction
costs expended and to be expended to complete the
development. The Group’s investment properties were valued
at approximately RMB8,681.4 million as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: approximately RMB7,451.7 million). A
net fair value gain of approximately RMB18.2 million (2019:
approximately RMB19.7 million) and an increase in fair value
of approximately RMB82.9 million (2019: approximately
RMB382.1 million) were recognised to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year and an increase in
fair value of approximately RMB402.0 million was recognised
to properties revaluation reserve during the year (2019:
approximately RMB943.4 million).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise an effective Board, sound internal control,
appropriate independence policy, transparency and
accountability so as to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Board is committed to comply with the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules to the extent that the Directors consider it to be
practical and applicable to the Company. During the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report,
the Company has complied with the CG Code except for the
following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be segregated and not be exercised by the same
individual. The chairman is responsible for the corporate
strategic planning and formulation of corporate policies for
the Group, while the chief executive officer is responsible for
overseeing day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”) currently serves as the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”). Up to date of this report, no
individual was appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “CEO"). The day-to-day management of the
Group’s business is monitored by the executive Directors and
senior management. Given the size of the Group, the current
business operations and administration have been stable, the
Board is of the view that the current management structure
is able to effectively discharge the duties of both positions.
However, going forward, the Board will review from time to
time and separate the roles of the Chairman and the CEO
when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

Code Provision E.1.2

The code provision E.1.2 currently in force stipulates, among
other things, that the chairman of the issuer should attend
the annual general meeting. Mr. Guo being the Chairman,
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 June 2020 (the “2020 AGM") due to
other commitment and Mr. Guo appointed Mr. Chan Yee Ping,
Michael, an independent non-executive Director, to act as his
representative and take the chair of 2020 AGM to ensure that
proceedings of the meeting would be conducted in order. The
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure the Company’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the CG Code. This constitutes a
deviation of the code provision E.1.2.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices in order to ensure that such
practices may meet the general rules and standards as required
by the Listing Rules. The Board believes that sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices are essential for
sustainable growth of the Group and for benefit of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board’s primary responsibilities include the formulation of
long-term corporate strategies, policy decisions and overseeing
the management of the Group’s operations. In addition, the
Board evaluates the performance of the Group and assesses
the achievement of targets periodically set by the Board.
In carrying out its duties and projects, the Board delegates
certain specific considerations to designated board committees
and management task forces. The daily management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated
to the CEO, executive Directors and senior management and
divisional heads. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the abovementioned officers. All Directors have
full and timely access to all relevant information in discharging
their duties, and in appropriate circumstances are normally
granted rights to seek independent professional advices at the
Company’s expense.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience for effective leadership and independence
in decision making. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises 6 Directors, whose biographical details and their
relationships are set out in the “Biographical Details of the
Directors of the Company” on pages 56 to 59 of the Report
of the Directors. There are 3 executive Directors, namely
Mr. Guo Jiadi, Ms. Amika Lan E Guo and Mr. Wang Chao
and 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Yee Ping, Michael, Ms. Ma Shujuan and Mr. Zheng
Yurui. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
a sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors
and at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Company has received annual
confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors
that they did not have any businesses or financial interests with
the Group and were independent in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING
OF DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing its
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors;
and monitoring their succession. The Board's established
policies include procedures for the appointment of Directors
nominated by the Company’s shareholders. The existing Bye-
laws of the Company empower the Board to appoint any
person as Director either as an additional member or to fill a
casual vacancy.

The term of office for each of the executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors is 3 years. The existing
Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retire may fill the vacated office.
In addition, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director shall retire in the next annual general
meeting but eligible for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its
code of conduct in respect of the securities dealing by the
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
Directors in respect of the securities dealing by the Directors
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Company has established 3 Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, each of which is delegated with
specific roles and responsibilities by the Board. All the Board
committees follow the same principles and procedures as
those of the Board. The Board receives the minutes of each
committee on a regular basis, including their decision and
recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee of the Company comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (Chairman)
Ms. Ma Shujuan
Mr. Zheng Yurui

The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise and members of the Audit
Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors. The primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the Company’s financial information
including annual report and half-yearly report and the
appropriateness of any significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures. Further information is disclosed in the section
titled “Risk Management and Internal Controls” below.

The Company’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020
and interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee before the
submission to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, three meetings
had been held by the Audit Committee. Attendance of each
member at the Audit Committee meeting is set out in the
table under the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this
report.

Summary of work

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee reviewed the interim and annual results with the
external auditors and its duties in accordance with the Audit
Committee’s written terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
for inspection on the Company's website and the Stock
Exchange's website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/
payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), the external
auditor of the Company, for the following services provided for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Remuneration
Paid/Payable

Nature of services RIsHE B EAME

RMB’000

ARKTFIT

Audit service =% IR 1,849
Non-audit services IEFEZRE

— Interim review service —rh HA R B AR 7% 533

2,382

The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board
that the level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor is reasonable. There has been no major disagreement
between the external auditor and the management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee.
The existing Nomination Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zheng Yurui (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Ms. Ma Shujuan

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of Directors either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every 3 years and shall be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitable qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for consideration. The process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria is based mainly
on the assessment of their professional qualifications and
experience relevant to the Company’s businesses.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2020. Attendance of each member at the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table under
the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this report.

Summary of work

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee discussed and made recommendation to the Board
on the re-election of retiring Directors in accordance with the
Nomination Committee’s written terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy, including
measureable objective, monitoring and review of the
Policy

The board diversity policy (the “Policy”) aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board's
composition has been disclosed in the Report of the Directors.

Monitoring and review

The Nomination Committee has monitored the implementation
of the Policy and there is no derivation from this Policy for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Nomination Committee
will keep on review this Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

NOMINATION POLICY

A nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) sets out the
selection criteria, procedures and process of appointing and
reappointing a Director. The selection criteria used in assessing
the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, his/her
academic background and professional qualifications, relevant
experience in the industry, character and integrity and whether
he/she can contribute to the diversity of the Board as detailed
in the Policy. The procedures and process of appointing and
reappointing a Director are summarised as follows:

- nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any
member of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

—  evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all
selection criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy;

—  performing due diligence in respect of each candidate
and making recommendation for the Board’s
consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive
Director, assessing the candidate’s independence under
the relevant Code Provisions and the Listing Rules;
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NOMINATION POLICY (continued)

—  where nominating an independent non-executive
Director for election at general meetings, having due
consideration of matters under Code Provision A.5.5;

— in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors,
reviewing the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the Board
and/or the shareholders for consideration in connection
with his/her re-election at general meetings; and

— convening a meeting of the Board to consider the
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a
Director.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Ma Shujuan (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Mr. Zheng Yurui

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendation on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Company, the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy, and the review of
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management of the Company by reference to
corporate goals and objective resolved by the Board from time
to time. The Remuneration Committee will review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.

The principal elements of the executive Directors’ remuneration
package include basic salary, benefits in kind, discretionary
bonus, retirement benefits and participation in the share
option scheme adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in 2011. The remuneration packages of the executive Directors
will be proposed by the Chairman of the Group annually for
the review by the Remuneration Committee based on the
following factors:

(@) the executive Director’s responsibilities and contribution;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(b) the executive Director’s individual performance; and

() performance of the business unit(s) headed by the
executive Director.

The independent non-executive Directors’ remuneration
includes Directors’ fee and participation in the share
option scheme, and subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration Committee. The term
of appointment of the independent non-executive Directors is
three years. Other detailed terms of appointment have been
disclosed in the Report of the Directors and the consolidated
financial statements. The Board's authority to fix Directors’
remuneration was granted by the Company’s shareholders at
the annual general meeting.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2020. Attendance of each member
at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the
table under the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this
report.

Summary of work

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the Directors and number of share options to be granted to
the Directors and management of the Group in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of
reference.

The term of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection on the Company's website and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and as business
need arises. The Company’s memorandum of association and
the Articles provide for participation at meetings via telephone
and other electronic means. The Directors have full access to
information on the Group and independent professional advice
at all times whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 4 board meetings
had been held for reviewing business performance, considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company, and other business matters. Attendance of each
member at the board meetings, board committee meetings
and general meetings of the Company, on a named basis,
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the
table below.

RHEBR &)
BE-_Z-_ETFE+_A=1+—HILEE"
KANBBRITANESTE S UBZEK
FIRUAREEBRIERNT 2 R &
B UARRIBEMER - SHEREZEZ
Z_EFF+_A=1+—HIFELHEAR
REEeeR EFLEe2aMRERX
SIBRIEAEREEF N TR

Number of meetings attended/

Number of meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-EB-BE+ACT-BLFERHESERY SONEENRY

Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit
Board ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings Meeting

FMZEE® REZEE ENZEE
Directors B2 EZgeE L L EE RRXE
Mr. Guo Jiadi EL) )il 44 NATER  NATER  NATER n
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan £ GuoX 44 NATER  NATER  NATER n
Mr. Wang Chao Tks 44 NATER  NATER  NATER 1/1
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael BT LE 4/4 11 1/1 33 1/1
Ms. Ma Shujuan SRBRL 4/4 171 171 33 171
Mr. Zheng Yurui LIRSy 4/4 11 11 33 /1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS =Y 1-5

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the terms of reference
equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the policies of the corporate
governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities of the Directors and officers that may arise out
the corporate activities which has been complied with the CG
Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial period/year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or condition that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the
Board has prepared the financial statements of the Company
on a going concern basis. The Board also acknowledges its
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators
as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The above statements, which should be read in conjunction
with the independent auditor’s report set out from pages
82 to 89 of this annual report, are made with a view to
distinguishing for Shareholders how the responsibilities of
the Directors differ from those of the auditor in relation to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Having made
appropriate enquiries and examined major areas which could
give rise to significant financial exposures, the Directors have
a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Directors considered the Group has applied appropriate
accounting policies consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable in accordance
with applicable accounting standards. The interim and annual
results and reports were published within the time limits as
required under the Listing Rules after the end of the relevant
periods to provide stakeholders with transparent and timely
financial information.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for Directors will
be arranged at the expenses of the Company where
necessary. During the year ended 31 December 2020, each
of the Directors has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or studying materials
relevant to Director's duties and responsibility. Their training
records have been provided to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office
functions.

The Group has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office
functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

All divisions/departments conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact
the business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance
and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted
annually to confirm that control policies are properly complied
with by each division/department.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group engaged
an independent professional consultancy firm for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal control systems. Key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls are examined
and the independent professional consultancy firm provided its
findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed
the risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the year
ended 31 December 2020, and considered that such systems
are effective and adequate. The annual review also covered
the financial reporting and internal audit function and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

With reference to the Internal Audit Manual of the Group, the
Group's internal audit function has been established to provide
risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight to the
Board through the Audit Committee. The risk management
and internal control systems are reviewed and assessed on a
continuous basis by the Audit Committee and the executive
Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at least
once each year by the Board. These systems were considered
effective and adequate.

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls
for handling and dissemination of inside information. Since
shares of the Company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, the Company has adopted a policy
which aims to set out guidelines to the Group’s directors,
officers and all relevant employees to ensure inside information
of the Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal
and timely manner in accordance with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. He/she is
also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised
of the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
induction and professional development of Directors.

The former company secretary of the Company, Mr. Chan Wai
Shing (“Mr. Chan”), had resigned with effect from 11 May
2020. On 11 May 2020, Ms. Siu Wing Kit (“Ms. Siu”) has been
appointed as the company secretary to fill the vacancy in the
office of company secretary of the Company occasioned by
the resignation of Mr. Chan. Ms. Siu is a senior manager of
corporate services of Tricor Services Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Chan and Ms.
Siu have attended relevant professional seminars to update
their skills and knowledge respectively. They met the training
requirement set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary on corporate governance and board
practices and matters. Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, Excutive Director
has been designated as the primary contact person at the
Company which would work and communicate with Ms. Siu
on the Company’s corporate governance and secretarial and
administrative matters.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 21
March 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”) in order to provide return
to the shareholders of the Company.

Under the Dividend Policy, provided that the Group is profitable
and without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and
in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, among others, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance, retained earnings and distributable reserves, working
capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans, liquidity position, Shareholders’ interests, general
economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group and
other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

46 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

RAME

ARNEHEFGRR UBREFER
FEERIESS RS ARE LA RE
T RTEEEREFSEEMNGERLAS
BEBECHBER EEREEERER
AEfREEFRB N ERER-

ARBAERBWMERER L ([FRE
ENERZZE_ZEFRAAT+—HHEHIT K
—E-_TFRA+—H BEBHEEL([&
x| ) BEERE RN B MWE LR R T AR
BAERZARNRARWEBRM TR -BL
TARAEEEEEBERARCERBESS
AT o

REZ2_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—"HItHF
B BRAEENRBLIEHEHEBREWS
G ABEERRE N ANH - FE BT TR
BIEE3. 2916 P 2 IR E -

FMEEEYIMECEERAUAREESER
NREBENTWERRERRRE 81T
Z %= Amika Lan E GuoX TR T AR A A
MEZBEA REBLEIRARAITE
BB MERTHEEAERER

Hﬁ!%\ﬁ%
RARAFR_ZE-NF=A=-+—BHER
R —EREBR ([REBXK])  KAR
RAEIBCRIBHEIR -

RIBBEBOR - EARNKB AN B TFERE
BIEEZE ARAAZERNKRREIR M
AR - PORERBIRBRE REEM
B8R BEFEAt M (HPEE)AE
EERLERTEEE BFRERA
DIkfFEE 2EESHFR BAFXELR
ARBRAE  RBESHN  BREE
EREANN AEEXBNEHBBH R
H{h ] BE ¥ AN 55 [ 0 5 75 ok B 7S S A Kk
MBREENAMRINTAEUAREES
BREENEMBERE-




Corporate Governance Report

DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

Declaration and payment of dividend shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject
to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and
any applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

() How Shareholders Can Convene A Special General
Meeting And Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene a
special general meeting, and special general meetings
shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, if default, may be convened
by the requisitionists. On the requisition of members
of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, the Directors forthwith proceed duly
to convene a special general meeting of the Company.
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

() Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company
either by email at info@chinasandi.com.cn or by post to
the Company’s Hong Kong head office at Room 2113,
21st Floor, China Merchants Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. Shareholders
can also make enquiries with the Board directly at the
general meetings.
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TEERBSE

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION REEHRERERRER

WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognises the importance of the ARQFEHABEREERIEE M 54K
communication with shareholders. In order to maintain and jﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁéﬁ$”&ﬂﬁ§$2&ﬁ%?ﬁ%’$@
further enhance the investors’ relationship with the Company’s AR RN ZAEREE R

shareholders, the Company established various channels of

communication with its shareholders:

¢l

(1) The annual general meeting provides a platform for (1) BWHEFAZARIHZFFSIRE

shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Rz e -wEFoE HEINEZER
members of the Board and external auditors will attend BHERE AEEFEERELY
the meeting. The Group encourages all shareholders to st AEE s ZRRREEERER
attend and raise any comment on the performance of the EEQEBORERAGLERARER -

Group. The Board welcomes to exchange views with its
shareholders at the meeting.

(2) The Company has regularly met with financial analysts, (2) HBZE_-_ZE-_ZTHF+_-_A=+— Elﬂzi

fund managers and potential investors during the year E-AABTFTEEFTBELSTE
ended 31 December 2020, in order to enhance the 4RIE N EIG R E e L}UJI]?@?BZ%—\%\T
understanding the Group’s operations and developments. AREBEBKLRER 2Rk

(3) Information relating to the Company’s financial (3) K@_JLLTH?‘GEf/EPHHa; ESR/N

information is provided through publications of annual/ S B TEREEAEBALQRE
interim reports, announcements, circulars and press BER ZEH -
release.

(4) The Company has established a corporate website (4) ARRABDHRIARPE  FHIRMER

which provides regularly updated Company financial NEMBER REMRRER 2 &5
information and other corporate information. Bl e
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS ERXH
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no #HE_EZ_THF+_A=+—HILFE"
change in the Company’s constitutional documents. RNB) 2 BRI AT ) o
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) herein
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group’s by operating
segments for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the financial performance of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 90 to 260.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND COMMENTARY

Financial Results

The financial results and business review of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the annual report
and particular on the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” from pages 6 to 31.

Environmental measure and performance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for
motivating staff, and contributes to the community in which
we conduct our businesses and creating a sustainable return to
the Group.

Detail of which are disclosed in our Environmental, Social and
Governance report, which will be issued separately by the
Company.
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EEEHES

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2020, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable of relevant laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. We enjoy good relationships
with suppliers and customers with mutual trust. Accordingly,
our management have kept good communications, promptly
exchanged ideas and shares business update with them when
appropriate. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its suppliers and/or customers.

Employees are the valuable assets of the Group. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path
and improvement of their skills by encouraging them to take
part in external training courses, professional seminars and
examinations and support them by sponsoring. The Group put
efforts into providing staff with a harmonious, positive and
inspiring working environment. The Group always adheres
to its people-oriented concept, values and maintains their
employees’ legitimate rights and interests.

By providing employees with a good working environment
and competitive trainings, employees’ productivities and their
performances are greatly improved.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations,
businesses prospects would be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our
Group's businesses which including business risk, policy and
market risk, operational risk and financial management risk.

Business Risk

Performance of our Group’'s core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions such as performance of property markets in regions,
which would not be mitigated even with careful and prudent
investment strategy and strict procedure.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s development,
the property sector is more susceptible to the impact of macro-
economic and industrial policies. Our Group’s performance
may be adversely affected by changes of the political, social
and economic conditions in the PRC if we are unable to
respond to the ever-changing market condition in a timely
manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risk basically rests with every function at divisional and
departmental levels. Key functions in our Group are guided
by their standard operating procedures, limit of authority and
reporting framework. Our management will identify and assess
key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Financial management risk

The main financial management risk and the Group’s
financial management measures are shown in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in
the future.
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EEEHES

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION R EREE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities REBSOT AR BEE BENGE %
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five ERNEE BENLIFZERERSTE (FHikE8
financial years/periods, as extracted from the published audited EHRERKEZGESMBRHRRLEY (W@
consolidated financial statements and restated as appropriate, ) )EFI T - sz E N EK AR A B IS R
is set out below. The summary does not form part of the xo

consolidated financial statements.

Nine

months

ended 31

Year ended 31 December  December  Year ended 31 March

Bz

+=A

=t—-H
BET-A=t-ALEE LthER BEZASt-ALEE
2020 2019 2018 2018 2017
“EZf ZE-hE ZEBE-N\§f ZB-N\§f ZB—t%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETTL
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note iii) (note iii)

(Bizti) (Hizti) (Bii) (B &iii) (i #iii)

Revenue 1§ 3,225,088 1,941,565 365,048 600,201 258,044

Profit (loss) for the year/ ARAREAEEE/BR
period attributable to the mFl (E])
owners of the Company 420,503 482,165 (114,580) 132,581 (146,894)

52 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 20




Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION EEREE &)
(continued)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest EE - BEERFERER
At 31 December At 31 March
R+=B=+-H R=A=t+-8H
2020 2019 2018 2018 2017

ZEZ8E ZEZE-hE ZE-N\NE ZE-N\E CZEZ-tfE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note iii) (note iii)

(Hiiti) (Hizti) (Wiatii)  (Biakii)  (Batiii)

Assets and liabilities BERER
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,868,688 8,847,037 6,762,538 3,530,255 3,863,069
Current assets MEEE 17,239,739 11,427,775 11,310,342 2,262,679 1,436,199
Total assets BEE 27,108,427 20,274,812 18,072,880 5,792,934 5,299,268
Current liabilities mEaRE 14,061,175 10,375,071 11,762,223 1,590,771 1,033,350
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 8,140,547 5,900,209 2,249,663 1,451,462 1,571,529
Total liabilities BafE 22,201,722 16,275,280 14,011,886 3,042,233 2,604,879
Total equity AR 4,906,705 3,999,532 4,060,994 2,750,700 2,694,389
Attributable to: HUTET EL
Owners of the Company ARREBA 4,672,807 3,945,563 3,982,357 2,719,892 2,666,315
Non-controlling interests ik ER 233,898 53,969 78,637 30,808 28,074
Notes: HfaE -

(i)  These financial information were extracted from the audited (i) ZEUBERHEEAREFEIOE260E
consolidated financial statements as set out on page 90 to 260 Pl 2 I B izir & ISRk -
in this report.

(i)  The financial information for the nine months ended 31 iy #H=E—E—N\F+ZA=+—HINEAA

December 2018 was extracted from the Company’s 2019 annual ZHBER T REBARRAT T —NEFF
report, which has been restated under merger accounting and W ERBAEHETEEIRRENER
has also been adjusted for the change of presentation currency. BEEFE

(i)  The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2017 iy B2 TZ—+FER_T—N\F=ZA=+—

and 2018 were extracted from the Company’s 2017/18 annual BIEFEZMBEHDEEERARZE
report, which has been restated under merger accounting and —t /= N\FEFK BRBEAHSEE
has also been adjusted for the change of presentation currency. RN EEEBEFHE -
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EEEHES

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share options during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 94 and 95 of this annual report and in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted
to approximately RMB1,006,796,000 as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: approximately RMB981,014,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, less than 10%
of the Group’s sale were attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers respectively.

In addition, the five largest suppliers of the Group together
accounted for approximately 34% of the Group's total
purchases during the year ended 31 December 2020, with the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 28%.

None of the Directors, any of their close associates or any
substantial shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers during the year.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made
charitable contributions approximately RMB5.9 million (2019:
Nil) to various charitable organisations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guo Jiadi (Chairman)
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo
Mr. Wang Chao

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Ms. Ma Shujuan
Mr. Zheng Yurui

In accordance with the Bye-laws 111(A) and 111(B) of the
Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael and
Mr. Zheng Yurui shall retire from office by rotation and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is updated information of directors of the
Company required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of
the Listing Rules:

1. Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (“Mr. Chan") was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Media Corporation Limited (stock code: 1000, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange) with effect from 19 June
2020.

2. Mr. Chan has resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Champion Alliance International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1629, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange) with effective from 1 February 2021.
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EEEHES

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), aged 61, is a merchant and was
appointed as the Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 12 December 2014. Mr. Guo is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, incorporated
in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI")
respectively engaged in investment holding and also a director
and legal representative of certain operating subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC. Mr. Guo is also an ultimate beneficial
owner of a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Guo started his business in international trading and,
in 25 years, diversified into businesses including footwear
manufacturing, chemical technology, mining, real estate
development and hotel investment with presence throughout
Europe, the United States, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Fujian,
Shaanxi and Jilin. Mr. Guo has over 30 years of experience in
trading business and over 20 years of experience in property
development.

Mr. Guo entered into the property market in the PRC by
establishing Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Fuzhou Gaojia”) and has since acted as its chairman.
Fuzhou Gaojia has obtained (Qualification Certificate (Class 1)
for Real Estate Development Enterprise in the PRC*) from the
Department of Housing and Urban and Rural Development
of the PRC*. Fuzhou Gaojia has completed certain real estate
projects in Fuzhou, Putian, Baoji and Shanghai.

Mr. Guo is the father of Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, who is an
executive Director of the Company. Apart from the aforesaid,
Mr. Guo does not have any other relationship with any
Director, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Guo does not hold directorship in other public listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

*  For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo (“Ms Guo”), aged 35, has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company with
effect from 9 July 2014 and is a director of certain Hong Kong
and BVI subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Guo is responsible
for the overall business development of the company. Her
current position is the Director of Business Operations and
is responsible for general operation management, corporate
development and planning matters. Ms. Guo has graduated
from Simon Fraser University in Canada with a bachelor degree
of Business Administration. She also holds a MBA degree from
The University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Guo is the daughter of Mr. Guo Jiadi, who is the Chairman
and an executive Director and the ultimate beneficial owner of
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Ms. Guo does not have any other relationship with
any Director, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Ms. Guo does not hold directorship in other public listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Wang Chao (“Mr. Wang”), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 February
2018. Mr. Wang hold a bachelor’s degree of Laws from the
Xiamen University*. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in
companies that specialised in property development industries
for over ten years. Mr. Wang is the general manager of Fujian
Sinco since 1 January 2018 and responsible for the overall
operation for the various subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC.

Mr. Wang does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wang does not
hold directorship in other public listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

*  For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (“Mr. Chan"), aged 43, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 9 July 2014. Mr. Chan was also appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member with practicing
certificate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over ten years of
working experience in the fields of accounting and audit,
corporate secretarial management and corporate governance.

He is currently the company secretary of China Sunshine Paper
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2002), which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, as well as Northeast
Electric Development Co., Limited (stock code: 42), a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange respectively.

He was also an independent non-executive director of Prosper
One International Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
1470) and Champion Alliance International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1629) from September 2017 to December 2018
and from November 2018 to February 2021, respectively.
Mr. Chan has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director for three companies, namely China Wah Yan
Healthcare Limited (stock code: 648) since July 2014, StarGlory
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 8213) since November
2016 and Beijing Media Corporation Limited (stock code:
1000) since June 2020.

Mr. Chan is the director of MCI CPA Limited. Mr. Chan
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan does not hold
directorship in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zheng Yurui (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 66, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 11 April 2012. Mr.
Zheng was also appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Zheng graduated from Party
School of Central Committee of C.P.C. with undergraduate
diploma in 1999, majoring in administration and he is a senior
economist. From 1971 to 1998, Mr. Zheng worked in several
state-owned companies and private companies including a
factory in which he acted as a deputy general manager. From
1998 to the present, Mr. Zheng founded his own footwear
manufacturing company, acting the chairman. From 2008
to the present, Mr. Zheng has served as a director of a
property development company concurrently. Mr. Zheng is the
representative of the Tenth and Eleventh People’s Congress of
Fujian Province and the representative of the Fourth, the Fifth,
and the Sixth People’s Congress of Putian City.

Mr. Zheng does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zheng does
not hold directorship in other public listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Ms. Ma Shujuan (“Ms. Ma"), aged 37, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 5 February
2018. Ms. Ma was also appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Ms. Ma graduated
from China University of Political Science and Laws* in 2007
with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She also holds a degree of
Executive Master of Business Administration in Finance from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University*. Ms. Ma is a practicing lawyer
in the PRC. She has over ten years of extensive experience in
different kinds of legal and financial works including corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions, property investment, trust
and commercial litigations. She is currently a practising lawyer
of Beijing King & Capital Law Firm, (Shanghai Branch)*.

Ms. Ma does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of
the Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Ma does not hold
directorship in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

*  For identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guo Jiadi, being the existing executive Director, has
entered into service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing on 12 December 2014. The
service contract had been renewed for a further term of three
years commencing on 12 December 2017 and 12 December
2020, respectively.

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, being the existing executive Director,
has entered into service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing on 9 July 2014. The
service contract had been renewed for a further term of
three years commencing on 9 July 2017 and 9 July 2020,
respectively.

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael, being the existing independent
non-executive Director, has entered into service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on 9 July 2014.The service contracts had been renewed for a
further term of three years commencing on 9 July 2017 and
for a further term of two years commencing on 9 July 2020.

Mr. Wang Chao, being the existing executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing on 5 February 2018 and the
service contract had been renewed for a further term of three
years commencing on 5 February 2021.

Mr. Zheng Yurui, being the existing independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 11 April 2012 and
the service contracts had been renewed several times for a
further term of three years commencing on 11 April 2018.

Ms. Ma Shujuan, being the existing independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing on 5 February
2018 and the service contract had been renewed for a further
term of three years commencing on 5 February 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
entered into the following transactions with connected person
which constituted connected transaction under Listing Rules:

Acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All Excel”)
and provision of guarantees

On 21 September 2018, Grand Supreme Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser) had entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Primary Partner
International Limited (“Primary Partner”, as vendor), a
company beneficially owned by Mr. Guo, to acquire the entire
equity interest in All Excel. The total consideration of the
acquisition was HK$1,500 million, which is satisfied by i) cash
of HK$200 million; ii) issue of promissory notes in principal
amount of HK$600 million; iii) issue of 485,436,893 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.412 per share (equivalent to
HK$200 million); and iv) issue of convertible bond in principal
amount of HK$500 million.

All Excel and its subsidiaries (collectively the “All Excel Group”)
are principally engaged in property development, property
investment and hotel operation business in the PRC. Certain
members of the All Excel Group have also provided corporate
guarantees (the “Corporate Guarantees”) to certain entities
(the “CP Group"”) that were indirectly wholly owned or
controlled by Mr. Guo or Ms. Shum Xi Xia (“Ms. Shum”), the
sister-in-law of Mr. Guo, to guarantee the payment obligations
of the bank loans (the “Guaranteed Loans”) grant to the CP
Group. The aggregated principal of these Guaranteed Loans
amounted to RMB1,410.3 million before the acquisition.

The Corporate Guarantees will become contingent liability of
the Group upon the completion of the acquisition. In order
to protect the Group from the potential liabilities arising
from the Corporate Guarantees, on 21 December 2018, the
parties entered into a supplemental deed, pursuant to which,
(i) Mr. Guo has undertaken to indemnify the Group in full
regarding any loss incurred by the Group under the Corporate
Guarantees, and (ii) the amount due by the Group to Mr. Guo
and/or CP Group, the promissory note and the convertible
bonds issue to Primary Partner were charged as first charge
in favour of the Company to safeguard the Group’s interest.
Details of term of the supplemental deed are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 December 2018.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All Excel”)
and provision of guarantees (continued)

As Mr. Guo is an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and a controlling shareholder of the Company, Primary
Partner is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Guo and therefore the acquisition
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Furthermore, as Ms. Shum is a deemed
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.21(1)(a),
each of the entities of the CP Group is a connected person
of the Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Guo
or Ms. Shum. As such, the on-going provision of Corporate
Guarantees upon the completion of the acquisition also
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The acquisition and provision of Corporate Guarantees were
approved at the Company’s special general meeting held on
16 January 2019 and the acquisition was completed on 30
January 2019. Further details are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 21 September 2018, 31 December
2018, 16 January 2019 and 30 January 2019, and the circular
of the Company dated 26 December 2018, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BEXS (&)
Acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All Excel”) WEEREXERLE ([28]) RiEH#
and provision of guarantees (continued) BR(E)

As at 31 December 2020, the existing Corporate Guarantees RZE-_FEF+-A=+—H AEEM
provided by the Group to the CP Group were set out as  CPEBEIEHEMBEAATEREIWT :

follows:
Loan Repayment
Borrower Lenders Guarantor principal  Outstanding Interest rate date
Epil V] ERA EXAeE KEELE Mz BRAH
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AEETL) (AREFIL)
Fujian Sandi Real Estate Huaxia Bank Co., Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate 690,000 620,000 5.40% 16 October 2028
Development Co., Limited Limited Development Co., Limited
("Fujian Sandi") ("Fuzhou Gaojia")

RE-HFHERZERLA ZEFTROHERAF BNEERHERE “EON\E
([Eg=m]) BRAR ([BM=E] TA+RH
Fujian Sandi Hang Seng Bank Fuzhou Gaojia 420,000 361,200 6.98% 16 August 2023

(China) Limited
BE=# B RTT (PE) BMEE k- S 3
BRAR AV:Rway=

1,110,000 981,200

These Guaranteed Loans were also secured by the pledged of ZEEREDTINMAERCPEREEZAET
certain properties held by the CP Group. None of these loans is YVEERE - ZEEZY k@ E -
overdue.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
by the Group during the year are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company has complied
with the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules for
those related party transactions which constituted non-exempt
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions.
Other related party transactions either did not constitute
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions
or constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions but were exempted from all disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” disclosed above and note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements headed “Related Party Transactions”, no
other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”) is an executive Director, the
chairman of the Company and a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Guo carries out property development and
investment businesses and other businesses in the PRC through
companies controlled by him, including but not limited to
Fujian Sandi Property Development Limited (the “Fujian Sandi”)
and Fuzhou Gaojia. Fuzhou Gaojia had become an indirect
wholly-owner subsidiary of the Company since 30 January
2019.

To deal with the potential conflict of interests between Mr.
Guo and the Company, Mr. Guo; Fujian Sandi; Fuzhou Gaojia
and the Company had entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 1 January 2015 (the “2015 Deed”). Each of Mr. Guo;
Fujian Sandi and Fuzhou Gaojia; (the “Covenantor(s)”) has
given its non-compete undertakings in favour of the Company
on the terms set out below:

(@) The Covenantors will not, and will procure his/its close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, engage,
invest or be involved in any manner any business which
competes with the business of the Company from time to
time with the following exceptions:

(i) the holding of shares of a company which is
engaged in the business of acquisition of land
for development, building construction and
acquisition of real properties (including projects
with construction in progress) in the PRC for sale,
lease or other investment purposes (the “Property
Investment Business”) and whose shares are listed
on a recognised stock exchange provided that such
shares represent not more than 10% of the voting
rights at the general meetings of such company;

(i) the engagement in the Property Investment Business
through the Group;

(iii) the acquisition or holding of real property for self-
use;
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(iv) the property projects that the Covenantors have
already engaged as at the date of the undertakings;

(v)  the engagement of property projects in any province
of the PRC in which the Group has not considered,
planned to or invested in the development of its
Property Investment Business;

(vi) the engagement of property projects in any province
of the PRC in which the Group has considered,
planned to or invested in the development of its
Property Investment Business subject to the right of
first refusal granted to the Group (on the terms set
out in the undertakings).

Since the date of the 2015 Deed, the scope of the
operation of the Group was expanded. Therefore, Mr.
Guo and the Company has entered into a new Non-
competition Deed on 15 March 2017 (the “2017 Deed")
to replace the 2015 Deed. Further details was disclosed in
the announcement dated 15 March 2017. Set out below
is a summary of the principal terms of the 2017 Deed and
relevant information.

Mr. Guo (for himself and as the agent for his close
associates) irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes in
favour of the Company that:

(@) he shall and shall procure that his close associates
not to, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in,
participate in, whether on his own account or with
each other or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person or company or otherwise holds or
owns any interest in any manner in the PRC in any
business that may compete, directly or indirectly,
with the Group Business;

(b) he shall provide all the information that the
Company reasonably considers to be necessary to
enforce the undertakings given by him under the
2017 Deed and would make an annual declaration
on compliance with the 2017 Deed in the annual
report of the Company; and
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a) (continued)

(c) he and/or his close associates shall abstain from
voting in the Board meetings and the general
meetings of the Company in relation to any matter
in connection with 2017 Deed,;

Mr. Guo further undertakes to the Company that he shall
not (and shall procure his close associates not to):

(@) solicit or entice away any customer, contractor,
supplier, director, employee or consultant of the
Group (or any potential customer, contractor,
supplier with whom the Group has already entered
into negotiations); and/or

(b) use, disclose to anyone or publish, or allow
the disclosure or publication of, the non-public
information in relation to the Group (trade secrets,
business strategies or otherwise) that he or his close
associates received or may receive.

If any New Business Opportunity is made available to
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates, he and/or his close
associates:

(i)  shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company making an informed
evaluation of the New Business Opportunity; and

(i) shall not pursue or otherwise participate in the new
business opportunity in any manner unless and until
the New Business Opportunity has been declined
by the Group, provided that Mr. Guo and/or his
close associates cannot pursue the New Business
Opportunity on terms more favourable than those
offered to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

If Mr. Guo and/or any of his close associates wishes to
sell any interest in the Guo Business (same meanings as
defined in the announcement dated 15 March 2017) (in
whole or in part) to any third party (the “Opportunity
for Sale”), Mr. Guo will offer and will procure that his
close associates to offer the Opportunity for Sale to the
Company and the Company shall have a right of first
refusal in respect of such Opportunity for Sale. In this
regard, Mr. Guo and/or his close associates:

(i)  shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company to reasonably evaluate the
Opportunity for Sale; and

(i) shall be at liberty to offer the Opportunity for
Sale to third parties if the Opportunity for Sale is
declined by the Group, provided that the terms
thereof shall not be more favourable than those
provided to the Group.

The Non-competition Undertakings do not apply to the
following:

(@) the same property projects excluded from the 2015
Deed (being those property projects of Mr. Guo and/
or his close associates already in existence as at the
date of the 2015 Deed);

(b) the hotel business in connection with three existing
hotels located in Fujian Province which has been
engaged by Mr. Guo (and/or his closes associates)
prior to the Group’s proposed engagement in the
hotel sector:

(c) the holding of or being interested in, directly or
indirectly, by Mr. Guo and/or his close associates any
shares in any company, provided that (i) such shares
are listed on a recognized stock exchange; and (ii)
the total number of such shares held by Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates does not amount to more
than 5% of the issued shares carrying voting rights;
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued) EEESY (&)
(a) (continued) (@) (#&)

(d) the engagement in any business via the holding of
the equity interests through the Group;

(e) the acquisition or holding of property by Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates for their respective self-
use;

(f)  the engagement in the Group Business in any
province in the PRC where the Group has not
considered or planned to carry out the Group
Business; or

(g) (subject to the provisions regarding the New
Business Opportunity) the engagement in the Group
Business in any province in the PRC where the
Group has considered or planned to carry out the
Group Business.

The obligations of Mr. Guo under 2017 Deed shall be
terminated upon the earlier of:

(@) the Shares ceasing to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; and

(b) Mr. Guo and his close associates together ceasing to
control 30% (or such percentage as may from time
to time specified in the Listing Rules to be regarded
as a controlling shareholder) or more of the voting
rights at any general meeting of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr.
Guo declares that he complied with all the terms and
conditions as set out in 2015 Deed and 2017 Deed.

Save as disclosed, during the year and up to the date
of this report, no Directors are considered to have an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than
those businesses for which the Directors were appointed
as directors to represent the interest of the Company
and/or the Group.

d) BEBEAKERFANBEEEE
ﬂ%ﬁ ,
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A B FEYE:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws
of Hong Kong) (“SFO") which (i) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows

(a) Long positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company

EERFERTHRASRKRD - HE
RO REERE 2EZERAXR

%7777¢+ A=+—H #BERKAK
NAEBITHABRAR A S EAE LR
(EERBABBESTELOBE L EIED
([BHRBEEG])BEXVED) 2 &% 48
B MEEET A () EREE %&%
BIEOIEXVEET M FEID e AN
%iﬁ(@%m%m%&%fﬁmmﬁh
N EESIR B2 Em KRR ) (BB
*%&%ﬁh%%%ﬂwm$ RITFEZ
Eao M ATac sk s s (i BREE N T E A
ﬁﬁ+2h EFAMEARE MERATZ
EAERIOAE N T

(a) REQXAROREBRD ZHFA

Approximate

Number of ~ Number of  percentage

Number of  underlying share  of the issued

Name of Director Capacity shares shares  options held capital

HERG FHREBRE GERTRE

Exns 54 RHE R ¥R ZHNELH

(note 3) (note 4)

(Hizt3) (Kfit4)

Mr. Guo Interest of controlled corporation 3,386,905,895 1,213,592,233 - 90.43%

(note 1) (note 2)
BEE REAE R (Kizt1) (Kizt2)

Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.09%
EREAA

Mr. Wang Chao Beneficial owner - - 3,000,000 0.06%
FHEE ERfAA

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.09%
AmikalanEGuo &t  Em#EEAA

Ms. Ma Shujuan Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.09%
i ch o ERfAA

Mr. Zheng Yurui Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.09%

BERLE

ExfAA
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EEEHES

DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' BEERFETHAERRKY - 18EE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN BORBEEIZEZRAE (8)

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(a) Long positions in the Shares and underlying (a) REQATARGREERPZHFR
Shares of the Company (continued) (&)
Notes: et -
1. These Shares were held by the controlled corporations of 1. ZEROBIBEEZZEER
Mr. Guo as follows: W

No. of Shares

Name of controlled corporation FEEEER RO EE
United Century International Limited (“United Century”) United Century International Limited

([United Century |) 2,581,054,801
Primary Partner International Limited (“Primary Partner”) Primary Partner International Limited

([Primary Partner J) 485,436,893
King Partner Holding Limited (“King Partner”) King Partner Holding Limited

([King Partner | ) 320,414,201
Total @it 3,386,905,895

1. All the above corporations were incorporated in the BVI 1. FlHAREBRELZRESFMAT
with limited liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Guo. ZERARTMBLEELERES -

2. This represents the maximum number of Shares to be 2. HERZZ-hF-A=1TAZEH
issued upon exercise in full of the conversion rights 7T{# %77 F Primary Partner 2 AJ %
attaching to the CB issued to Primary Partner on 30 BEMES 2 BBEES BTET2
January 2019. BRARMDEER °

3. The share options were granted pursuant to the Share 3. REEREDEBBERES SR
Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the HoEHFBHR T2 TER#ET
paragraphs headed ‘Share Option Scheme” below. 2 —E-

4. As at 31 December 2020, the number of issued ordinary 4, WHR-E-_ZEF+_/A=+—H"
shares of the Company was 5,087,207,546, which AARBEHETEBREAREE A
has been used for the calculation of the approximate 5,087,207,546/% - B ARG E B4
percentage. Baothe
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EEEHES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Long positions in associated corporation

EERFERTHRASRKRD - HE
RO REERE 2EERXR (&)

(b) RHEBEIEZHE
Paid-up capital

held in
Name of associated associated Percentage of
Name of Director ~ corporation Capacity corporation shareholding
HEE B
Exns HEEE AR 54 BREX REBDL
Mr. Guo Nanping Sandi Xiangsong Interest of controlled RMB17,500,000 35%
Property Development corporation
Co., Ltd ("Nanping Sandi
Xiang Song")
LA HY-BFERNERE REEBE R AR #17,500,0007C

BRRAR (TMF=a%E])
Notes:

1. The Company indirectly held 60% equity interests of
Nanping Sandi Xiangsong. Therefore Nanping Sandi
Xiangsong is an associated corporation of the Company
for the purposes of the SFO.

2. Fujian Sandi Real Estate Development Co. Limited (“Fujian
Sandi”) held 35% equity interests of Nanping Sandi
Xiangsong. Fujian Sandi is a company established in the
PRC and ultimate controlled by Mr. Guo.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, otherwise notified to the
Company and Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
Nor any of the Directors and chief executive had any interest
in, or had been granted any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, other than the interests of a
director or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under
the heading “Directors’ and chief executive's interest and
short position in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, the following persons (not being a Director or the
chief executive officer of the Company) have an interest or
a short position in Shares or underlying Shares which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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FERRRRORBERSG 2
599

NR_E_TF+_A=Z+—H BRIEH
MEBITBRABRZKRMG AEEKRHD RE
EEZED] —BEEN ATAL (ILIE
EENARRITHRAR) RIRMD AR
D HEBREES RBEERDEXVIBE
2R B3N BIESAM AR T MR T B
ZHBIAR RIREESFRBEKRIE
3BKRFEZERM o ERIAE  MZE
AN Bt A #E A AT P15 3 N A £ EE
MEMKE AR ZBRREAE LIRE:

Number of Approximate
Capacity/ Number of underlying percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares Shares issued capital
HERTRE
RREH L2 0g $:3:3-1 R4 8B HERH#E ZHBNESL
Long Position
#e
United Century Beneficial owner 2,581,054,801 - 50.74%
United Century ExBEEA
King Partner Beneficial owner 320,414,201 - 6.30%
King Partner EafEBA
Primary Partner Beneficial owner 485,436,893 1,213,592,233 33.40%
Primary Partner EafEBEA
Central Huijin Investment Ltd Person having a Security interest - 2,604,479,555 51.20%
in shares (note 1)
hRESREBREERA BRI ERERER
)\i (Kizt1)
Chance Talent Management Ltd Person having a Security interest - 2,604,479,555 51.20%

in shares (note 1)
RO EEERER
AT (HfiET)

Chance Talent Management Ltd
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. It represents security interest held by Chance Talent
Management Limited (“Chance Talent”). Chance Talent's
intermediate holding company is CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, and its ultimate holding company is Central
Huijin Investment Limited.

2. As at 31 December 2020, the number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 5,087,207,546, which has been used for
the calculation of the approximate percentage.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

(a) Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which is approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 16
September 2011. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the Scheme will be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on the date on which it became effective. The directors
and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
are entitled to participate in the share option schemes
operated by the Company.

74 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

FTERRTRARGREBERGD 2R
RKE (&)

Wit

1. EfEChance Talent Management Limited
([Chance Talent]) B 2 AL -
Chance Talentz M ERR A T B EITEIRE
SEZERERATREGERERAG AT
RESREBRETAT

2. RIZE-_ZFEF+-_A=+—H AR
1T E AR 8 A A5,087,207,5460% EFEJ
RETEBMOBE L -

BREXEEEN R_Z-_ZTF+_-A
—t+—8 ARRTEEFTAL (EER
ARRIEBITBRABRINHMEERAR
7] 2 B 19 sk FE B Ak 1D EP%WE‘JF %&Hﬂ
BB EXVERE2 K30 EREBAMAR

Bt 22 AT 3 AR I R %&Hﬁiﬂw1ﬁl@336ﬂ%\
FEzELMPRs o ST AR -

e E N RS

BE-ZT-SF+-A-t—BLEEY
BEHBGEFERIIMT -

(a) RBIRFERTE
ApmERm—BERAERT 8 ([FRhE
E) (RZE——FNAA+T<AH
TZARAIRRBFEREG LHE)
REBRESS ARREZARAE
BERATROBRE UREERE
Z IR AR RIBE AR R R B dn - BR 3F
SBEBUEREER] EZ#%UH%EFI\E
M2 BEER T F 2 BRI - AL
%%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁwgﬁﬂﬁﬁ/,\K

TR CERT S -




Report of the Directors

EEEHES

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued)

BREHBHZ 2
(a) BEmRmESHE (&)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. The Share
Option Scheme covers any employee (full time and part
time) holding salaries, agents, contractors, consumers,
suppliers and others providing similar services as the
Board in its sole discretion considers eligible.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
(i) the total number of shares to be issued under the
options of the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company then in issue.

Options may be exercise at any time not exceeding a
period 6 years from the date on which the share options
is accepted. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option will be
determined by the Board at the time of grant.

46,000,000 share options (“Batch 1 Options”) under the
Share Option Scheme granted on 22 February 2016 and
the vested option will be exercisable at an exercise price
of HK$0.285 per share in accordance with the following
schedule:

25%: from 22 February 2016
25%: from 22 February 2017
25%: from 22 February 2018
25%: from 22 February 2019

BREA S B E AR R RS REEE
MERERER T EM2RERMIRE
Ao RE e WERSREN B
BRTEREEFTE2HNERRE
ERZERNEBRMERBEZHES K
2 e HEE  HER REHE
MR EMA -

REE RN AR R F LB - (VR IRHT
FrElz B EEIT RN BETSHE
BARAANRBE BTN Z10% : M)
A —FEL KA gL R EREAR
2 BEIRERT Y k2 B BT R G T8
TRHEE TEBARAR B EITR
B2Z1% °

B & 49 B A4 B B EE T B B 64F HA
ARERITEBRE - TEERESE
BB EERUATERSE ()&
RAEIBMHAELE BB Z KT E: (i)
REERHAHAAEEXAZF
BT E - R (i) AN 2B 2 HfE

EXEeREBREREESNE
PRz TEE FEH TR
BRI BE -

46,000,000 BE A% ([ 55 —#EBE %
B ERBEBERENTER_Z—X
F_A-+—_BRYE mMAREE
BB IRE THRERETFEES
B%0.2858 L 1Tf#

25% BT RNFE-_A-+-H#
25% B-_E—+FE-_HA-_+_—H#
5% BT \F-_A-+=-HRE
5% BZZE-NAFAZ+ AR
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued)

BREHBHZ 2
(a) HBRRFESTE (&)

On 24 April 2018, a total of 59,700,000 shares options
("Batch 2 Options”) were granted to the directors,
consultants and employees of the Group at a cash
consideration of HK$1 per grantee which entitle the
grantees to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.420 per share. The
exercise price is determined with reference to the highest
of (i) the closing price of HK$0.420 per share as quoted
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of
approximately HK$0.412 per share as quoted in the Stock
Exchange daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of HK$0.01 per ordinary shares in the
share capital of the Company. The validity period of the
Batch 2 Options is 6 years from the date of grant (i.e. 24
April 2018 to 23 April 2024 (both days inclusive)). The
vesting period of the Batch 2 Options is as follows:

40% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April 2018;

30% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April 2019;

and

30% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April 2020

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EEEHES

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued) REHBHZ &)
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BBRRESTE (&)
Details of movements in the number of outstanding share HE—_ZE-_EF+_A=+—1IF
options under the Share Option Scheme during the year EoBEREZIE N ARITEZER
ended 31 December 2020 are as follows: FEEE BB
Number of shares options
BREHR
Cancelled/
Beginning  Granted  Exercised  Expired Exercise
of the during the during the duringthe End of the  price per Date of grant of Exercisable
year year year year year share share option period
KEER  AEER  KEER ) ERE )
AEER " E 28/ER £X SROKE RYBH s
Directors EE
Mr. Guo Ey 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000  HKS$0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
21 February 2022
0.285%7 ZE-RE ZE-RF
“AZtzH :Hgigﬁi
:EE;ZE
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000  HK$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
23 April 2024
042057 _3-)\F Z3-)\E
MA-THE EA-TEBZE
“E-EE
MA-f=H
Mr. Wang Chao Tk 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 HKS$0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
21 February 2022
0.285% 7T TR “TnE
“f-tCH :H;i;@i
“B-t-8
Ms. Amika Lan E Amika Lan E 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HK$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
Guo (Note) GuoR T (Hit) 23 Apri 2024
0.420% 7 “E-N\& —E-\f
MA-tHH MWA-tEAZE
“E-mE
mA-+=A
Ms. Ma Shujuan SRELL 4,400,000 - - - 4,400,000  HK$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
23 April 2024
042057 _E-)\F 2-\%
MA-THE MEA-TEBZE
“E-EE
MA-f=H
MrZhengVursi  EEBEAE 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
23 April 2024
042057 “EN\E “E-\E
MAZtHA MA-tEAZE
12
MA-+=H
Sub-total N 20,600,000 - - - 20,600,000
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued) BREHBHZRE#)
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BBRRFESTE (&)
Number of shares options
Cancelled/
Beginning  Granted  Exercised  Expired Exercise
of the during the during the duringthe End of the  price per Date of grant of Exercisable
year year year year year share share option period
KEER  AEER  KEER ) EhE )
AEET] Rit i %/ ER EX SRIEE RiLEA ki
Employees 8

Sandy Lan Hua Sandy Lan Hua 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
Guo (Note) Guo (fr##) 23 April 2024

042057 “Z-)\EF “T-)\E
MA-+MmA EH:#EH%

2
MA-+=H
Daisy Lan Lan Daisy Lan Lan 4,400,000 - - - 4,400,000  HK$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
Guo (Note) Guo (&) 23 April 2024

042087 “E-N\F “Z-)\E
MA-+ME MWA-TMAZ

“ECRE
MA-+=H
Stephen Znhen Hang  Stephen Zhen Hang 4,400,000 - - - 4400,000 HK$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
Guo (Note) Guo (fr&F) 23 April 2024

042087 “E-N\F “5-)\F
MA-ZtNE MA-t+EEZ

“T-RE

mA-+=AH

Other employees ~ EHES 18,600,000 - - - 18,600,000  HK$0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016
to

21 February 2022

0.285% T i S I

“B-+-R ZR-{zHZ

28,300,000 - - (300,000) 28,000,000  HK$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
23 April 2024

0420t “E-)\E “T-)\E

MA-+MmA Eﬂziﬂﬁé

=

mA-t=4
Sub-total Nt 60,100,000 - - (300,000) 59,300,000
Total @t 80,700,000 - - (300,000) 80,400,000
Note: Mr. Guo is the executive Director, Chairman and a Wizt HEERARBZHTES *
substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. Amika & K EBRE - L & Amika Lan
Lan E Guo, Ms. Sandy Lan Hua Guo, Ms. Daisy Lan Lan E GuoZ T - Sandy Lan Hua Guo
Guo and Mr. Stephen Zhen Hang Guo are associates of #Z 4 - Daisy Lan Lan GuoZ & K&
Mr. Guo. Stephen Zhen Hang Guo’t4E A

FTEZBEA-
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

b) Convertible Bonds

On 30 January 2019, a 5-year convertible bonds (the
“CB") with principal amount of HK$500 million was
issued to Primary Partner, which is wholly-owned by Mr.
Guo, at interest rate of 1% per annum with conversion
rights to convert into a maximum of 1,213,592,233
shares of the Company at conversion price of HK$0.412
per share.

Details of the CB are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE GROUP

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of
the employee’s merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees of the Group,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” above and note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

Other than operating the statutory mandatory provident fund
scheme for Hong Kong employees and participating in social
insurance for its employees in the PRC in accordance with
the relevant PRC regulations, the Group has not operated any
other retirement benefits schemes for the Group’s employees.
Details of the Group's retirement benefit scheme in operation
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.

Report of the Directors
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BREHBR 2

b) W#RES
RZB—-—NAF—-—AR=+H &2Q7
MF L E WA ZPrimary Partner
BOTRFHIRRES ([TRRE
%) - A4 %4500,000,000/ 7T F
FER1% W EE R AERER
BRBMH0LNBETEREARNARS
1,213,592,233% I 17 °

AR E S 2 FHIE RN AR EFES
B IEIRRMIFE29

BEROIERI 2ZH

R EXARBRABRAESMEESE
SV RBEZFTFE+-A=+—H81L
FEZAEMARRE NRR S EEANEA
A EET A B BEARRESRA
REBAARBSEMEMEABEZ K
ek ERERE M

AR B 2 B R R KRR AU ET
£

7R S B 7 5 BN B SR AR BB B R R
NAER -BEERADABRERE L H
BEHMESgnT YERHADAZ
MR ES EARARTLEDIBAE
7%

ARAREERMBRAERT S LB ES A
SEEERREES  FBEHEN X [HBhE
2] — R AMERE M RKRME28 -

BRARBEEBREEZTAMNEAERE
2 MR RAEERATBESRE
HEeRBIN AEETEALAEBEREE IR
HAAEMEMRKENGE - AEBEEZ
E-EFF+ A=+ —HIFEEH IR
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FF3 e
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EEEHES

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant subsequent event undertaken by the
Group after 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices
is set out in the Corporate Governance Report accompanying
the annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
INFORMATION AND DIRECTOR’S INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors and other officers, for the time being acting in
relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed
duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year ended 31
December 2020, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers. The
level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a prorata basis to
the existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the best knowledge of the Directors, it
is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each independent
non-executive Director, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the audit process and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee which comprised Mr. Chan
Yee Ping, Michael, Ms. Ma Shujuan and Mr. Zheng Yurui
being independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the
accompanying financial statements prior to their publication.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by Deloitte.
Deloitte will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Guo Jiadi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYREBEE®RES

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA SANDI HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 90 to 260, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBEBRES

BREZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FREZERERBERMOBENE  RE
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the HRAVMERRNERRAEEENEIR-
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EUHEEEARMERERESAVBEHRE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the FHEESREERIE R TeHELE1l
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming EREHEER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
BREZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRNAEERARELREE

Valuation of investment properties

REYHEEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, combined with the estimates associated with
determining the fair value. As disclosed in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, the investment
properties of the Group which are shopping malls,
hotels, office units, commercial units, kindergartens
and car parking spaces in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") amounted to RMBS8,681,440,000
as at 31 December 2020, representing 32% of
the Group's total assets. During the year ended 31
December 2020, change in fair value upon transfer
from inventories of properties to investment properties
of RMB82,858,000 and change in fair value of
investment properties of RMB18,161,000 were
recognised in the profit or loss. In addition, change in
fair value of properties under development and right-
of-use assets upon transfer to investment properties
of RMB401,960,000 were recognised in other
comprehensive income.

BB REMEREREFEREZETE RARK
BWMEZEREBBESYBRRLERKR UK
BEERAFEEBZGE -WEE T BREWMT17M
BE - R_T_TF+_A=+—H BXEEZE
EMERRPEARKLNE ([FE]) 2EDES -
BIE PHABL BEBL PHEEREECLARK
8,681,440,0007L " 1f EEBEREEZ32% -V H
ZE_T_EFF_A=+-HIEFE BVERE
BREREMEROQTEEEHARES2,858000
TREEMEATFEZSHARK18,161,000L 2R
BRER L RNEREREMERERTYER
EHREEENRNFEZHARKL401,960,000LER
Hip 2 E W R

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of the investment
properties included:

BPMARTHEREMENGREAERTNERFEHE:

o Understanding the management’s process for
reviewing and evaluating the work of the Valuer;

o THRERBEMEHNKTAGEMN IERBNIE
52

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
o GIAMERBEES REHRFHES:

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer
about the valuation techniques, the performance
of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted in the valuations; and

e MAEMTHREBGEREF MEMSHKR -
HERRANEANRR
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BYREBEE®RES

Key Audit Matters (continued)

FARELEE (&)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEREREE BPERRnAEERAREERSBE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEE

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated e Evaluating the reasonableness of the significant
at fair value based on valuations performed by unobservable inputs and the accuracy of the
an independent professional qualified valuer not source data adopted by the management of the
connected with the Group (the “Valuer”). The fair Group and the Valuer by comparing them, on a
value of the completed investment properties and sample basis, to existing tenancy profiles, publicly
investment properties under construction were available information of similar comparable
determined by adopting the direct comparison properties.

approach and dependent on the analysis of recent o FFEEATAEREASENAEEAR &
market sales evidence of similar properties. Details HERERGEMAKAZREE 2 ERIE -5
of the valuation techniques and key inputs used EAEAME TS EBEREEE L BRER
in the valuations are disclosed in note 17 to the ZHEBHEEMRR  AHREREITHER

consolidated financial statements.

FTE BESEEMNKREMFEHERHE E5EEE
BEMNBLEESERMER ([HER])ETHM
BRAFEIER EXRKRENERERRENEZ
NFEDRAEELEL  REBEBEYE TS
HEBBOWNETE - MEMAGBERMNTREZH A
BHFBEREEVBREMT1I7HE-
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
HRELEE(F)

Key audit matter

BEELEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBEBRES

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMELSNAEERREZSE

Valuation of inventories of properties

WHkFEMRE

We identified the valuation of the Group’'s
inventories of properties as a key audit matter
due to the significant estimates involved in the
determination of net realisable value (the “NRV")
of these properties. As disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had
completed properties for sale of RMB1,371,870,000
and properties under development for sale
of RMB12,528,583,000 (the “inventories of
properties”) as at 31 December 2020, which are
situated in the PRC.

BMER EEEVEEFENGHERBREREE
DRBEEZEMHEO A ER)FE ([AI#5H)FE])
B R BRI o ANAR S B S MR M 20T B ER - 10
“EFF+-A=+—RH EBESEEBURFTEH
MEEERTITYEAR1,371,870,0007T & 5 6& %
B Y% AR%12,528,583,000T ([M¥7FE]) -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management of the Group determined
the NRV of the inventories of properties by reference
to the estimated selling prices of the inventories
of properties, which takes into account a number
of factors including prevailing real estate market
conditions in the PRC, estimated selling expenses,
estimated costs to completion, and the sale-related
taxes (if any). Based on management'’s estimation of
the NRV of the inventories of properties, the write-
down of inventories of properties amounted to
RMB7,763,000 as at 31 December 2020.

WA S B MAM T4 KRE - BEEEEEER
BEMEGFENITEEFER 2RBRZEVETED
HErEE HPZRZERRZ  RETENKETE
EMHRR Mt HERX T L2 At RAREE
HEERIE (nE) REBEEEEUYWEFENAZR
FEOES R-E-BFT-A=+ R NEF
EZ MR R ARET,763,0007T

Our procedures in relation to the NRV of the
inventories of properties included:

B EFEN R ERFENEFBRE:

o Obtaining an understanding on the management’s
process of determining of the NRV of the
inventories of properties;

s THREEEBEWEFEAZRFEMNBIE:

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
future costs to completion of the properties,
on a sample basis, by comparing them to the
actual development costs of similar completed
properties of the Group; and

o FHMATEKYENMGMEARKKANEGEE  FXE
MEEZEYERE SEFEHRUCTIVENE
R B AREITHE &

o Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
selling prices used by management with
reference to market prices achieved in the same
projects or by comparable properties, including
an evaluation of the appropriateness of the
comparable properties used by management
of the Group based on our knowledge of the
Group's business and real estate industry in the
PRC.

e Z2ENHFAEBENMEEEBEDBNENTISERT
HEREEANMGHEERNSIEE 25T
it EEEEREEERY BS5EEBLTEE
WETENMBAERNEEDERNEE L
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BYREBEE®RES

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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B

VEZBHBESE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Kuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

meEaREMEEBRSER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-—F_-FF+-H=+—HILFZF

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it it AR¥ T ARETFIT
Revenue Wz
Goods and services 2 n & AR 1% 5 3,107,266 1,825,886
Rental of investment properties EYERSE 5 117,822 115,679
Total revenue A 3,225,088 1,941,565
Cost of sales and services S5 KBRS A AR (2,084,160) (1,322,124)
Gross profit EH 1,140,928 619,441
Other income E AU A 7 3,253 14,709
Other gains and losses Hib iz M B 18 8 74,043 125,490
Change in fair value of WEWE 7 AN T EEH
investment properties 18,161 19,747
Change in fair value upon transfer BY¥FEERTRE
from inventories of properties to MER 2 AN EEE
investment properties 82,858 382,058
Change in fair value of financial BEAFERF AR ([EBEAFE
assets at fair value through HABR ) Z2HBEEEAT
profit or loss (“FVTPL") BEE) - (30,364)
Change in fair value of derivative — AIREHFZHTET A D 2
component of convertible bond NEEZE 48,339 (9,334)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS (195,825) (104,508)
Administrative expenses TR X (213,563) (143,549)
Finance costs & AR 9 (103,065) (139,388)
Share of results of an associate DG — R E AR EE - (11,643)
Profit before tax B 5% Al A 10 855,129 722,659
Income tax expense P15 0 B 52 11 (314,226) (255,477)
Profit for the year NF E 5 A 540,903 467,182
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GEeEEREtEZEKRE R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — = _%Efﬁ‘/—:ﬁz—/—— HIFFE

2020 2019
—g8& -—T-AF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Ff 2t ARMFT ARETT

Other comprehensive income Hth2mEE (%)

(expense)
Item that may be reclassified HigrgeEF D EEER A
subsequently to profit or loss: B
Exchange differences arising on BmEIINHEREECIERZE
translation of foreign operations =8 4,807 (1,524)
Items that will not be reclassified ~— BT @EH D HEEBa 2 H
subsequently to profit or loss: H:
Change in fair value of property, ME  BE LRS- FRAEE
plant and equipment, right-of- ERBRTPYVEERER
use assets and properties under BYER 2 ATEE
development upon transfer to
investment properties 401,960 943,369
Deferred tax arising on change M BB REE ERAEER
in fair value of property, plant ERERDPYFEERER
and equipment, right-of-use BEMER A TFEEEE
assets and properties under 4 2 RIETIE
development upon transfer to
investment properties (100,490) (235,842)

Total comprehensive income

AREREEEWALLE

for the year 847,180 1,173,185
Profit (loss) for the year AT AL EMEAREERN
attributable to: (E518) -
— Owners of the Company A WNEIE Z =N 420,503 482,165
— Non-controlling interests — JEPE AR RE S 120,400 (14,983)
540,903 467,182
Total comprehensive income INTATEEEZERA (FAZ)
(expense) attributable to: 4aEE
— Owners of the Company . NEIEF =N 726,780 1,188,168
- Non-controlling interests — JEPE S RE S 120,400 (14,983)
847,180 1,173,185
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAER
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARESD) 14 8.27 9.70
Diluted (RMB cents) #HE(ARED) 14 5.81 8.89

B =R ARAF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &

At 31 December 2020 WR—-ZE_-ZF

F+—-_HA=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it it AR¥ T ARETFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - RE KRR 15 67,145 42,261
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 16 860,304 1,011,054
Investment properties A= 17 8,681,440 7,451,740
Properties under development EERABYE 18 230,568 279,860
Deferred tax assets REFRIBE E 19 29,231 62,122
9,868,688 8,847,037
Current assets REEE
Inventories of properties MERFE 20 13,900,453 8,849,683
Contract costs BRI 25 72,008 111,150
Trade and other receivables JE L B 3k Kz L fth E U 3008 DA I
and prepayments TET BUIE 21 853,696 940,976
Deposits for land use rights for TEERDWEZ L MERE
properties under development g
for sale 613,944 99,000
Prepaid income tax A TS 116,332 119,582
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZVBEE 22 - 24,889
Amounts due from related companiesfg U £ 3& » &) 538 42(a) 547,106 491,784
Amount due from a non-controlling J& U Fff B 2 &) FE 4 I8 A% 38 5008
shareholder of subsidiary 42(a) 96,594 20,595
Restricted/pledged bank deposits R %] 2R 177K 23 201,570 62,840
Bank balances and cash RITEEHR LIRS 23 838,036 707,276
17,239,739 11,427,775
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JE A5 BR A K B At B 5 5 IB K
and accruals et & A 24 2,297,906 2,303,680
Lease liabilities HEBE 317 774 2,500
Contract liabilities BHBE 25 7,634,981 6,553,298
Income tax payable FEfTFT 1B HL 323,464 153,547
Amounts due to related companies &~ & X &) 508 42(a) 673,392 642,927
Amounts due to non-controlling FEATBY /B A R IEVE AR AR R 3 E
shareholders of subsidiaries 42(a) 72,802 -
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIA 42(a) 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings — due  $R{T R HMEE - —FRE|H
within one year 26 2,958,230 619,493
14,061,175 10,375,071
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZFF|+-H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-8F —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ff#E ARMFT ARETT

Net current assets REBEEFRE 3,178,564 1,052,704
Total assets less current liabilities BEEZAEBABEE 13,047,252 9,899,741
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital N 27 42,881 42,881
Reserves ] 4,629,926 3,902,682
Equity attributable to owners KATEB AEE#EZR
of the Company 4,672,807 3,945,563
Non-controlling interests FEPE IS RE S 233,898 53,969
Total equity R 4,906,705 3,999,532
Non-current liabilities kRBEaE
Lease liabilities HEBE 31 86 607
Amount due to a related company  J&E <t — & Bi 3 A & 5K I8 42(a) 275,000 -
Debt component of convertible bond 7] # J& (& % 7 & 5 29 333,112 322,972
Derivative component of AMREFZITETELS
convertible bond 29 230,798 293,981
Promissory note HHRIR 30 460,809 446,249
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 19 1,369,007 1,225,965
Bank borrowings — due after RITEE - —F&3H
one year 26 5,471,735 3,610,435
8,140,547 5,900,209
13,047,252 9,899,741

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 260 FIOE260B 2 M BHREN T = —
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of F=A+hBEEESH ELBERERET

Directors on 19 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIINEERKRESTGESE:
Guo Jiadi Wang Chao
2003 T
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREaRgBX

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—ZFE_-FTF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLAREARGER
Share-based Property Non-
Share Share  compensation Capital Merger ~ Statutory  Translation Other  revaluation Retained controlling
apital ~ premium reserve reserve - reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Subdtotal  interests Total
Rt HBpAEE & &% HE L i pEEG #8 #ER

B& BE  ZRERE i £ BE BE i i Al it 33 EH
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBO00 AMB000 RMB000 RIMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
NEETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT AR NERFT  ARETT ARETT ARETT JRETr ARETT ARETT ARET
(Note i) Note iy

Note )

At 1 January 2019 37468 534,288 10,707 725 (122490 195,414 (10571) 124,806 - 2105480 3980357 18637 4,0609%
Profit (loss) for the year El - - - - - - - - - 482,165 482,165 14,983) 47,18
Eichange differences arsng on -~ £EJ AR HEL ERZE
transltion o foreign operations - - - - - - (1,524) - - - (1,524) - (1,54)
EIY; Y

Change in air value of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-
Use assets and properties under
development upon transfer to
nvestment properties - - - - - - - - 943,369 - 943,369 - 943,369

Deferred tax arsing on change i~ 913 HERAE ERELE
fair value change of property, JE R
plant, and equipment, rightof- ~ $57
use assets and properties under A
development upon transfer to
investment properties - - - - - - - - (235,84) - (23584) - (235,842)

Total comprehensive (expense) ~ BEERE (FR) hLE
income for the year - - - - - - (1,524) - 107521 482,165 1,188,168 (14,983) 1,173,185

Acquistion of additional interests in & 3£4%]
asubsidiary from non-controllng .2 %1

interests (note 7)) 1,19 64,548 - - - - - (17.470) - - 8113 9,685) 38,588
Recogniton of equiy-setted share- & RE R

based payments (note 26) - - 2640 - - - - - - - 2640 - 2640
Acquisitons of enites under

comman control (note 27()) 4,158 3181 - - (151378) - - - - - (1276750 - (127675
Evercise of shares options 60 1647 (830) - - - - - - - 877 - 877
At 31 December 2019 4,881 833,355 12517 15 (1636.272) 195,414 (12,005 12073% 0757 1581645 3945563 53969 3999532
Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - 40503 40503 120,400 540,903
Exchange differences rising on

translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 4807 - - - 4807 - 4807
Change in far value of rightof- ~ EERAERAEANEER

s assets and poerties under  SRANEE D

development upon transfer to

investment properties - - - - - - - - 401,960 - 401,960 - 401,960
Deferred tax aising on change ~ EERAERAEANEER

nfaraeo ightote  ERENZEL

assetsand poperties under B ZEEHE

development upon transfer to

nvestment properties - - - - - - - - (100490) - (100,490) - 100,490)

Totd comprehensieincome AEF2ANAEE
for the year - - - - - - 4807 - 301470 40503 126,180 120,400 847,180

Capital contrbution from non-
controllng interests (note )
Recognition of equity-settled sharg

- - - - - - - - - - X 3 )

based payments (note 26) - - 464 - - - - - - - 464 - 464
Acquisitions of subsidiaries ; ] )

(note 32) - - - - - - - - - - - 1549 15429
At 31 December 2020 RoB-FE+-A=1-A 4881 833,355 12981 725 (1636270 195,414 (7288 12073% 1008997 3,008,148 4612807 133898 4,906,705
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—FT_-FF+_H=+—HILFE

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve represents deemed contribution from equity
owner regarding to the waiver of loan for funding the
construction of an investment property in 2012.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the share
capital of the combining entities against cash consideration
paid and other considerations issued by the China Sandi
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) upon completion of business
combination under common control.

The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred
from net profit for the year of the subsidiaries established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) charged on the
subsidiaries” PRC statutory financial statements) in accordance
with the relevant PRC laws until the statutory service reaches
50% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve cannot be reduced except for in setting off the
accumulated losses or increasing capital.

The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus account of
the Company, represents the difference arising from the share
premium reduction which was being effective and approved
by the Bermuda Registrar of Companies on 11 May 2016.
Under the share premium reduction, entire amount standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
as at 29 February 2016 in the sum of RMB3,049,440,000 be
reduced, with part of the credit arising therefrom being applied
to offset the accumulated losses of the Company in the sum
of RMB1,824,634,000 in full and the remaining balance of the
credit in the sum of RMB1,224,806,000 being credited to the
other reserve of the Company.

In addition, RMB17,470,000 debited to other reserve of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 represents
the difference between the amount of consideration shares
issued and the carrying amount of non-controlling interest
acquired plus the waiver of amount due to non-controlling
shareholder of RMB38,588,000 as detailed in note 27(ii). The
waiver of amount due to non-controlling shareholder is a non-
cash transaction of the Group.

The amount represents capital contribution from a non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiary by contributed its share of
additional share capital of RMB44,100,000.

Ff &t -

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

BENEEBERERBEAZGIETE JIH
REBR_T-—_FRER—AREVE
BEMER-

Aot A T ER Z BN EHE =ik
BRERRB ([AREDRELBZESH 2
XAtz B TRENEREMLE
BHREZMzZZ8-

ORI W B IE IR IBAERE P BUR RN P &
ARFME (THE ) B SZH M8 R B4
NAFNTER S ZeBERIBWNE
REWHBDEEMBRERING  BERE
IR ERIZHIE R R M & AH50% 7
1k o R IAE 5 RET B R R IE A
EERBIERD -

Hihf@E (BARBI 2 EHABE)ER
MRERVEENEZRE RZT—Fh
A+ HEBREQARGZEMERERILE
A e IR R ER AR 1005 B - BB A A R
HEEER-_Z—X<XF-_A=-t+hnBZ
2 ER3EBREE3,049,440,00058 7T - AL E A
ZHEBEFBESL S ARBEREARRZ
Z:1E57181,824,634,000/8 7T © 84 MR
181,224,806,000/% JT & A ZS 2 &) H 4ty
1o

N BEZZT-NAF+_A=+—H1t
FEAEMBEBENR 2 ARYE17,470,000
TLIEE BITRER N © B EE S IEER
Wz AR TEE NP 5E27 () FTEt il 2 FA S FE 1
FEFE R A B 5K 18 A R #538,588,0007T 2 =
oM IR IEIE IR AR R SR Ty AR B JE
RERF e

ZEBRERBFERMBATARRZ
TE - BEBHEEDSEREIBRAARE
44,100,0007T °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—ZFE_-FTF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—ECEF — &
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥Frx ARBF T
Operating activities RETH
Profit before tax B 50 Bl Al 855,129 722,659
Adjustments for: T
Finance costs Bl & AR 103,065 139,388
Bank interest income RITH BUWA (1,757) (3,046)
Interest income from loan receivables FEUE 7 2 A B g A - (8,657)
Dividend income from financial assets 1AV {Et ABHZ 2 B EER
at FVTPL BIA - (436)
Share of results of an associate DE—FEBE N R ELE - 11,643
Depreciation of property, plant M- WEREETE
and equipment 9,887 13,910
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 29,472 29,338
Reversal of write-down of inventories BOoMBRDERE
of properties (247) -
Equity-settled share-based payments HEEE UG AEE 464 2,640
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR K= (19,638) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - WFER&HE K=
and equipment - (41)
(Gain) loss on disposal of an HEREWME (M=) BiE
investment property (2,975) 235
Gain on disposal of interest in HER—HEBE AR 2ER
an associate - (151,380)
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERATEFARR ZVBE
at FVTPL 2= 2 W - (239)
Change in fair value of - E AN AL
investment properties (18,161) (19,747)
Change in fair value upon transfer S| #@%Tf"ji%&%&é%%ﬁﬁz
from inventories of properties to NEEED
investment properties (82,858) (382,058)
Change in fair value of financial assets & A FEFABHEZHBEER
at FVTPL FEEZH - 30,364
Change in fair value of derivative MR EFZITEIABS 2R
component of convertible bond FEEH (48,339) 9,334
Exchange (gain) loss bE X, (e ) BB (62,888) 25,402
Operating cash flows before movements &LE@ &4 B ATz KLRE R E
in working capital 761,154 419,309
Increase in inventories of properties MEFEEEM (4,387,990) (1,757,997)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other FE UL BE K E b E U FOIE FL
receivables and prepayments (1) 155,279 (233,365)
Increase in deposits for land use rights foriF €2 R M E 7 t i F AER S
properties under development for sale &1 (613,944) (62,067)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other & BR A Ko E b & A5 3008 % JE 51
payables and accruals A OfL) 80 (375,681) 677,169
Decrease (increase) in contract costs B RRAR A (3E) 39,142 (33,721)
Increase in contract liabilities ERBEEM 1,075,223 1,831,572
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRZUBEERD 24,647 6,192
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—F_-FF+_H=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—g-®E T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FRT ARETT

Cash (used in) generated from operations #& &2 7% (TR ) TSR (3,322,170) 847,092
Income taxes paid Frisfi e (65,553) (115,791)
Net cash (used in) from REFE (A BREFE

operating activities (3.387,723) 731,301
Investing activities REEH
Bank interest received B F B 1,757 3,046
Interest received from loan receivables  EWE 2~ 2 W F & - 8,657
Dividend received from financial assets & AF B AEBZ U HKEEZ

at FVTPL 2 AR 2 - 436
Repayment from loan receivables BEEWER - 127,790
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant  HEW¥  HE LR EZ TEHIE

and equipment - 101
Proceeds on disposal of HEREME 2 FTERIE

investment properties 12,675 1,120
Proceeds on disposal of interest in HER—HBER R NER G

an associate A - 346,782
Advance to related companies e BEE N B FRIE (450,299) (442,802)
Repayment from related companies R /NGIEES RO 394,977 312,860
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder &1} Bff B A 7] JE42 A% A% 58 24 30

of subsidiary (116,994) (20,595)
Repayment from a non-controlling FEFERE I B A R IR 2 B 5K

shareholder of subsidiary 40,995 -
Placement of restricted/pledged FESR,BEMERITER

bank deposits (206,213) (49,816)
Withdrawal of restricted/pledged REERSBRFRITER

bank deposits 67,483 77,320
Purchase of property, plant EBEYE BWEREE

and equipment (5,399) (13,930)
Payments for investment properties WE Y ET (377,564) -
Payments for construction of properties ZERZERE R WE 7 K

under development (43,200) (234,396)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WE—ENB AR RS ML T8

a subsidiary (8,215) (44,056)
Net cash inflow on disposals HEWBARIER 2R RAFE

of subsidiaries 6,981 -
Refund of deposits paid for properties RERBEERMELENZIRS

under development - 50,000
Payments for right-for-use assets T A E R (2) (92)
Net cash (used in) from RETE (FTA)MEBRELFE

investing activities (683,018) 122,425
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—ZFE_-FTF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ABR®F T
Financing activities AMEEE
Interest paid for bank RITREMEEZERMTE
and other borrowings (442,945) (404,246)
Interest paid for bonds payable EREHRZEMFE - (379)
Interest paid for lease liabilities HEABEZENFE (111) (179)
Repayment of bank and other borrowings {Ei&R1T R HEMEEZ 2 F & (1,262,673)  (4,039,501)
New bank and other borrowings raised FT1ZRT R EMEE 5,506,360 4,201,932
Repayments of bonds payable EEENES - (9,698)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEAE (2,378) (1,830)
Capital contribution from REFFIERERZTE
non-controlling interests 44,100 -
Payments for acquisition of entities W B SRl 12 I B B8 2 1 3K
under common control (181,789) (219,745)
Proceeds from exercise of share options  17{¥ k& J& 4 ~ P15 318 - 1,707
Advance from non-controlling RPN 2 HQHxﬁim
shareholders of subsidiaries 163,354 -
Repayments to non-controlling 1B 3& M8 A R FEIE AR AR R K
shareholders of subsidiaries (90,552) (239,784)
Repayment to a director M — %%%E%\ - (286,200)
Advance to related companies e B E A B FRIE (4,331,003) (1,039,853)
Repayments from related companies BENT TE}&W\IE 4,794,332 1,482,928
Net cash from (used in) METHFFAREFHE
financing activities 4,196,695 (554,848)
Net increase in cash ReRkBREEEEMFE
and cash equivalents 125,954 298,878
Cash and cash equivalents at the FOzReRkRREEE
beginning of year 707,276 409,498
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes #MNESFE R &) 2 2 & 4,806 (1,100)
Cash and cash equivalents at theend SR 2R ERBEEEE
of year 838,036 707,276
Analysis of the balance of cash RERBREEELHRDN
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHNIRE 838,036 707,276
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
and ultimate parent is United Century International
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI”). The ultimate controlling party is Mr. Guo Jiadi.
The address of registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
Room 2113, 21st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 43.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
"Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
“"Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8”Definition of Material”

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS
3 "Definition of a Business”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments clarify that while
businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required
for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as
a business. To be considered a business, an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any missing
inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs.
The amendments also introduce additional guidance that
helps to determine whether a substantive process has
been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. Under the optional concentration
test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar assets. The gross assets under
assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects
of deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to
apply the optional concentration test is available on
transaction-by-transaction basis.

The Group has elected to apply the optional
concentration test on the acquisitions of Hanzhongxu
Sandi Real Estate Development Company Limited
("Hanzhongxu Sandi”) and Baoji Xingyaocheng
Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Baoji
Xingyaocheng”) as detailed in Note 32 and concluded
that such acquisitions do not constitute a business.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 - Phase 2°

and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)!

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 -

20202

Amendments to HKFRSs

1 02 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 20
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3”Reference to the
Conceptual Framework”

The amendments:

update a reference in HKFRS 3”Business
Combinations” so that it refers to the “Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018" issued
in June 2018 (the "Conceptual Framework™)
instead of “Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements” (replaced by
the “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2010" issued in October 2010);

add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of HKAS 37"Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21"”Levies”, an acquirer applies HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed
in a business combination; and
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-—FL_FTF+_-_HA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3”Reference to the
Conceptual Framework” (continued)

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) If the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the reporting
period, even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date; and

1 04 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 20
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)" (continued)

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if
the entity recognises the option separately as an
equity instrument applying HKAS 32 “Financial
Instruments”: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s outstanding
convertible instruments include counterparty conversion
options that do not meet equity instruments classification
by applying HKAS 32. The Group classified as current
or non-current based on the earliest date in which the
Group has the obligation to redeem these instruments
through cash settlement. The host debt component
is measured at amortised cost with carrying amount
of RMB333,112,000 and the derivative component
(including the conversion options) is measured at fair
value with carrying amount of RMB230,798,000 as at
31 December 2020, both of which are classified as non-
current as set out in Note 29. Upon the application
of the amendments, in addition to the obligation to
redeem through cash settlement, the transfer of equity
instruments upon the exercise of the conversion options
that do not meet equity instruments classification also
constitute settlement of the convertible instruments.
Given that the conversion options are exercisable
anytime, the host liability and the derivative component
amounting to RMB563,910,000 would be reclassified
to current liabilities as the holders have the option to
convert within twelve months.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)" (continued)

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group’s other liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of the
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 REGEVBHBRZEE
statements (continued) (&)

For financial instruments and investment properties HRUARTFEETRHNALRE

which are transacted at fair value and a valuation BRI LAGE A A B R Y 8 A B

technique that unobservable inputs is to be used BREERNETITENSR

to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the TAMKEMENS 2H-HE
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial BT - LAEE 5 RHER
recognition the results of the valuation technique - MERTTHNAERENZSHE

equals the transaction price. %o

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair AN s BHREmMs A FE

value measurements are categorised into Level 1, FEREBA T ERE8H AR

2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs AEREEM AT EFENEA

to the fair value measurements are observable HEBEHHBEEBNEZUSEARSE

and the significance of the inputs to the fair value — R EZRRB=R FHEWN
measurement in its entirety, which are described as ™

follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) s FHWMABEBERERR
in active markets for identical assets or = BB A LAES A FE R
liabilities that the entity can access at the BEXBEREGRMSZ
measurement date; WE (REFHE) -

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted s FAWMABEBEREMREE
prices included within Level 1, that are o B 15 B B ok B i ] B
observable for the asset or liability, either RIZBABE(E—HRRA
directly or indirectly; and BIERRERIN) &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the s FE-RHABEBREEN
asset or liability. BEMNTAEHERE A

15 o
3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 FEGHHE

Basis of consolidation HEHEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate e BmRBEARARKAEM

the financial statements of the Company and ZHlcERBREMNBAR 2

entities controlled by the Company and its BHRR -EARAFEUTER

subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Ry - Al R &) ERAS 4% ) 4

Company:

e has power over the investee; o HHBREFITEES:

1 08 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 20




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date of the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries
between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9”Financial
Instruments”.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can
elect to apply an optional concentration test, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.
The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under
assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the
effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase
price first to financial assets/financial liabilities at
the respective fair values, the remaining balance of
the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the “Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements” (replaced
by the “Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting” issued in October 2010).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—E_-FF+_-_HA=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangement of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangement
of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’'s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving businesses under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining businesses first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain
purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes the results
of each of the combining businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
businesses had been combined at the beginning
of the previous reporting period or when they first
came under common control, whichever is shorter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied. i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good and
service (for a bundle of goods and services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

REEFEHHUA
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performance obligation if one of the following o T B A T R R
criteria is met:
e the customer simultaneously receives and s EPRAKEBEREARRF

WER OB AR B B QA
M Fas

consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

AEBEZENEHAIEK
BREFNAREEDR
B ZEE X

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances °
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

AEB 2 BHIL KRB EZY
AEBAEEERAGEZE
MRS H A R BT
RUDESCEHEA R
HATRERESCREL
BBy 2 FRIA

o the Group’s performance does not create an o
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
goods or services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

For sales of properties, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains the control of the completed
property when the key was delivered to the
customers and the customers have obtained the
ownership of the property. The deposit received for
sale of properties are presented as contract liabilities
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

For provision of property management and related
services, the Group agrees the fixed rate for services
with the customers upfront. As the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance, the revenue
is recognised over time when the performance
obligations are satisfied. Monthly payment of the
transaction is invoiced to the customers in advance
each month.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Revenue from hotel operation includes hotel room
revenue and food and beverage and other hotel
revenue. Hotel room income is recognised over the
stay of guests. The Group receives deposit from
customers when the hotel room reservation is made.
The deposits received from the contracts prior to
meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are recognised as customer deposits under the
Group’s contract liabilities. Food and beverage
revenue is recognised at a point in time when
control of the goods and services is transferred to
customers. Other hotel income mainly comprises
ancillary service income which is recognised at
a point in time when control of the services is
transferred to customers or over the service period,
depending on the terms of the contracts.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by
the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—E_-FF+_-_HA=+—HIFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Existence of significant financing component
(continued)

For advance payments received from customers
before the transfer of the associated goods or
services in which the Group adjusts for the promised
amount of consideration for a significant financing
component, the Group applies a discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. The relevant interest expenses
during the period between the advance payments
were received and the transfer of the associated
goods and services are accounted for on the same
basis as other borrowing costs.

Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract
with a customer that it would not have incurred if
the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises sales commissions as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 TESHBE(£)
KEEFAHWA (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

BERF I HEGR A < 518 T 2

KIBH & (T8 Z

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method B X

TRERBORTNEE RS
NERTE BB REEFELS
EHETEFPNERIREE

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of B HEEHNTAHERHNE D
the goods or services transferred to the customer SR EEERBMA B E
to date relative to the remaining goods or services XEERMAEEREEE MR
promised under the contract, that best depict the BT BB
Group's performance in transferring control of

goods or services.

EREETTER WMASEAEE
BHEAEELZSRIECTRLZ
BHEEEEZHESEINE
ARKEEASEERAARR

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right
to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Group's performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue

in the amount to which the Group has the right to 2 RERIERIBA
invoice.

Leases HE

Definition of a lease HETZ

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.
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mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases (e.g. offices and dormitory) that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model,
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
or inventory as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property and inventory are presented
within “investment properties” and “inventories of
properties” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FERFHEE (&)

Leases (continued) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued) ANEBERABA (&)

Lease modifications MEEE]

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a 1|%ﬁHjIELE{T’|\%§R'EIJ$;,’€}|%

separate lease if: HEBTER—EHEBHEEA

iE -

e the modification increases the scope of the ° E%IE?{%}E&U@;@%M@FE—
lease by adding the right to use one or more IQQ%IQTHE?QEZE gl
underlying assets; and KIEBAHERE: &

e the consideration for the leases increases by y igﬂ?ﬂ%Zjﬁ{g 1B ?JJL,UZ
an amount commensurate with the stand- ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ/\‘\ﬁﬂﬁﬁéwﬁ
alone price for the increase in scope and %%ﬁfﬁﬁ%;% &fﬁ}iﬁ%
any appropriate adjustments to that stand- FrEB :Zn"]z\'ﬁ‘//ubﬁﬁfff?%
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the EREL 2 EAEEH
particular contract. Bo

For a lease modification that is not accounted for ?ﬁi@ﬁf’ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ%]_\,ﬂﬁz
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease %ﬁ%ﬂ%}%ﬁfﬁ 5\ ' ?ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
liability based on the lease term of the modified Tﬁﬁz*ﬁﬁlﬁ’iﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬁé\ﬂ%ﬁ%
lease by discounting the revised lease payments x&?%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁiﬁ%f@ﬁiﬁf&
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of & iﬂﬁﬁfﬂ UEHERE
the modification. BfE-

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease Zlf%z@ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ)ﬂ%ifg%

liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to TTTE{EEE% FAHE OB EET

the relevant right-of-use asset. ER
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mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value
model. Variable lease payments for operating leases
that depend on an index or a rate are estimated
and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as revenue
when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FERFHEE (&)
Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessor (continued) AEEERHBEA ()
Lease modification HEER]
Changes in considerations of lease contracts that $J§E§ﬁﬁ{%ﬁ&ﬁ#é@i§é\
were not part of the original terms and conditions RNREZBHARAEERE -
S S A =3 8 F =]
are accounted for as lease modifications, including BREBARERIRDHE MEEH
lease incentives provided through forgiveness or HFH & B2 -
reduction of rentals.
The Group accounts for a modification to an ?%ﬁ%&%fﬂ%%aﬁzgﬂé}?gi
operating lease as a new lease from the effective 'XKE'/H\?@@{/EE%*MHEAEE ﬂﬁé}
date of the modification, considering any prepaid or ﬁfﬁgﬁiﬁ?é"jgﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁgi
accrued lease payments relating to the original lease ﬁ%\ﬁﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%\m%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ
as part of the lease payments for the new lease. — &b e
Foreign currencies S
In preparing the financial statements of each E’;‘%E%%%1%U%§i&}%2ﬂﬂ%$&
NES -8 NI TN N
individual group entity, transactions in currencies %ET’L“Z%%EEJQEE'\ML{{@Z
other than the functional currency of that entity Eﬁgw'\%)\ﬁﬁzx%&?i?
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates Egﬂzfﬁﬂ&fg%uﬁﬁiﬂi"m*&
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the %ﬁﬁﬁﬂi*%ﬁl\ﬁ%ﬁﬂ@Z;%ﬁ?
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, }gﬁ%ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁiﬁﬁzlﬁ%%uiaﬁﬁ
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies BmE-
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement %%&ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁglﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
of monetary items, and on the re-translation of %ZE?§§E!B§E$E}1%2}E
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in m R R

the period in which they arise.
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mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

The change in functional currency of the Company
was applied prospectively from the date of
change. All items were translated into RMB at
the exchange rate on that date. The cumulative
currency translation differences which had arisen
from the translation of foreign operations up to the
date of the change in functional currency were not
reclassified from equity to profit or loss until the
disposal of the relevant operations.

The change in presentation currency of the
Company was applied retrospectively, as if the new
presentation currency had always been applied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income".
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properly over time, rather than through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income t axes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administration purposes,
are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group transfers a property from inventories
of properties to property, plant and equipment
when there is a change in use, which is evidenced
by commencement of own use. Any difference
between the fair value of property at the date
of transfer and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Group transfers a property from property, plant
and equipment to investment property when there
is a change of use to hold the property to earn
rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for its own use in the ordinary course of business,
which is evidence by the commencement of an
operating lease to another party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. No depreciation is provided for
properties under development. On completion,
properties under development are transferred at the
carrying value to property, plant and equipment.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration
is allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation including
properties under construction for such purposes.

Investment properties also include leased properties
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part
of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

The Group transfers an inventory of property to
investment property when there is a change in
use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, which is evidenced
by the inception of an operating lease to another
party. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

If a property, plant and equipment, a property under
development or a leasehold land classified as “right-
of-use assets” becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as it evidenced by
end of owner-occupation, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, and contract
costs to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-F -_FH#F+ _H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs (continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss
for assets capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, the
Group assesses and recognises any impairment loss
on other assets related to the relevant contracts
in accordance with applicable standards. Then,
impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised as
contract costs is recognised to the extent the
carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive
in exchange for related goods or services less
the costs which relate directly to providing those
goods or services that have not been recognised as
expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs
are then included in the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit to which they belong for the
purpose of evaluating impairment of that cash-
generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-—FL_FTF+_-_HA=+—HILFE

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories of properties

Properties under development for sale which
are intended to be sold upon completion of
development and properties for sale are classified
as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in
accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-
use assets, properties under development for sale/
properties for sale are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
specific identification basis including allocation of
the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net
realisable value (“NRV") represents the estimated
selling price for the properties less estimated cost to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are
transferred to properties for sale upon completion.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-F -_FH#F+ _H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUGEUBHRRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TESTEHEX 8
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FERFHEE (&)
Financial instruments (continued) EET A (&)
Financial assets HMEEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial
assets (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related companies, a non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiary, restricted/
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
and other items (financial guarantees contracts),
which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables without significant financing
component. The ECL on these assets are collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instruments as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
guantitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

J an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk for a
particular financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—E_-FF+_-_HA=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

32 FEERER(H)
EMITA(#)
MBGEE (&)
MBEENBEV KRG LR

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) the
financial instrument has a low risk of default,
ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
financial asset to have low credit risk when
it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade' as per globally understood
definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitments is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the changes in
the risk that the specified debtor will default
on the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

3. MAEGREYBEERRZEER
FEESHBEER @)

3.2 TESHBE(£E)

ST A (#Z)

B EE (%)

PIEEENB BN RE LR

FORAEITRENH 2 HAb

HE ZRE (&)

() EERBKXELEF (&)
ANEBFHERB AR
EERBRETEZE NN
EEMR R IR EE R
EIERIEET MERE
8 122 £ 5 S 72 B 480 HA Al
BRI EERBRBELN-

(i) BHOEE
FABEERREIEM
FAKRERSEANRE
P 3 A SN R SRR P 1S & FY
BN BEBANKARER
HERA (BEAEE)X
2 850R (1 &5 KA
SEMEONEMNERR)
B AIHREBAOEMF-

3% E AT 101 - 481
T & 0 #183890H « &
EESREDEERL
BIFAEEEELELE
BT ROENEARE
EMENEEE REMA -
HEESIER

HE=EERERA R 20205 8




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred. Evidence of
credit-impairment includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession
that the lender would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the counterparty has been placed under
liqguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using
a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a lease receivable, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with
the cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the
Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed, the ECL is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts
for which the effective interest rate cannot
be determined, the Group will apply a
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables from
contracts with customers are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration
past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes
into consideration the following characteristics
when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

J Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each separate group continues to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts,
the Group recognises an impairment loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount with the
exception of trade and other receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGCEHBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (#)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is
a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability
held for trading or contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9
permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at
FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability's credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. For financial liabilities that contain embedded
derivatives, such as convertible bond, the changes in
fair value of the embedded derivatives are excluded
in determining the amount to be presented in
other comprehensive income. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss;
instead, they are transferred to retained profits
upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies, non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and a
director, bank and other borrowings, promissory
note and debt component of convertible bond are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEHBEBRRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHEE (2)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Convertible bond

A conversion option that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component
and derivative components are recognised at fair
value. In subsequent periods, the debt component
of the convertible bond is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

MBGEVBRRZEER
FESHBEE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 FEEHBE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Convertible bond (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bond are allocated to the debt and
derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of
the debt portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible bond using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
As a result, the Group has recognised the deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of all investment properties as
the Group is subject to enterprise income tax (“EIT"). The
carrying amount of deferred taxation on change in fair
value of investment properties at 31 December 2020 was
RMB1,246,830,000 (2019: RMB1,122,249,000).
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties of RMB8,681,440,000 (2019:
RMB7,451,740,000) are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). In determining
the fair value, the Valuer has based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates of market
conditions. The management has excised their judgment
to determine the relevant assumptions that used in the
valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Net realisable value of inventories of properties

Inventories of properties are stated at the lower of
the cost and net realisable value. The directors of the
Company make significant judgments in determining
the NRV of these inventories of properties. The NRV of
inventories of properties is the estimated selling prices
less estimated selling expenses, estimated future costs
to completion and sale-related taxes (if any), which
are determined based on prevailing real estate market
conditions in the PRC.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories of properties
(continued)

Based on the experience of the directors of the Company
and the nature of the inventories of properties, the
directors of the Company determine the NRV of these
inventories of properties by reference to the estimated
market prices of properties, which takes into account a
number of factors including recent prices achieved by
similar properties in the same project or similar projects,
and the prevailing and forecasted real estate market
conditions in the PRC. The directors of the Company
estimate the future costs to completion of the inventories
of properties by reference to the actual development
costs of other similar completed projects of the Group,
adjusted by certain current market data.

If there is an increase in future costs to completion or a
decrease in estimated selling price, the NRV will decrease
and this may result in impairment of the inventories of
properties. Such impairment requires the use of judgment
and estimates. If the expectation is different from the
original estimate, it would impact the carrying value of
the inventories of properties in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

In addition, given the volatility of the property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher
or lower than that estimated at the end of the reporting
period. Any difference between actual outcome and the
estimates would affect profit or loss in future.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
inventories of properties amounted to RMB13,900,453,000
(2019: RMBS8,849,683,000), net of write-down of
RMB7,763,000 (2019: RMB8,010,000) located in the PRC.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax
varies amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities
of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have not
finalised their LAT calculations and payments with the
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
estimate is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The
Group recognised the LAT based on management’s best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts t hat were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the periods in which such
tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses and temporary differences
can be utilised. Significant management estimation is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. As at 31 December 2020, deferred
tax assets of RMB29,231,000 (2019: RMB62,122,000)
have been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables
and amounts due from related companies and a
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables from contracts with customers.
The provision rates are based on aging of debtors as
groupings of various debtors taking into consideration
the Group’s historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

Trade receivables from rental income, other receivables,
amounts due from related companies and a non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiary are assessed for
ECL individually and the provision rates are based on the
historical default rates, past due status and the financial
capability of individual debtor taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue cost or effort.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade and other receivables and amounts due from
related companies and a non-controlling shareholder
of subsidiary are disclosed in notes 35, 21 and 42(a)
respectively.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

5. REVENUE 5. W&

Disaggregation of revenue Wi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-_ZTHF+-A=+-HILHFE

Property Property
development investment Total
Segments o MEBRE MERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFT AR¥Trn AR®FR

Types of goods or service & & &RIEEH!

Sales of properties ES R 3,096,792 - 3,096,792
Property management and ~ ¥ &2 M ABEE R KA
related fee income - 10,474 10,474

Revenue from contracts with KRB & F & 49Uk A

customers 3,096,792 10,474 3,107,266
Rental income GEE AN - 117,822 117,822
3,096,792 128,296 3,225,088
Geographical market i & %
Mainland China 2NEN 75 3,096,792 128,296 3,225,088
Timing of revenue Wy 355 e 52 B
recognition
At a point in time A B (E A R 24 3,096,792 - 3,096,792
Over time - 10,474 10,474
3,096,792 10,474 3,107,266
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. Wz )
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wi o R ()
Set out below is the reconciliation of revenue from TXHEHINKERFA L) 2 W5 5P
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in ERFIFEN SRR

the segment information:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-EF+-A=+—-HLHFE

Property Property
development investment Total
Segments Al MERRE MERE BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%® T AR¥ T AR¥ T
Revenue disclosed in 72 EBE BLFT B Y Wk =
segment information
External customer HNERE P 3,096,792 128,296 3,225,088
Less: rental income B e WA - (117,822) (117,822)
Revenue from contracts KEBEPALHWA
with customers 3,096,792 10,474 3,107,266
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W (4)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wz o R (4E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NE+-_A=+—HLEE

Property Property Hotel
development  investment operation Total
Segments A WERR  WERE  EEYE fst

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBETIL ARETILT ARETT ARETT

1w O

Types of goods or service & @R R EHI

Sales of properties MEHE 1,787,352 - - 1,787,352
Hotel operation income BIEEERA
— Hotel accommodation —BEEE - - 13,122 13,122
- Catering service and other — Z &L IR % M & b
hotel income B JE WA - - 15,822 15,822
Property management and MEEEREBERKRA
related fee income - 9,590 - 9,590
Revenue from contracts REREAHWA
with customers 1,787,352 9,590 28,944 1,825,886
Rental income HeE WA - 115,679 - 115,679
1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Geographical market i &5
Mainland China YN 3 1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Timing of revenue I 25 22 By
recognition
At a point in time A R 2 1,787,352 - 15,822 1,803,174
Over time A — BB - 9,590 13,122 22,712
1,787,352 9,590 28,944 1,825,886
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in
the segment information:

&3¢ ))

WD ()
TXHIIKABTE A L2 W05 5
BRI TR D ER Y -

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NF+_A=1t—HILFE

Property Property Hotel
development  investment operation Total
Segments aR: | mEER  WERE  BEEZE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT AREFT AREFT
Revenue disclosed in STHERFREEN KSR
segment information
External customer Y= 1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Less: rental income A E WA - (115,679) - (115,679)
Revenue from contracts REREFPEHKA
with customers 1,787,352 9,590 28,944 1,825,886

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, the relevant properties specified in the
contracts are based on customer’s specifications with no
alternative use. Taking into consideration of the relevant
contract terms, the management concluded that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers.
Revenue from sales of properties is therefore recognised
when the completed property is transferred to customers,
being at the point when the key was delivered to the
customers and customers have obtained the ownership of
the property.
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REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group receives 30%-100% of the contract value
from customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreement (the customers who use mortgage loans
provided by the banks and the remaining amount of
the total contract value will be paid to the Group from
the banks once the customers meet the requirements
of the banks) while construction work of properties is
still ongoing. These advance payment of 30%-100% of
the contract value from customers resulted in contract
liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until sales of properties is recognised.
The Group receives full payment from the customers
before physical delivery of the completed property.

For property management and related services to
the tenants of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group agrees the fixed rate for services with the
customers upfront. As the tenant simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance, the revenue is recognised over time when
the performance obligations are satisfied. Monthly
payment of the transaction is invoiced to the customers
in advance each month.

For provision of hotel accommodation services, the Group
agrees the fixed rate for services with the customers
upfront. As the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance, the revenue is recognised over time when
the performance obligations are satisfied. Payment of the
transaction is received upfront before the provision of the
services.

For provision of catering services, the revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the performance
obligations are satisfied. Payment of the transaction
is due immediately when performance obligations are
satisfied.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

Wz (&)
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5. REVENUE (continued) 5.

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

Sales of properties

MEHEE
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARKF T
— Within one year ——FRw 3,168,671 2,996,875
— More than one year but not more ——FU L BETNBBAMF
than two years 4,273,314 2,741,260
— More than two years but not more  —REFLA F BN BBRF
than five years 690,903 980,522
8,132,888 6,718,657
Leases HE
Rental income
AEWA
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARKF T
Lease payments that are fixed or EFESKEURNIEE S A K 2
depend on an index or a rate HERH 110,953 106,280
Variable lease payments that do not  NEUR 5 8 sk 1| & 2 7] &
depend on an index or a rate HENK 6,869 9,399
117,822 115,679

HE=aZERARAE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information regularly reported to the Group’s chief
executive officer (the chief operating decision maker
("CODM")) for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance focuses on the type of goods
and services delivered or provided. The Group ceased
the business of hotel operation on 31 December 2019
as the relevant hotel properties have been leased out
and operated by independent third parties. As at 31
December 2019, the hotel segment assets and liabilities
have been aggregated in property investment segment
accordingly. The Group’s reportable and operating
segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as
follows:

Property development - development and sale of
properties

Property investment — lease of investment properties and
provision of property management service

Hotel operation — provision of hotel accommodation and
catering service (ceased on 31 December 2019)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEHR (&)
Segment revenues and results DEMEERBERXEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NTAREERATREDHE D 2
results by reportable and operating segments: REBWzm REE DT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_EF+-A=+—HLHF
E
Property Property Hotel
development investment operation Total
Segments P! MEER MERE BIEEE w5t

RMB000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARMTR AREBTR ARETR

Segment revenue Pl 6
External revenue MRz 3,096,792 128,296 - 3,225,088
Segment profit 72 5 601,948 239,543 - 841,491
Other income H A 536
Other gains and losses H ez k18 51,430
Change in fair value of AMREFZITET AR

derivative component of DZRNFEE

convertible bond 48,339
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 7 Be A 7] i 52 (13,599)
Finance costs BEKA (73,068)
Profit before tax B 5 Al A 855,129
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEMEXBERFEE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—NF+=-A=+—HL#F
E
Property Property Hotel
development  investment operation Total
Segments ki) MEER MERE BEEE st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Segment revenue Pl L6
External revenue oM 1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Segment profit (loss) DERREA (BE) 415,165 449,677 (5,833) 859,009
Other income Hapug A 9,692
Other gains and losses Hh ez R 518 (25,890)
Change in fair value of BATFEFABR BB

financial assets at FVTPL BENFEE (30,364)
Change in fair value of A#RERZTETAE

derivative component of D2 AFEEZE

convertible bond (9,334)
Unallocated corporate expenses &% Bt A 7] f % (17,177)
Finance costs BERA (63,277)
Profit before tax BR 250 Al s A 722,659
The accounting policies of the operating segments are 1 o B0 2 & FT BER BT FE3FT A AR
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in EEZGBEMER - DEEERE
note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned by DREBRIDSER 2GS WARIEAD
or loss from each segment without allocation of part of FEFAEGIYBEERAFEE
other income, part of other gains and losses, change in B HoHMmUkEREE AT RKRE
fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, change in fair value FIUTETEH D 2 A EZSE A
of derivative component of convertible bond, unallocated RIS ME D B E R AE L 5B e Ut
corporate expenses and part of finance costs. This is NERTEFELERREERERD
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of BRI RN AT E -

resource allocation and performance assessment.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and Tﬁ%ﬁ'%@}ﬁ—fc'i K& 5 R El
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: DRZEEREBEST
Segment assets DEEE
2020 2019
—EC-EHF —E-hnF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARMTFIT
Property development MEER 18,334,057 12,317,840
Property investment MERE 8,737,115 7,569,139
Total segment assets DEE EERE 27,071,172 19,886,979
Unallocated assets: APOBEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBECHBEE - 24,889
Restricted/pledged bank deposits SR BEBRITER 51 -
Bank balances and cash fﬁﬂf* ﬁ?&fﬁi 23,743 342,474
Unallocated corporate assets AOBERAREE 13,461 20,470
Consolidated assets REBE 27,108,427 20,274,812
Segment liabilities DEHEE
2020 2019
—EF —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTFIT
Property development MEER 18,785,017 12,533,919
Property investment MEKRE 2,297,436 2,266,362
Total segment liabilities SEI B &R 21,082,453 14,800,281
Unallocated liabilities: RKOBLEE:
Debt component of convertible bond  AJ# (&% 2 EHE LD 333,112 322,972
Derivative component of AR EFZITEIAERD
convertible bond 230,798 293,981
Promissory note HEEIE 460,809 446,249
Amount due to a related company JEAT—FIREE R B FR - 222,292
Unallocated corporate liabilities N W/NGIN= K 94,550 189,505
Consolidated liabilities =R 22,201,722 16,275,280

B =R ARAF
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEHR (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) ITHEEREE (H)
For the purposes monitoring segment performance and MERSEEBERED HE D BEEIR
allocating resources between segments: s :
e all assets are allocated to operating segments other e BREATEFABRZIMBE

than financial assets at FVTPL, certain restricted/ E-BTXRS/BERRTE
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash FoRITHEBRIRS AL KD
and unallocated corporate assets not attributable to TEEEN MEEEHSERE
respective segment. BEDEp -

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments s FBEAEBHUSEZELENH
other than debt component of convertible bond, TEBREDHNEMNES  Alik

derivative component of convertible bond,
promissory note, amount due to a related company
and unallocated corporate liabilities not attributable
to respective segment.

BiEZH 2 BERFEE D - AT E
ZUTETARMD AHERE &
NEERRRBERRDEAFA
EERSN

Hftto MEH

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-B-BET-A=T-ALEE

Other segment information

Total
Property Property Hotel  reportable
development  investment  operation segment  Unallocated Total
CES:
DR NERE  EEEE  SWAE A2E &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETR AREFT AREFT ARETT
Amounts included in the measure 5t £ 7 &/ a8 H B EEfs
of segment profit or loss or vk h
segment assets:
Addition of non-current assets  FEFAHEE 113,736 396,237 - 509973 - 509,973
Bank interest income FITREHRA 1,444 54 - 1,498 259 1,757
Finance costs BEAKA (27,466) (2,531) - (29,997) (73,068) (103,065)
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% BERAGTE
and equipment (9,507) (252) - (9,759) (128) (9,887)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets A EHE (27,929) - - (27,929) (1,543) (29,472)
Gain on disposal of an HEREME 2 Wa
investment property - 2,975 - 2,975 - 2,975
Loss on disposal of financial assets &% A FEx N 28
at FVTPL BEELRR - - = - (4,076) (4,076)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMNBR R 2 Wiz - 19,638 - 19,638 - 19,638
Change in fair value of REWEZ N TEEY
investment properties - 18,161 - 18,161 - 18,161
Change in fair value of inventories HEZRENE 7 FERT
of properties upon transferto A%
investment properties - 82,858 - 82,858 - 82,858
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEHR (&)
Other segment information (continued) Hth o HER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NE+-A=1-BLEE

Total

Property Property Hotel  reportable
development  investment operation segment  Unallocated Total

2R

nx%R  MERE EREE  HUEE ADE h
RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETL ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

Amounts included in the measure  itE 7 BEm %7 HEERH
of segment profit or loss or A28

segment assets:
Addition of non-current assets ~ REFFHEE 243312 - 4712 248,024 302 248,326
Share of results of an associate A {E—EE L AT £E (11,643) - - (11,643) - (11,643)
Bank interest income FATFIBMA 2171 270 6 2,447 9,256 11,703
Finance costs HEKK (14,037) (59,690) (2,384) (76,111) (63277)  (139,388)
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% BRERRETE

and equipment (8,292) (189) (5,307) (13,788) (122) (13,910)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (¥ BiEZAEHE (27,808) - - (27,808) (1,530) (29,338)
Gain on disposal of property, plant €M% HERZEZ

and equipment W& 41 - - 4 - 4
Gain on disposal of financial assets (&R AT E \BH 28

at FyTpL BEE W - - - - 239 239
Gain on disposal of interestin -+~ HER—FHBENF z#S

an associate 151,380 - - 151,380 - 151,380
Change in fair value of S EFANTL £

investment properties - 19,747 - 19,747 - 19,747
Change in fair value of inventories EEZRENE 7 HERT

of properties upon transferto %

investment properties - 382,058 - 382,058 - 382,058
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The following tables set out information about the
Group’s revenue from external customers by cities in the
PRC, based on the location at which the properties are
sold, properties are invested and services are provided.
Information about its non-current assets is analysed by
geographical location of assets.

Revenue from external customers:

TEER (&)

i & & R
TERHFIRDEDE - BEMERIE
HIRBEFER RS T E D EHEAEE
KANDEE WA ER - IEREE
EERIRBEREHIEE D -

PPNt LT EE
2020 2019

—E-8F -—T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Nanping ERE 1,143,270 -
Xi'an risk 681,585 580,516
Baoji = 583,763 1,228,072
Jilin FH K 328,056 7,333
Shanghai lapis! 243,144 238
Yongtai KR 153,876 -
Fuzhou &M 91,394 125,406
3,225,088 1,941,565

Non-current assets: FREEE
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Fuzhou &M 4,698,638 4,555,940
Shanghai b= 3,418,051 2,653,649
Baoji =8 1,534,233 1,528,418
Yongtai K Z 144,495 756
Xi'an fiils 30,355 30,043
Nanping ZRE 4,645 7,063
Jilin H IR 4,353 4,360
Hong Kong B 653 2,375
Others Hib 4,034 2,311

9,839,457 8,784,915

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EEHR (4
Information about major customers FRXTERFZEH
There is no individual customer who contributed over BE_Z-_ZFR-_FT—NLF+=-A
10% of the total revenue of the Group during the years =+—HIEFE AEERER LA
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. SEEAWR 2 EREB10% -
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HflA
2020 2019
—g-gF -—T-A%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETT

Bank interest income HRITH WA 1,757 3,046
Interest income from loan receivables JEUZE Z 2 | 8 W A - 8,657
Dividend income from financial assets A F{E AR 2 HEEER
at FVTPL BUA - 436
Government grants 5 T %8 B 595 -
Others H b 901 2,570
3,253 14,709
During the current year, the Group recognised RAFE  NEE 8 EARRB
government grants of RMB478,000 in respect of Covid- SHEBEZZUBRBNTEEBAREK
19-related subsidies, which relates to Employment 478,0007C ° %M Bh E BB BATIR A
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong MELIEAEEH-
government.
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HitWmREBE
2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR FRT ARETT

Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME WMENEREH IS

and equipment - 41
Gain (loss) on disposal of an HEREYMZE W (FE)
investment property 2,975 (235)
(Loss) gain on disposal of financial HEZERAFEFTABR Y KE
assets at FVTPL E (B8 kxm (4,076) 239
Exchange gain (loss), net EH Wz (B18) - 558 55,506 (23,267)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AW 19,638 -
Gain on disposal of an associate B E — M E ARz - 151,380
Others HAh - (2,668)
74,043 125,490
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BERRAK
2020 2019
—E-8f —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Interests on bank and other borrowings 81T R H & & > 7 & 462,559 404,246
Effective interests on convertible bond A% &% 2 BB F &S 30,641 25,938
Effective interests on promissory note & X 21 7 B R S 42,368 36,583
Interests on amount due to JEN —REREARREZFE
a related company 23,925 -
Interests on contract liabilities EHEEZHE 336,782 387,698
Interests on lease liabilities HEBEZFE 111 179
Interests on bonds payable EESZF A - 638
Total borrowing costs FEE == 057N 896,386 855,282
Less: amounts capitalised to inventories J& : R EFER E R L7 &5
of properties (709,513) (633,938)
amounts capitalised to properties RERTHEZERLZ S
under development ) (65,136) (60,707)
amounts capitalised to investment RERPIREMEFERL
properties under construction x| (18,672) (21,249)
103,065 139,388
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the FRERMEZEERAKE —MKE
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a B WIEEBEREEZHIRE R
capitalisation rate of 8.41% (2019: 8.52%) per annum to FRAI% (ZE—NF:852% )t
expenditure on qualifying assets. Ho
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

10. BR®t AT

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%®Fr AREF T
Profit before tax has been arrived at B FL A% FI 2 1B (5HA)
after charging (crediting):
Auditor's remuneration 3G 1,849 2,160
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) B (FaF12) 3,394 4,229
Other staff costs Hih 8 TAA
Staff salaries and allowances BT #He &2 143,511 82,708
Retirement benefit RRAEFIFT B R (HF3E)
scheme contributions (note) 1,436 5,051
Equity-settled share-based payments — #EzS&EE AR AEE Z R 322 1,909
Total other staff costs Hih8 T AN4E5E 145,269 89,668
Less: amounts capitalised to inventories 3§ : R EFETRERN L2 &4
of properties (20,913) (13,728)
amounts capitalised to properties RERPMEZER Lz E
under development g (975) (1,909)
amounts capitalised to investment RERPIREMEFERL
properties under construction x| (3.690) (1,756)
119,691 72,275
Cost of inventories recognised as BMRERAST 2FERA
an expense 2,076,148 1,284,722
Depreciation of property, plant ME- HWEREETE
and equipment 9,887 13,910
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERHEEETE 29,472 29,338
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWME - BENMEE 2 W=
and equipment - (41)
(Gain) loss on disposal of an HEKEME Y (KHR) BB
investment property (2,975) 235
Reversal of write-down of inventories ¥ FEMURELE (Gt ABE R
of properties (included in cost of RR 75 A A )
sales and services) (247) -
Gross rental income from WEYHEEE A RA LR
investment properties (117,822) (115,679)
Less: direct operating expenses from B : FAKXBEAH S WA 2%
investment properties that EMEZEELERAY
generated rental income
during the year 7,674 12,594
(110,148) (103,085)

BLELCovid-1948 78 2 BT B - &
EFETET-_A=+—HL
FE B EWREN MR 2 BE R
Mg a5 AK%6,910,0007T

Note: For Covid-19 related government subsidies, there were Fit & -
temporary reduction and exemption of retirement benefit
contributions amounted to RMB6,910,000 during the year

ended 31 December 2020.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FrIBFHBEX

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBF T
Current tax: AREARR A

EIT in the PRC PR ETEH 127,847 93,787
LAT T M IEE R 108,309 48,050
236,156 141,837

Under provision in prior years: BEFEBREBTR:
EIT in the PRC PR EMGH 2,627 4,481
Deferred tax (note 19): IRAEFLIE (MfaF19) - 75,443 109,159
314,226 255,477

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two — tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two — tiered profits
tax rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated
financial statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the income of the Group neither arises in, nor is derived
from, Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—=ZF

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulation. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rate of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable exemptions and deductions.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to &
the profit before tax per consolidated statement of profit

11.

BB
7t B

4451 ~u}

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

EBMX 2

TR EN B A IR BT BIARRE S
ERFOEBRERTE AT - T HIBED
TyhIBEHE D
WA HkRE THEA -

=&
757 B

DR R R

GAMBERRME

—EFL_HA=+—HIFE

YRR

Hitp 2 as R NF R
BRILAD® A 2 HERAT -

2020 2019
—EF — &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Profit before tax B 50 Bl Al 855,129 722,659
Tax charge at the applicable tax rate of 1% i@ B £ £25% st & 2 i 18
25% (2019: 25%) (ZE—NF25%) 213,782 180,665
Tax effect of share of results of BB E RN EEZRETE
an associate - 2,911
Tax effect of expenses not deductible T EBE &I = S Al HIEF X 2
for tax purpose R E 22,489 30,513
Tax effect of income not taxable for BB M S  BEZH A
tax purpose BT E (24,037) (25,169)
Under provision in prior years BT FERETR 2,627 4,481
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised #iEMERHIBE B 7 MG T & 47,398 31,594
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LRI RERBIEERE
not recognised (27,189) -
LAT TR A 108,309 48,050
Tax effect of LAT THIEER 2 B2 (27,077) (12,013)
Effect of different tax rate of REMAEERLEEB 2B
subsidiaries operating in NERTARAMERB 2 &
other jurisdictions (2,076) (5,555)
Income tax expense for the year FANFRERAX 314,226 255,477

B =R ARAF
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12. EE - FETHAERESH
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION oA
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the F/HANE T SRERA AR R E B
directors of the Company during the year are as follows: BEBAT:
Retirement
benefit Equity-settled
Salaries and scheme  share-based
Fees  allowances contributions payments Total
NRGEE
we HEREE BRAEAGE PAE: @t

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARRTR ARETR ARETR AREFT  ARETR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-R-RE+tCA-+-ALEE

Chairman I
Guo Jiadi Ly 1,600 133 - 19 1,752
Executive directors: HrEs:
Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 925 16 M 982
Wang Chao T - 394 - - 394
Independent non-executive ~ BIYFHTEE:

directors:
Chan Yee Ping, Michael BT Al - - - 7
Zheng Yurui LIRS 53 - - 41 94
Ma Shujuan Rt 60 - - 41 101

1,784 1,452 16 142 3,39
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 12. EE - FETHAEREESM

EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued) &)
Retirement
benefit  Equity-settled
Salaries and scheme  share-hased
Fees allowances  contributions payments Total
AR B E
#e  FekEE RRENGHE PANE S @5t

RIMB'000 RIVB'000 RIMB'000 RIVB'000 RIMB'000
ARBTL  ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-E-NE+A=+-HLEE

Chairman I

Guo Jiadi S 1,719 132 - 99 1,950
Executive directors: HITES:

Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 917 16 209 1,142
Wang Chao TH - 398 - 5 403
Non-executive director: FUTES:

Wong Yun Kuen (note a) B (Mita) 66 - - - 66

Independent non-executive ~ BUKHTEE:

directors:

Chan Yee Ping, Michael BT 7 - - - 71

Yu Pak Yan, Peter (note b) FBC (Mitb) 66 - - - 66

Zheng Yurui RS 53 - - 209 262

Ma Shujuan BB 60 - - 209 269
2,035 1,447 16 731 4,229

Notes: Ffat -

(a) Dr. Wong Yun Kuen resigned as a non-executive director (a) =ERBBLIN -_Z—NFHALA=T

on 30 September 2019. HEHEIERITES -
(b)  Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter resigned as an independent non- b) RACEER=_Z—AFEHLA=T

executive director on 30 September 2019.

AEtIBLIFNTES

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

NERMRATESZME BRERAK

for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’'s and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Guo Jiadi is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his remuneration disclosed above includes those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

REIRAEEEBEEE 2 RIS

A
S

A EFIRIFMITE S LB IFITE
SZHERBREESARBEFTZR
Bz -

BIASEET RN R RITRAE K
XWEZHE BRERER/ITREHE
HZ IR E -
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12. EE - FETHAEREESM

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (continued)

No directors waive any emolument during the current
year or the prior year and none of the directors have
received any inducement pay for joining or upon joining
the Company.

Employees’ remuneration

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included one director (2019: two directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in the note 12 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
four (2019: three) high paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

€ (#)

RAEES F—FEHEESRER
A4 - B#EE A ESE AL
AR A ) B i U BR AT ] 52 R o

BEEMS

FR AEBRERSFREEEE—
FEF(ZZE-NF WMBEF)H
M BEEN EXME12 - E8r0H
(ZF-NF  ZR)FARAEFL
TR zSHEEWT

2020 2019

—EEF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBETF T

Salaries and allowances e MoERL 3,982 1,580
Retirement benefits scheme IRPRAR AT B 30

contributions 604 276

Equity-settled share-based payments #EZEZEARMNHABEEZZ S 27 134

4,613 1,990

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

WHARBDEEBHFMN FATEE
ZEEFEEABDT:

2020 2019
—B-®E —TAF
No. of No. of
employees employees

ES8H EE#H

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

% %1,000,000/8 7T
1,000,00178 7L £ 1,500,000/ 7T 4 -
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—E_-FF+_-_HA=+—HIFZF

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary RBE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HL
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31 FREIHERNKERRNKRE TR
December 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed NAEBRRE  TEARSHES
since the end of the reporting period (2019: Nil). BERBEHERNEABKRE (ZE—AN

FoMm)o

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per RAEEBARGEEREAREER
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on FITIRIE A T BURET & -

the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BNNEETIBBATEHE:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FRT ARETT

Profit for the year attributable to RAEVEB AEIEFRNE T

owners of the Company 420,503 482,165
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary EHETBRBRESBELTBR 2

shares on convertible bond BEzZ (53,043) 60,789

Earnings for the purpose of diluted RARTESRESRAN BT

earnings per share 367,460 542,954
Number of shares R4 E B

2020 2019

—E-EF —T-hF

‘000 ‘000

FK TR

Weighted average number of ordinary FAREtEGREREN 2

shares for the purpose of basic 3 AR AN RE 19 8

earnings per share 5,087,208 4,970,348
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ERBEL AR B EYE:

shares:

Convertible bond BRI 3T 1,213,592 1,113,845

Share options 0 ps 28,215 26,002

Weighted average number of ordinary R EGRE SR T2
shares for the purpose of diluted TR T #
earnings per share 6,329,015 6,110,195
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -HERZE
Furnitures,
office
equipment
and
Leasehold motor
Hotel Buildings  improvements vehicles Total
HENE HBA-BOE
BE BT £ RERAE @it

Notes RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mg AEBTr  ARETT  ARBTr  ARETT  ARETn

CosT A

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 54308 23,510 29,924 42338 150,080
Exchange adjustments EiAE - - 38 93 131

Additions HE - - 7208 6,722 13,930
Transfer from inventories of properties EHENERFE 51,140 - - - 51,140
Acquired on acquisition of a subsiciary T BA B WE - - - 88 88
Transfer to investment properties BHZRENE 17 (105,448) (11,368) - - (116,816)
Disposals e - - - (295) (295)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NET_A=1-H - 12,142 37170 43 946 98,258
Fichange adjustments ERHE - - (126) (297) (423)
Additions WE - - 2,964 2,435 5,399
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries Y% M B 72 26 U 3 - - - 150 150
Transfer from inventories of properties E&ENEEE 20 - 41,146 - - 41,146
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAA 33 - - (22,215) (10,459) (32,674)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-SE+-R=1-H - 53,288 17,7193 40,775 111,856
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2k

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 6,654 8,136 11,354 29,551 55,695
Exchange adjustments [E i % - - 35 87 122

Provided for the year AEEEE 2,062 581 6,945 430 13,910
Transfer to investment properties ERZRANE 17 (8,716) (4,779) - - (13,495)
Eliminated on disposals HEBEE - - - (235) (235)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-H - 3,938 18,334 33,725 55,997

Exchange adjustments [ % - - (114) (283) (397)
Provided for the year TEERE - 451 5,658 3,778 9,887

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries ! & B 72 2] £ 48 3 - - (13,534) (7,242) (20,776)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EET_A=1-H - 4,389 10,344 29,978 44,7111

CARRYING VALUES KEE

At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF+-A=1-H - 48,899 7449 10,797 67,145

At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE+-R=T-H - 8,204 18,836 15,221 42,261
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE
15. 1% BERRE (#)

L - BB KRR B & R F
HREERNERIRATFRITE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment after
taking into account the residual values, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Hotel 3% - 5% B & 3% - 5%
Buildings 3% - 5% BF 3% - 5%
Leasehold improvements Over shorter of lease MEMERE BRI ESF

term or 5 years
19% - 32% NN i

KA

R-ZE-_FEE+-_A=+—H K&
Ei& AR #813,0007T (—ZF— N4
AR ®866,0007T) 2 W% B FE K&
HEB EAREERITREMER

Furnitures, office equipment 19% - 32%

and motor vehicles

The Group pledged property, plant and equipment of
RMB813,000 (2019: RMB866,000) as at 31 December
2020 to secure bank and other borrowings of the Group.

B FELR o
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EHEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HEWE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT ARKFT ARKTFT
As at 31 December 2020 RZ-ZE-ZF
+=-—HA=+—H
Carrying amount RMEE 859,503 801 860,304
As at 31 December 2019 R=-Z—h &
+ZBA=+—H
Carrying amount REE 1,008,187 2,867 1,011,054
For the year ended BE-_ZT_ZF
31 December 2020 +TZHA=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge EER 27,271 2,201 29,472
For the year ended BE-Z—h#F
31 December 2019 tZA=+—BLEE
Depreciation charge TEEZEA 27,271 2,067 29,338
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr AREFT
Expense relating to short-term leases HBREIFEHAAE 2% 151 268
Total cash outflow for leases MEZReRLEHE 2,640 2,369
Additions to right-of-use assets EIEREEE 162 4,127
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-F -_FH#F+ _H=+—HILFZE

16.

17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

For both years, the Group leases various offices and
dormitory for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 12 months to 3 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
offices and dormitory. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term
lease expense disclosed above.

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB860,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB801,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: lease liabilities of RMB3,107,000
and related right-of-use assets of RMB2,867,000). The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, right-of-use
assets of RMB121,413,000 (2019: RMB142,420,000) on
which the properties under development located were
transferred to investment properties upon change in use
as evidenced by inception of relevant rental agreements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged its right-
of-use assets amounting to RMB859,503,000 (2019:
RMB1,003,349,000) to secure the banking facilities
granted to the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out shopping malls, hotels, office units,
commercial units, kindergartens and car parking under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly or quarterly.
The leases typically run for a fixed period of one to twenty-
five years (2019: one to twenty years). The minimum
annual lease payments are fixed over the lease term.
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17.

FEHEEE #)

RREEER  NEBHESHMEA
EREENHLE A - YAE
AMmETHER AT _HAZ=F-
AR ERNLEREET EPaS
TR R M o 3ARE E TR A R 5T 4
TA B IR REMRAALTE
2300 8 E A 46 FT 3 H B 4T ER o

B AERERLAHE
\_g_i£¢& T-NF+=
T—H EHHEHEHES REHE
R EZEHEEEAE

Of 1o 2% Bt

° 3R |l °>HFFF

\
!

of

i RZFEZTEF+_A=+—
B #EREEaEARES860,0005T
HAHREA#EEE ARS01,000
T (ZZE—NF: AR¥3,107,0007T
M FEAEEEARK2,867,000
rc) BREAAFBHEESEE 2 RERE
TRON - T W A A b DN AT AT R
HEEETSHIEEEZERR-

EREEERERREENE AL
REHEEAR (AREE RE) NG
RITE-

BE-T-_THF+A=1T"HLF
EoFEREEEARE121,413,000
T (ZZE—NF: AR¥142,420,000
TL)EREZEERTYWECREBMR
ERaRARBEHc AR R RERS
WA

R-_E-_ZEF+-_/F=+—8"
AEFHRBFEFREEEARE
859,503,0007T (ZE—HF: AR

1,003,349,0007T) * {E &N £ BER
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies of
group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual

17. BREWE (&)
AEBERESRHEMEEINERR
BRAMEREHUEETE 8
e M EH{E o T4 R = I (E
EERR, HAER AN RS RS

value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the BaMEZERE-
property at the end of lease term.
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
2 TR BRHP
REWE REWME Bt
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR FIT AREFIT ARMTFIT
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—hF—H—H 4,693,149 - 4,693,149
Transfer from property, plant #E# B %% - KE &
and equipment (note 15) L (HaE15) 103,321 - 103,321
Transfer from right-of-use ERETHAEEE
assets (note 16) (Mtit16) 142,420 - 142,420
Transfer from properties under &% % B 2% & F1 ) %
development (note 18) (Kfat18) 305,790 - 305,790
Transfer from inventories of ®EEEWEFE
properties (note 20) (Kta£20) 7,051 856,190 863,241
Increase in fair value REERBEYE - KE &
recognised in other R BN E M 2 E W S
comprehensive income upon AN EA{EIE
transfer from property, plant (ff3£15)
and equipment (note 15) 229,279 - 229,279
Increase in fair value REBBERPMER
recognised in other EREEERNEME
comprehensive income upon W RN FE G NN
transfer from properties (Ktax18)
under development and
right-of-use assets (note 18) 714,090 - 714,090
Increase in fair value REBRBMEFEENE
recognised in profit or I R A A N
loss upon transfer from (KtaE20)
inventories of properties
(note 20) 9,248 372,810 382,058
Increase in fair value PRIBS R AT EE I
recognised in profit or loss 19,747 - 19,747
Disposals k== (1,355) - (1,355)
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

17. REWE (&)

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
(=514 BERH
REWE REWE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARKFT ARKFT
At 31 December 2019 NZE—NF
+-A=+—H 6,222,740 1,229,000 7,451,740
Additions NE 196,940 199,297 396,237
Transfer from right-of-use EHEBEAREE
assets (note 16) (Ftazi16) 121,413 - 121,413
Transfer from properties under 8 5 2 E R ) %
development (note 18) (K1z£18) 157,629 - 157,629
Transfer from inventories of ®EEEAWEFE
properties (note 20) (Bfa£20) - 61,142 61,142
Transfer upon completion of  #2£& T 2 52 T A 82 £
construction work 1,428,297 (1,428,297) -
Increase in fair value REBEBERTPMER
recognised in other EAEEERNAMS
comprehensive income upon [ W RN FE L N
transfer from properties (KfzE18)
under development and
right-of-use assets (note 18) 401,960 - 401,960
Increase in fair value REBRBMEFERNIE
recognised in profit or loss AR A F{EHE HN
upon transfer from (Ktzt20)
inventories of properties
(note 20) - 82,858 82,858
Increase in fair value NIERERZANFE
recognised in profit or loss =Byl 18,161 - 18,161
Disposals el (9,700) - (9,700)
At 31 December 2020 NZE-EF
+=—HA=+—H 8,537,440 144,000 8,681,440
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—=ZF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

All of the Group's property interests held to earn rentals
are classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

The Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The Group's management has
discussions with the qualified external valuers on the
valuation assumptions, techniques, inputs and results
when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 are determined. The valuation technique
used and the key unobservable inputs to valuation of the
investment properties categorised within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy are as follows:

GAMBERRME

—EFL_HA=+—HIFE

17. BREWE (&)

AEBREELHERAURIESH
EMERER DHOBRRAREDHE
AR WARFERAGE-

R-ZB_TFR_F-NF+ZA
=T B AEEREVENAFE
DiIRBRAEE B ABERERME
Biin @ RIGHEBRBEARAFNEH
HPETTEEMETE -

AEBREX =S AERGEMETT
ﬁﬁﬁlm%$%&igﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
THER FAEEEEBCEAER
%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬁ@ﬁ“?ﬁﬁﬁ
ABIE N

RIEETZEYMEZATFER  ZF
¥ HEehkRERRAEERIAR-

TRFNNR-ZB_ZTEFER-_ZT-NF
T-A=1+— E&ﬁ&ﬁ%%Z@?
BEEENTA - DEEAFEFHE=
Mz REYRGLEMAGERMEE
ERAZBEBNT

B =R ARAF
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWZE (8)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZEF+=-A=+—H
Relationship of

Investment properties Fair value Valuation Significant unobservable inputs to

held by the Group Fairvalue hierarchy techniques unobservable inputs Range fair value

REERECRENE NVE ATEER HERE EXTTHEEGARE #E TBREBAYER

RMB'000 NTENEE
ARETT

Completed investment 8,537,440 Level 3 Direct comparison Adjusted market unit rate 1. Shopping malls and Assignificant increase in the
properties, including method* - based on (Adjustment taking into commercial units, range adjusted market unit rate
shopping malls, market observable account the differences in from RMB6,700 to used would result in a
commercial units, transactions of location and level) RMB70,500 per square significant increase in fair
office units, hotels, similar properties and metre (“sqm”); value, and vice versa.
kindergartens, and adjusted to reflect
car parking. the conditions of the 2. Office units and hotels,

subject property. range from RMB5,900 to

RMB28,000 per sqm;

3. Kindergarten, range
from RMB3,000 to
RMB12,300 per sqm;

4. Car parking, range
from RMB70,000 to
RMB150,000 per unit.

BERIRENE & 8,537,440 E=R EREEA-REEN SRETSELLE (MHR 1 BUBSRALELN AREARTHREMLNLER
BRYES BEE NEZTSNERER  NERKTERRIE) FEFAK(FAR]) EENEERRFEAR
(VRS YN-ATRYI]i HRERE URBIE ARM6, 7002 ARM g Rz maA
pREREEN BImEZIRR 70,5007C :

2 BRBUREENTE
THAARES900mE
ARH28,0007 :

3 PRENTFEFAKA
R¥3,000LEARK
12,3007

4 FENSEARE
150,0007C °
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
At 31 December 2020 (continued)

Investment properties

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques

LYEES HERE

17. REWE (#)
AR-E-sf+=-H=+—H

(#&)
Significant
unobservable inputs Range
EXTTHEGARE #E

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

TUBRBAHER
DYENEE

held by the Group Fair value
REERECRENE NVE
RMB'000
AREFT
Investment properties 144,000
under construction,
including hotels and
car parking
ERRANE BFER 144,000
EREE
Totel £zt 8,681,440
I

Level 3 Direct comparison
method* - based on
market observable
transactions of
similar properties and
adjusted to reflect
the conditions of the
subject property.

EZR BRLEE-REEN
NEZTEVERR
PREBE URRE
BImE 2R

1. Adjusted market unit rate
(Adjustment taking into
account the differences in
location and level);

2.Estimated total construction
cost (Estimation taking

into account the cost of
construction and installation
and decoration cost).
BAEMREN LR

(B RNERKTZER
HE):

2T ERERA (bR
BERARZEREEN
£)e

1. Hotels, range from
RMB6,400 to RMB8,000
per sqm;

2. Car parking, RMB4,000
per unit.

Estimated total construction
cost to complete amount to
RMB316,832,000.

1 BENFEEIRAR
6,400 AR 8,000
yi

2. REUSEARS000
7o

et BRERAATHER A

AE#316,832,0007T °

HE=aZERARAE

Asignificant increase in the
adjusted market unit rate
used would result in a
significant increase in fair
value, and vice versa

Assignificant increase in the
estimated construction
cost would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa

FAEREMSENLEA
BENSEHATEXE
#i k2%

fEtRERAAEE MR
HAFERRERS
RZIA
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWZE (8)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZFB-hF+=H=+—H
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Valuation Significant unobservable inputs to
held by the Group Fairvalue hierarchy techniques unobservable inputs Range fair value
TABREBAYE
FEERECRENR NVE AVEER HERE EXTABRRRANE il BATENER
RMB’000
AREFT

Completed investment 6,222,740 Level 3 Direct comparison Adjusted market unit rate 1. Shopping malls and Assignificant increase in the
properties, including method* - based on (Adjustment taking into commercial units, range adjusted market unit rate
shopping malls, market observable account the differences in from RMB6,700 to used would result in a
commercial units, transactions of location and level) RMB70,500 per square significant increase in fair
office units, hotels, similar properties and metre (“sqm”); value, and vice versa.
kindergartens, and adjusted to reflect
car parking. the conditions of the 2. Office units and hotels,

subject property. range from RMB5,900 to

RMB28,000 per sqm;

3. Kindergarten, range
from RMB3,000 to
RMB12,200 per sqm;

4. Car parking, range
from RMB70,000 to
RMB150,000 per unit.

BERIRENE B 6,222,740 F-R ERUBE-REBEN SRETSEULE (BHE 1 BUBSRBEELN  ARESENSEMNEA
EENES BEE NEZTENEER  NERKTEERIE) FEERR(TAR]) BEENSERATEARE
fir - RER - EE HRIEFE HURBE ARH6,702 ARE B Rz mA
HREREEM BEZ IR 70,5007T :

2 WRERNREENTE
FRARARES00E
ARH28,0007 :

3. PREANTFETEARA
R¥3,000LEARKE
12,2007 :

4 BESEARE
150,0007C ¢
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—E_-FF+_-_HA=+—HIFZF

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REW=E (8)
At 31 December 2019 (continued) R=ZB-NRF+=ZA=+—H
(#&)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Valuation Significant unobservable inputs to
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy techniques unobservable inputs Range fair value
TIEEBAYE
REERECRENR NVE ATEER HERE EXTTEERANE #E BATENEE
RMB'000
AREFT
Investment properties 1,229,000 Level 3~ Direct comparison 1. Adjusted market unit rate ~ Range from RMB29,000to A significant increase in the
under construction, method* - based on (Adjustment taking into ~ RMB50,000 per sqm; adjusted market unit rate
including hotels and market observable account the differences in used would result in a
office units transactions of location and level); significant increase in fair
similar properties and value, and vice versa

adjusted to reflect
the conditions of the 2. Estimated total construction Estimated total construction A significant increase in the

subject property. cost (Estimation taking cost to complete amountto  estimated construction
into account the cost of ~ RMB209,736,000. cost would result in a
construction and installation significant decrease in fair
and decoration cost). value, and vice versa
ERBANE @%ﬁ 1,229,000 F=R EREBE-RBEY 1L ERETSEALE NFETARARE29000 FEEARTSEMLER
BERBLE NELTEIEER (B RLERKTZRE TZEARES0,0007: BENEEHRTPERE
FRERE URRE  BE): B Rz HA

ok Epdi o
BHBRENA (Ea R EHARENANRRES  BBRERAARENSEE
LZ&M&& sREBR AARE209,736,0007 0 BATERERD k2

Totdl £ 7,451,740

*  The fair values of certain investment properties at 31 * i ?Eigfﬂ¢+:ﬂ
December 2020 and 2019 were determined by reference =t+—B ATEREWMWEZLATE
to the analysis of recent market sales evidence of similar Jh E;}%@M%%Zﬁgﬂ 3% &
properties compared with the premises under valuation EREGEDE ([1EH])EITHR
(the “Subject”). Each comparable is analysed on the basis DNMEBEETE - SAELBRIIZAT
of its market unit rate; each attribute of the comparable LB RS AR &E
is then compared with the Subject and where there is a Bl EEEEHEITLER  WiFE
difference, the unit rate is adjusted in order to arrive at ZR AFABREMNLEERUSIENE
the appropriate market unit rate for the Subject. BuaE i EA X

Bl = HIER AR A A 2020F
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17.

,EQ\E'

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

F+-_HA=+—HILFE

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both

years.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged its
investment properties with carrying amount of
RMB7,848,300,000 (2019: RMB5,738,437,000) to secure

the banking facilities granted to the Group.

18.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The properties under development were located in the

PRC.

On completion, properties under development will be
transferred at the carrying value to property, plant and

equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, properties
under development of RMB157,629,000 (2019:
RMB305,790,000) and the relevant right-of-use assets

of RMB121,413,000 (2019: RMB142,420,000),

on

which the properties under development located were
transferred to investment properties upon change in use
as evidenced by inception of relevant rental agreements.

The aggregate difference of the fair value of the
properties under development and right-of-use
assets at the date of transfer over their carrying
amounts amounted to RMB401,960,000 (2019:

RMB714,090,000),

were recognised in other

comprehensive income. The fair value at the date of
transfer was determined based on the professional

valuation carried out by Ravia Global.

As at 31 December 2020,

the Group pledged

its properties under development amounted of
RMB230,568,000 (2019: RMB279,860,000) to secure the

banking facilities granted to the Group.
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17.

18.

BREWHE (#)
REETEE RN @EsE AskEA S =
e

RZEZZTF+ZRA=+—H 'K
SEEHRFEREFEAARE
7,848,300,0007T (ZZE—NF: AR
#5,738,437,00070) 2 I EME - U
RAASEBERE ZBRITEERHE
o

BRYYWE FACHERR
BRFDELNRE -

RIETH - #R

TMEBBEREY
Rz REE-

BE_Z_TFE+_A=1t—HLIL#F

B3RP YWEARE157,629,000
T (ZE—NF: AR¥305,790,000

TI)REBEEREEEARY
121,413,000 (ZE—1LF: AR
142,420,00070) ' Edh-AEBEEE
EFARR RERTPYEETFRRE
EHBREILEYE-

RERHE ERAMERFERAESE
EZAVEREEAECHEEBAR
#401,960,0007T (ZZE—NF: AR
#714,090,0007T ) E R E M EE A
o NEE R A 2 AT ETIRIER
BIRIKEITCEEGBEEE -

i

—7—7

= F+-_A=+—H8'K
SEEEBRHEBERERIWEARE
230,568,0007C (= ZE—NF: AR
279,860,0007T) * LA BRI E B FR E
ZIRITE BRI
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19. DEFERRED TAX 19 ELEH IR
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated RNEEMBRAKXRZS) & TERLT
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax MEEERAREHRIE RUB2R
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is BEOREERBELER DT -

the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Deferred tax assets REMIEE E (29,231) (62,122)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEEE 1,369,007 1,225,965
1,339,776 1,163,843
The deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the AFERBAEFEAEERRZEL
Group and movements thereon during the current and HEaE(EE) RESHNT
prior years:
Change in Temporary Temporary Temporary
fair value of Accumulated  differences  differences difference
investment tax  of provision  oncontract  on contract Write-down of
properties Tax losses  depreciation of LAT costs liabilities  inventories Total
LS ZifE THEEREE AARAz  ANEEX
ZATERS hEEg e 2ERER ERER ERER HAarE Eh

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  AMBOO0  AMBO00  AMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBIOOD
ARETL  ARBTZ  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 785,956 (47123) 81,804 (10,529) 11,604 (258) 2,612 818,842
Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1B & (FFA) ERER
for the year (note 1) (Ha11) 100,451 (10,583) 11,241 (839) 8,934 (45) - 109,159
Charge to other REf2ERENR
comprehensive income 235,842 - - - - - - 235,842
At 31 December 2019 RIT-NE
T-R=+-H 1,122,249 (57,706) 93,045 (11,368) 20,538 (303) (2,612) 1,163,843
Charge (credit) to profit or loss 0B & (3 A ) EREH
for the year (note 11) (1) 24,091 40,229 18,361 (4,053) (3,540) 293 62 75,443
Charge to other REMZERENR
comprehensive income 100,490 - - - - - - 100,490
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-%%
T-A=+-H 1,246,830 (17.477) 111,406 (15,421) 16,998 (10) (2,550) 1,339,776
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19.

20.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax
losses of RMB313,558,000 (2019: RMB393,638,000)
available to offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of RMB69,908,000
(2019: RMB230,824,000) of such tax losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of RMB243,650,000 (2019: RMB162,814,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profits streams. The
unrecognised tax losses will expire gradually within 5
years to year 2025 (2019: year 2024).

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for the year in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to retained profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,700,620,000 (2019:
RMB1,179,533,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES

19 EEHIE (&)

WR—_ZE-_ZEF+_A=+—H"
AEBEEBEADAGEEBEEARE
313,558,000t (ZE—NLF: AR
#393,638,000 ) Al B{EHE 8 K&
KaH MZEHRBHEERARE
69,908,000 (ZE—NF: AR
230,824,00070) B ERELETHIBEE
Eommn A% R RIREAEE -
AW EREHKTHEBEBEEARE
243,650,0007C ( —E—NF: AR
162,814,0007?)ﬁﬁﬁ%%@ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁo
RIERHEEEBERNE_S_1F
2£¢W%$Fﬁ(_ —h&FE: =
THF) o

BEFBEGEMGHEZ BZZTN
F—A—AR FRENBARIARE
BRE 2 & T B R 2 % B S AN TE 40
Hom AW BRRLE RPN E R
AIRBENMSI B EREBEBARE
1,700,620,000C (ZZE—NF: AR
#51,179,533,0007T ) TR F WIELEFR
IEE M R A A B g 51k 5 # 0
TR ER2 R MERKEEITET
ENGIEE R 2 E

20. MEEFE

2020 2019

—ECEHF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ Tt ARMKTFIT

Completed properties for sale ERKZFEME 1,371,870 478,038
Properties under development for sale F&EZEEFME 12,528,583 8,371,645
13,900,453 8,849,683
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

20. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES (continued)

20. MEEFE &)

RMB’000

AR®F T
Analysis of leasehold lands: HE 54T :
As at 31 December 2020 R=-B-EBF+=HA=+-—H
Carrying amount FREE 8,171,200
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_FF—-—HF—H
Carrying amount BREE 4,627,201
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-FEF+-A=+—-HLEFE
Total cash outflow BEBEME 4,907,587
Additions NE 4,293,643
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-NE+=-A=+—HLEE
Total cash outflow BWIRERE 735,431
Additions NE 1,339,000

All the inventories of properties are situated in the PRC.

Included in the amount are properties under development
for sale of RMB9,218,494,000 (2019: RMB2,532,826,000)
in relation to property development projects that are
expected to be completed in more than twelve months

from the end of the reporting period.

RIEE AR

FTEMEFEHMNHRE-

CHEPREAEERIMEARE
9,218,494,000C (ZZE—NF: AR
#52,532,826,0007T ) ' EETEHA 15 B )
SHREB T —ERARNRT 2 WEHE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group Her—ZEZ-_ETFE+-_/A=+—HIF

transferred inventories of properties of RMB41,146,000
(2019: RMB51,140,000) to property, plant and equipment

upon the commencement of own use.

B AEERFHRERREMEEFE
AR 41,146,000 (Z T — N F -

A FR#51,140,0007T ) 5 # = 4 2 -

55 Ko Ak s o

HE=aZERARAE
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20.

INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
transferred inventories of properties of RMB61,142,000
(2019: RMB863,241,000) to investment properties under
construction (2019: completed investment properties
and investment properties under construction) upon
the inception of lease contract with an independent
third party as business strategy for relevant property has
been changed in according to the board resolutions.
The difference between the fair value of investment
properties under construction at the date of transfer
and the carrying amounts amounted to RMB82,858,000
(2019: RMB382,058,000) were recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value at the date of transfer was determined
based on the professional valuation carried out by Ravia
Global.

At 31 December 2020, the Group's inventories of
properties with carrying value of RMB9,132,919,000
(2019: RMB4,840,692,000) which have been pledged as
security for certain banking facilities.
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20. MEFE &)

HE—_Z2-_ZF+-_A=+—8H1t
FE REBIYE=ZFILZEY
15 1% Kﬁlaﬂ%égﬁﬁ'ﬁ}\ﬁﬁ%
61,142,000 (ZE—NF: ARH
863,241,0007c)2¢%¥ri%$ﬁ?§iﬁ
BREVE(ZZE-NF - BERIK
EMEREREREYE)  RAAE
BYE L EHEREERBESTSRE
RELCFFH RNERAH TEKRE
MENAFEEEAEMNZEARE
82,858,000 (ZZE—NF: AR
382,058,0007T) B NI s MR o iA 82
BEHZ A AFEDREREIREGETT
LEEMEET-

RZZTE_ZTF+-_A=+—H F&
EERMEE A ARK®9,132,919,0007T
(ZZF—hF: AR#¥4,840,692,000
TR EFEEEBEASS THRIT
EERER-
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. FEUWER R % H 4t A& U 5kIE A
PREPAYMENTS AN FIE
2020 2019
—B-BE —ZTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Trade receivables FEWAR K
— contracts with customers —REABEFPAY 12,329 15,511
— rental income (note a) — WA (Hfita) 21,295 14,849
33,624 30,360
Other receivables H {th & YR IE 138,122 211,745
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEERE (73) (73)
138,049 211,672

Prepayments (note b) AR HIE (Mab) 268,573 301,518

Other refundable deposits Hih RS 66,642 93,729

Other tax prepayments b B I TE A ROE 346,808 303,697

853,696 940,976

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables from contracts N—E—-hNhE—F—H BPALE

with customers amounted to RMB8,766,000. A4 2 IR KR A R 8,766,000 ©

Notes: B st

(@) The Group had pledged trade receivables from rental @ MZE_ZETHF+_-_A=+—8H"
income of RMB15,784,000 (2019: RMB14,849,000) as at AREBEEAFHSTIWAARE
31 December 2020 to secure bank and other borrowings 15,784,0007C ( ZZE—NF: AR
of the Group. 14,849,0007T ) ) FE UK IE - fE A AR

SERITREMEENER-

(b)  The amount mainly represents prepaid construction cost by ZFEXEERAZEESFELRR
of RMB224,499,000 (2019: RMB264,675,000) for the RENBENERKEAARE
Group's properties under development for sale. 224,499,000 (ZE— N F: AR

#264,675,0007T) °

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days AEBERTHESEFP 2 TFHEER

(2019: 30 days) to its trade customers from date of BEFEFHHRARTAHB0KR(ZF

issuance of the invoices. Trade receivables arise from —NF :30K) - BIRERFRBBEEIR

rental income which is invoiced in advance monthly or BHEAEERAZGEREBAREEE
quarterly in accordance with the terms of the related RAMAZZNHESUWA -

rental agreements.
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21.

22,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of the Group's trade
receivables presented based on the date of the properties
delivered and date of demand note for rental income
were recognised:

21.

FE Uk BR =k % E 4t FE Ui =k 38 A
RAEMNFE &)

PR BN S MR 3 A 2 B A A S B
RIS WA S B 2 5 B
TERERE D -

2020 2019

—EC-EHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FIT ARKFIT

0 — 30 days 0-30H 4,742 4174
31 - 90 days 31 -90H 1,058 4,999
Over 90 days B iE90H 27,824 21,187
33,624 30,360

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB28,882,000 (2019: RMB21,937,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out
of the past due balances, RMB27,769,000 (2019:
RMB17,270,000) has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience from these corresponding
debtors.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 35.

R-E-—FE+-_H=+—H K&
B2 EWERRESRT B IER RS H E
BB R T A A R 28,882,000
(ZZ=—h%F: AR¥21,937,0007T)
FEWERR -RNZEBHALHRT A
R #27,769,0000c (ZZF— NF: A
R #17,270,0007T) B % HA90 A =k A
F REXSEEZSHBEEREAZ
BEEEBBEERITRERABEL -

JTE Mok TR e At S SR TR RR (B R A Y
B RS R KR35

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 22. BAFEFABRZHBEE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFT
Financial assets mandatorily measured 38 432 A FET ABHTE 2
at FVTPL: B ERE -
Listed securities held for trading: RHEEBEZ EM&ES:
— Equities securities listed in —REAE LT ZRAE 5
Hong Kong - 24,889
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24,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

mEMBERRHME

F_FF+_A=1T—HIFE

RESTRICTED/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/ 23. ZRECEBRITER
BANK BALANCES AND CASH WITHEHBRRRE
Restricted/pledged bank deposits %FE%U/E?&#&E”T—?*"
Bank balances which, in accordance with the applicable BEZZ_FTFRITERBUTER -
government regulations prevailing in 2020, are placed in FAZBRERITEREP ZRITAERA
restricted bank accounts, amounting to RMB201,570,000 R #201,570,0007C (=& — N F:
(2019: RMB62,840,000), which can only be applied in the AR #62,840,00070) £ ] AR IETE
designated property development projects. The balances MEZRIBE -H81ZN T0.03%
carrying interest at variable interest rates ranging from £2.60% (=% ﬂi 0.30% %
0.03% t0 2.60% (2019: 0.30% to 2.52%) per annum. 2.52% ) 2 )FEN I EE B
The amount of RMB569,000 (2019: RMB10,558,000) RIZBZZFF_A=+—H AR
was pledged for bank and other borrowings as at 31 ¥569,000c (ZE—NF: AR
December 2020, as detailed in note 37. 10,558,0007) E# BT R EMEE
TEHER - SFIBE I FE37 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRREASE
The bank balances carry interest at market rates which RITHEBRIEN T B F0.03%%E0.35%
range from 0.02% to 1.95% (2019: 0.30% to 2.52%) (ZZE—NF:002%E1.95% ) 2™
per annum. B EEE -
Details of impairment assessment of restricted/pledged 2R &I B IR RITFERRIBITE
bank deposits and bank balances are set out in note 35. Z BB A BRI T35 o
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 24, FEAY BR AR DA R H fth FE 4 K
ACCRUALS REE R
2020 2019
—B-EF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR ARKFT
Trade payables (note) JE 1~ BR 3K (/W;E) 675,543 864,704
Other payables H b eI 5RI8 360,451 402,591
Deposits received from tenants EH&U%?’FE/\B?% 27,540 25,484
Other tax payables H b S 118 35,352 22,717
Accrued construction costs JEETIBEK AR 1,199,020 988,184
2,297,906 2,303,680

Note: The following is an aging analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date:

B T BEME
BRI 517

EHRHE 2 EN

2020 2019

— %= —ng = —j‘LﬂE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARBTFIT

0 — 30 days 0-30H 161,900 85,420
31 - 90 days 31 -90H 76,053 66,572
91 — 365 days 91 - 365H 191,338 319,961
Over 1 year HBiE1F 246,252 392,751
675,543 864,704

B =R ARAF
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for payments to contractors and suppliers of property
development projects and purchases of construction
materials. The average credit period granted to the Group
is from 6 months to 1 year. The management closely
monitors the payments of the payable to ensure that all
payables are paid within the credit time frame. Details of
the financial risk management polices by the Group are
set out in note 35.

25.

24. FEAYRRFN AN E 4l FE A 7R

MEGER @)
ENEXTEOERMESREA R
BERMmAREREEE AR
By REBRE AAEEEL YT
BEEHAEAE—F - BREH
BE 2R A< 2RI 7 RIS SR - LA & SR AT
AEMZEREEERREANST A
@Y ERREENE Y HIBEHR
B 5E35 o

CONTRACT COSTS AND CONTRACT 25. BHHAEAREHNER
LIABILITIES
2020 2019
—EBER —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Contract costs: BRI
Incremental cost to obtain contracts BEE4 7 EERKAKN
(note a) (Ktita) 72,008 111,150
Contract liabilities: ARNEE
Sales of properties (note b) YIZEHE (KaFb) 7,634,981 6,553,298

Notes:

(a)

Contract costs capitalised relate to the incremental sales
commissions paid to property agents whose selling
activities resulted in customers entering into sale and
purchase agreements for the Group’s properties which are
still under construction at the reporting date. Contract
costs are recognised as part of selling and distribution
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which
revenue from the related property sales is recognised. The
amount of capitalised costs of RMB72,470,000 (2019:
RMB18,349,000) have been recognised in profit or loss
during the current year. There was no impairment in
relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or the
costs capitalised during the year (2019: Nil).
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25. CONTRACT COSTS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB4,721,726,000.

The Group receive payments from customers based on
billing schedule as established in property sales contracts.
Payments are usually received in advance from sales of
properties.

The contract liabilities of RMB7,634,981,000 (2019:
RMB6,553,298,000) as at 31 December 2020 represent
the deposits received from pre-sale of properties.

Included in revenue recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020, RMB2,916,992,000 (2019:
RMB1,776,396,000) was included in the contract liabilities
at 31 December 2019.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contain significant financing component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the relevant
group entities. As this accrual increases the amount of
the contract liability during the period of construction, it
increases the amount of revenue recognised when control
of the completed property is transferred to the customer.

The significant increase (2019: increase) in contract
liabilities in the current year was mainly due to the
increase in pre-sale of properties by the Group.

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

SEE P A=t -ALEE

25. EHRAREHNERE &)

ffat: (4&)

(b)

—NWF—HA—H A48
EAEANREEA721,726,0007T °

AEREREMEHES DT
ST B S A B P YR 3R e

NFGBE AR LI 3 HE K
5o

RZZE_FF+_A=+—H"
AHEEARET7,634,981,000
T(ZE—NLF:ARE
6,553,298,00070) fE BB E W E
WE 2 12 o

HEZ_ZT_FF+ZA=1+—
BLEFEBRIZHRAARKE
2,916,992,0007T ( ZF— N4 ¢
AR #1,776,396,0007T) © 5t A
RZZE—-—hF+=_A=+—H2
AHIEE-

AN REBE RS BN REE
BEERBERD AR ER
%E?ytifﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁf BEFEFLH

B UEEHEEEERZEER
#» 1L B B UL FE AT P ST N i R
HEMEWERESRE SEMNC
BRIYERENEEEERXPRE
BHIUL A FE o

REEAHBERBEM(ZF
—NEF M) T 2HRAEETE
EVEIGPTEL

26. RITRHEMEE

2020 2019
—E-8F —Z-Af

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARMTFIT

Secured bank borrowings BEMBEITEE 5,713,965 3,729,928
Secured other borrowings FERFEMES 2,716,000 500,000
8,429,965 4,229,928

B =R ARAF
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)  26. SRITREMEE (&)

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are BIBE R B ARSI EEHKB B
repayable based on scheduled repayment dates set out in BEy D EENREENT

the loan agreements as follows:

2020 2019
—g% -—T-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMFT ARETT

Within one year —F R 2,958,230 619,493
More than one year, but not exceeding —% Ak ETBBAME

two years 1,730,235 813,400
More than two years, but not exceeding R4 LA | - B BB T F

five years 2,982,500 1,938,035
More than five years AFELE 759,000 859,000

8,429,965 4,229,928

Less: Amounts due within one year B mEBBEE NARZ —FA

shown under current liabilities D E &5 (2,958,230) (619,493)
Amounts shown under non-current ERBAEBE RS
liabilities 5,471,735 3,610,435
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows: AREFBZEERBLWT:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Fixed-rate borrowings BEMNZRES 8,429,965 4,229,928
The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group's AREFBEENERIEEEMT :

borrowings are as follows:

2020 2019

Fixed-rate borrowings BEEMEEE 4.75% - 13.0% 4.75% - 12.8%

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB. NEB ZAEEHUAREE(F-
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—E_-FF+_-_HA=+—HIFZF

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the bank and other borrowings
were guaranteed and secured by the followings:

(@) Mr. Guo lJiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse
of Mr. Guo Jiadi, have provided guarantees to
banks for the bank and other borrowings with
principal amount of RMB6,649,365,000 (2019:
RMB2,094,000,000);

(b) Bank and other borrowings were pledged by
Group's property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, investment properties, properties under
development, inventories of properties, trade
receivables from rental income, restricted bank
deposits, deposits for land use rights for properties
under development for sale and equity interests in
subsidiaries. Details of the pledged assets are set
out in note 37.

26. RITREMEE (2)
R-E-—TF+-A=+—8 77
BE AR AT & 5 IR R K -

(a)  ZBhnshsE A R FB AN E 2 e
BLEDZLTERRITREM
BERRTRENEASE A
AR #6,649,365,0000T (=&
—NF : AR¥2,094,000,000
TL) 2 AR

() WIATLEMEEAREEY
X BEMRE ERAEEE-
BREME BRTUWE WX
FE-MEFE BUYKRKE
BESKA ZRGIETHEF
R HFERRTOERLHER
RN B AR ERER
H-DEMEEFIBRHNME
37
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BR&
Number of shares Share capital
RO#E %N
2020 2019 2020 2019
g ol 33 —T-NEF g e 343 —E-NF
‘000 ‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Fig FR ARMEFTT AREFIT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of SREE.OBILZ
HK$0.01 each L@k 200,000,000 200,000,000 1,979,280 1,979,280
Convertible preference A # iR & 5t %
shares 602,000 602,000 4,902 4,902
Issued and fully paid EXTREZ
At the beginning of REA
the year 5,087,208 4,458,901 42,881 37,468
Acquisition of entities W B L REHI B
under common control  (ftzti)
(note i) - 485,437 - 4,158
Acquisition of additional & FF¥E R B N E —
interests in a subsidiary KB A 7,2 28 45h
from non-controlling = (Mati)
interests (note i) - 135,870 - 1,195
Exercise of share options 17{¥ &5 B& 4 ( f i)
(note iii) - 7,000 - 60
Atthe end of the year ~ REXR 5,087,208 5,087,208 42,881 42,881
Notes: Wit

()

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement with
Primary Partner International Limited (“Primary Partner”)
dated 21 September 2018, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest in All Excel Industries Limited ("All
Excel”), a company beneficially owned by Mr. Guo Jiadi.
The acquisition was completed on 30 January 2019
and accounted for merger accounting under common
control, and on acquisition completion date, 485,436,893
consideration shares with an aggregate fair value of
HK$276,699,000 (equivalent to RMB237,030,000)
were allotted and issued. Accordingly, HK$4,854,000
(equivalent to RMB4,158,000) was credited to the share
capital at par value of HK$0.01 per share of the Company
and the remaining HK$271,845,000 (equivalent to
RMB232,872,000) was credited to the share premium of
the Company.
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(i)

BE_Z—N\FALA=-1+—H
E2Primary Partner International
Limited ([Primary Partner |) 5732
Z BB NEEREAI Excel
Industries Limited ([All Excel |) 2
100%R%HE - %A AR B k£
BEnMB -ZHBEEER-Z
—NE—AZ+HZER P AH
EHESI THE e KRS
ETE SR B 0 485,436,893% X
BN - 4N {8 /276,699,000
77t (FBE M AR #237,030,000
70) e Atk © 4,854,000/ 7T (FHE
N AR #4,158,0000T) B2 &
NREEO0.01E LA AR R EIIRA -
H #271,845,000/8 7T (FEE R4
AR #232,872,0005T) 2 5F A A
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

On 28 June 2019, Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development
Co., Limited (“Fuzhou Gaojia”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, signed a sale and
purchase agreement with Nanping Huiteng Trade Co.,
Ltd. (“Nanping Huiteng”), a non-controlling shareholder
of Wuyishan Gaojia Real Estate Development Company
Limited (“Wuyishan Gaojia”), pursuant to which Fuzhou
Gaojia will acquire the remaining 49% non-controlling
interest in Wuyishan Gaojia from Nanping Huiteng at the
consideration of RMB55,000,000, satisfied by issuance of
135,869,565 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.46
per consideration share. On the date of completion on
25 July 2019, the Company issued 135,869,565 shares
at the market price of HK$0.55 per share. Accordingly,
HK$1,359,000 (equivalent to RMB1,195,000) was credited
to the share capital at par value of HK$0.01 per share
of the Company and the remaining HK$73,370,000
(equivalent to RMB64,548,000) was credited to the share
premium of the Company. Upon completion, Wuyishan
Gaojia became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and its financial results will continue to be
consolidated into the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. The acquisitions have been accounted
for as equity transactions and the total difference of
RMB17,470,000 arising between the consideration
paid and the carrying amounts of the attributable non-
controlling interests acquired plus the waiver of amount
due to non-controlling shareholder of RMB38,588,000
had been recognised directly in other reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
issued 7,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each upon
exercise of share options. The new ordinary share rank
pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

27. R (&)

et : (4&)

(ii)

(iii)

R—ZZE—hAhFRAZ_FTNE"
AAREEE2EWBR BN
mBEFHEREERAF (18
MeEHERRBLaEFHE
HEAERAE ([REBLEED
REERRRETFEEESE
~NR([EYEE])EITE
Ea Bl wmleEBE®
FrEERERRLSEZHRT
A9%FEERER RERBARME
55,000,0007T ' FE B IE SRR (E
% 70.46/%8 JT 3 17135,869,565
BARABEBIAEE - A=K B
M(ZE—NFtA=-+HA) -
KRAEERTESRKRD0.55
7 L% 17135,869,5658 A% 15 -
E i+ 1,359,000/ 7T (FEE R4
AR#1,195,00070) B ERE
BO.01B LAt AR AR RA - H
#%73,370,0007% 7T (B E R4 A
R #64,548,0007T) B 7T AR A
AR EE Tl E RELS
FERAARB ZEEZEN
BAaE BB EEBEBRAK
REVZ R EMEHREREZEA AR
ZEWEC ARIIEREZER S
i 2 15 R (& B By Uy B FE 4 AR A
HEMEEOAECBEEARE
17,470,0007T INEA 2 FE 1< FE 12 AR
% 3 38 A R #38,588,0007T 2
BENEAMEHERER-

BE_ZT-NF+_A=1—
BIEFE  ARERNERAERET
1% % 177,000,000% }%0.017%5
TZEBRR-HEBREMREN
HRER 2EAERNZFERZ

fiL

HE=aZERARAE
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. LR AERE RS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
16 September 2011, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. The Share
Option Scheme covers any employee (full time and part
time) holding salaries, agents, contractors, consumers,
suppliers and others providing similar services as the
board of directors in its sole discretion considers eligible.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option will be
determined by the board of directors at the time of grant.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date specified in the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercisable period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the
grant of the share options.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

On 22 February 2016, a total of 46,000,000 shares
options (“Batch 1 Options”) were granted to the
directors, employees and others providing similar services
of the Group at a cash consideration of HK$1 per grantee
which entitle the grantees to subscribe for new ordinary
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.285
per share. It shall be exercisable during the period from
the date of grant, first, second and third anniversary of
the date of grant respectively in the following manner:

(@) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the date of grant;

(b) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the first anniversary of the date of
grant;

() 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the second anniversary of the date of
grant;

(d) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the third anniversary of the date of
grant.

On 24 April 2018, a total of 59,700,000 shares options
("Batch 2 Options”) were granted to the directors,
employees and others providing similar services of the
Group at a cash consideration of HK$1 per grantee which
entitle the grantees to subscribe for new ordinary shares
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.420 per
share. It shall be exercisable during the period from the
date of grant, first and second anniversary of the date of
grant respectively in the following manner:

(@) 40% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the date of grant;

(b) 30% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the first anniversary of the date of
grant;

() 30% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the second anniversary of the date of
grant.

28. LR AEREZRS (&)

RZE—R"F-_A=-+=ZH ' &H#
46,000,00010 B A& (55 —#HE BB R
BIERTAEE2EE - EEB MR
HEBRGSHEMA LT FE2EARA
BAYNBEREIET - ARARRE
I 1% T A%0.2858 T 2 1T E B R B
AARFERBK -HAl 5 RIREEA
H - REEBS—RAF MBFLR=E
FRBEAANRATARITE:

(a) MIEHBHRBBREITE
25% BE I A

(b) MRELBH-BFEHEBAE
AT T1825 % i AR A

(0 R AHRES SRR/
AT T1825 % f AR A

d) RNEROBEH=BFEHEAS
AT 1825 % B IR

R-ZE—-\FWA-+MWMHE &
59,700,00017 & Az # (5 — #HL & AR
BIERTAEE2EE BERNKE
B BRABRAEYNBASRENS
TC ° AR A AR IR B A%0.42078
2T EREARATERR -H
AR BRE B - REBH—BF
NMABERIBERNEAT AT :

(@) WMNEHBHEHBAGAITE
40% B8 A% 4 -

(b) MEHBH—BFERIABAG
A 1T{#.30 % B A% 4

(0 R A HRES SRS
AIT1£30% i AR HE
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. LRI AEEZRS (&)

(continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BREARBENZFBEOT:
Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period  Exercise Price
=g FEHE TR T
Options granted to an 22 February 2016 Immediately to 22 February 2016 to HK$0.285
ex-director, directors, 3 years from the 21 February 2022
employees and others date of grant
providing similar services
RYT—4pEE 2 B8 _T—RF ARNERHBME —T—KF 0.285%8 7T
RRRERURB2EMA Z—AZ+=H HEES —A-+=HZ%
Tz e S
—AZ=+—H
Options granted to an 24 April 2018 Immediately to 24 April 2018 to HK$0.420
ex-director, directors, 2 years from the 23 April 2024
employees and others date of grant
providing similar services
RYT—ZHEE % B8 —_T—/\F MRERLASRE —ZT-N\F 0.4207% 7T
FREBURKBZHEMA  WHAZ+MA Bk MAZ+MAZE
Tz R-ZZB_MEF
e 1 mA=-+=H
The following table discloses movements of the TEXBEHZ_Z_FTF+ = A
Company’'s share options held by directors, employees —t+t—HIFERNES RERESE
and others providing similar services during the year PR 2 b A LB 2 AR RER
ended 31 December 2020. W EH) o
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. UM AEEZRS (&)

(continued)

2020 —E_FF
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding of
of 1 January during the during the during 31 December
Option type 2020 year year the year 2020
g g 32 g 32
-RA-H tTZA=t+-H
BRESR o K 17 6 FrE ERTE EREN i K AT B
Batch 1 Options: E-fERE:
Directors BX 5,400,000 - - - 5,400,000
Employees and others EERREBURSE 2
providing similar services  Ef A+ 18,600,000 - - - 18,600,000
Batch 2 Options: E-HBRE:
Directors 5 15,200,000 - - - 15,200,000
Employees and others EERREEURE 2
providing similar services HiwAT 41,500,000 - - (300,000) 41,200,000
Total st 80,700,000 - - (300,000) 80,400,000

Exercisable at theend of ~ ERA{T{F

the year 80,400,000
Weighted average MEFIEE
exercise price HK$0.3697 T - - HKS$0.369%7  HK$S0.3807 1T
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. LRI AEEZRS (&)

(continued)

TREEBEHRE_T-NLF+_H
=ST-HUEFEANESE BEF &

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by ex-director, directors,

employees and others providing similar services during 8 &t “WMHEA““ZﬁWE/\:H%EZﬁ
the year ended 31 December 2019. NEIERE &
2019 —E-NhF
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding of
of 1 January during the during the during 31 December
Option type 2019 year year the year 2019
“E-NF —T-NF
-R-H TZA=1+-H
BREEL MAITER ERRL FNITHE EREM MR
Batch 1 Options: E-HERE:
An ex-director —ZAES 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - -
Directors S 5,400,000 - - - 5,400,000
Employees and others EERRHEENRE 2
providing similar services HEAL 23,100,000 - (4,500,000) - 18,600,000
Batch 2 Options: B HBRE:
Directors =5 15,200,000 - - - 15,200,000
Employees and others EERREBURSE 2
providing similar services EmAL 44,500,000 - - (3,000,000) 41,500,000
Total st 90,700,000 - (7,000,000) (3,000,000) 80,700,000
Exercisable at the end of ~ E KA/
the year 63,690,000
Weighted average MEFHEE
exercise price HK$0.352/8 7T - HKS0.28587C  HK$0.3527  HK$0.3697 T

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 7,000,000

BE_ZT-NFT+_A=1T—HLF

J€ » 7,000,00017 BB AR HE B T TR A K2
ERBRERITE B A ki 248
B r R mERER0.5108TT -

options were exercised and the related weighted average
closing price of the shares immediately before the dates
on which the options were exercised was HK$0.510 per
share.

BREXFEEEN BE_T_FTF
MZZ-—NFFT-_A=1+—HLLF
JE - BRI R B AR

Save as disclosed above, no options were granted during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

These fair values were calculated using Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

R AEEECZRS (&)

FZERNFEERB -BAREGE-
TRIIRERL 1 3 A\ BUE

24 April 22 February
2018 2016
—B-NE  —B-AF
MA=-+mM™HE =—A=+=H

Weighted average share price MEFEHITEE
Exercise price TR E
Expected volatility TE HA R 18
Risk-free rate e A =
Early exercise multiple REITEREH
Dividend yield IR B

Vesting period 55 & 5

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
6 years. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

For the past ten years before the valuation date, no
dividend has been declared and paid to the shareholders
of the Company. Dividend vyield is assumed to be zero in
the Binomial model.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB464,000
(2019: RMB2,640,000) for the year ended 31 December
2020, in relation to the options granted by the Company.

HK$0.420/% 7T HK$0.285/ 7T
HK$0.420/8 7T HK$0.285/& 7T

61.23% 63.39%
2.05% 1.17%

220% — 280% 220%
0% 0%

1 to 2 years 1 to 3 years
18225 1E3%F

AR IRERBENFARBREZ
E 2R IR EE TE o s AE T AT 2 TR ET R
HIEREBEEERE 2 &EMG A
BE TERVRITAREMEKZ
TETNRE-

HEBHIEE T4 MESHRIK
MREFARBRR - —HARER

BEBREERT -

RBEE-ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—081
FE -AEERARAER L ZERE
MREMHY AR®464,000T (—ZF
—h%F: AR%2,640,0007T) °
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-F -_FH#F+ _H=+—HILFZE

29. IR E S
RER - ATRRES 2 B RITET

29. CONVERTIBLE BOND

The movement of the debt and derivative components of

the convertible bond for the year is set out below: HAKBD 2 ZBEFHN 0T :
Debt Derivative
component  component
FTETR
EA R HREBD
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREFT
Initial fair value on the date of issuance RETEEAZ 14 A FE 287,874 272,331
Interest expense (note 9) MERZ (BfaE9) 25,938 -
Interest payable during the year FREMFE (4,041) -

E/\\\ ?5 = ﬁﬁ S /A I'Z TE o Eb

Change in fair value recognised in

profit or loss - 9,334
Exchange adjustments P 5, 38 #& 13,201 12,316
As at 31 December 2019 N-_E—-—hFE+=_A=+—H 322,972 293,981
Interest expense (note 9) BRI (/fﬁeif9) 30,641 -
Change in fair value recognised in RIEZER 2 AN FEED

profit or loss - (48,339)
Exchange adjustments bE 58 & (20,501) (14,844)
As at 31 December 2020 R_ZE_ZF+_A=+—H 333,112 230,798

PTETASD 2 GEFEA B GHE

Binomial valuation model is used for valuation of the

derivative component. The key inputs used in the model
are disclosed in note 35(c).

On 30 January 2019, the Company issued 1%
Convertible bond (the “Convertible Bond due in 2024")
in the principal amount of HK$500,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB428,319,000) to Primary Partner as part of the
consideration for acquisition of All Excel. The convertible
bond is denominated in HK$. The Convertible Bond due
in 2024 entitles the holder to convert them into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time starting from 30
January 2019 to 30 January 2024 at a conversion price of
HK$0.412 per share.
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B -ZBEAMAZEBHABHR
B 5T 35(c) K% 5% °

R_ZE—AF—A=+8H &R
B] M Primary Partner® 17 &KX & %
A500,000,0008 T (B AR
428,319,000 T ) W91 % AT R AR B %
(TR -_EFR T HBRES])
YERE D UWEEAIl ExcelZ (KB Al
BEHFABTHE- R _MFF
HyREFBETHEEARZE
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

29. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

The conversion price is subject to adjustment arising
from alteration of the nominal amount of the shares
caused by share consolidation, share subdivision, rights
issue or any other reasons as provided in the terms and
conditions of the convertible bond. The Company may
voluntarily redeem all or any part of the convertible bond
at any time following the issue of the convertible bond
and prior to the maturity date by repaying the holder of
the convertible bond all outstanding principal amount
together with unpaid interest accrued thereon up to the
date of voluntary redemption. Holder of the convertible
bond has no right to require the Company to early
redeem the convertible bond.

The Convertible Bond due in 2024 contains two
components, debt component and derivative component
(including conversion option and early redemption
option). Upon initial recognition, the fair value of
debt component is HK$336,051,000 (equivalent to
RMB287,874,000) and the fair value of derivative
component is HK$317,907,000 (equivalent to
RMB272,331,000). The effective interest rate of the
debt component is 9.55% per annum and subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The derivative component
is measured at fair value at initial recognition and at
the end of the reporting period with fair value gain
of RMB48,339,000 (2019: loss of RMB9,334,000)
recognised in profit or loss during the year.

The fair values of derivative component of Convertible
Bond due in 2024 as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

29. IR RES (&)

BIER AL E KD A 6 I3
AR~ R Bk AT R AR A 25 A5 R B AR A P
FTE Z AR At 32 /i 1 B B () B
BYPMELFHE - ARRIARERAR
HIR A A MRESFHE AEBEMER
BEASBLEB RN BRNET
A] R AR AE 7518 I B B AT A B )
Fa B Ol = BP sl (AT RE 0 AT R R (B 55
AIRE SR A ABERERARFR
BERARBRES-

R-ZE-_NFHHzAIBRRESE
SMEAMKE D EBEKE D RIT
ETEAKSD (BREEHERER
RAIERERE) VL ERAK &
AR S D B A 1B A336,051,000
BT () AR #287,874,0007T) °
MOTAEATEAKRLLHDFE
£317,907,0008 ¢ (9 AR
272,331,0007T) ° B K B 5 &Y
ERFRABEFIS5%  HERE#H
BRABBR - 074 T A SR FHER
B RREHRIERAFEFZE AF
Bz A A RK48,339,0000 (=&
—NF 5B AR 334,0000T) °

RZEZEFER_F—NF+A
=t+—B ZZT_NFERE A @K
BETELD Z AP EHIRERER
WHERE 2 B A ERBEEMERYL
=l A EABR AR MET 2 ME
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-F -_FH#F+ _H=+—HILFZE

30. PROMISSORY NOTE 30. AR

On 30 January 2019, the Group issued promissory note RZZE—-—NF—-—HA=+H X%
with principal amount of HK$600,000,000 (equivalent B M Primary Partner {7 K& %
to RMB513,983,000) to Primary Partner as part of the 600,000,000 T (IHE R AR
consideration for acquisition of All Excel. The principal 513,983,0007T ) Z 7AW 24 - {E R EB
amount of the promissory note shall be settled either AN Excelz KB - F HRIEH
in full or in part by no later than 30 January 2024. The AEEER-_ZT-_NF—HA=1THZ
interest payable under the promissory note shall accrue at A2 E s D HAEE - A H BRI BT
the rate of 3% per annum for the first and second years, FE D E'Jf‘? E—FRE_FEF
4.5% per annum for the third and fourth years and 6% 3UMFERFE E=FRENFE
per annum for the fifth year after the date of issuance F45%  AREREERSFEETAH
on the outstanding principal amount, respectively. The ENELFEFOI ARAIBEIE
Company has the discretion to repay all or part of the RETE EI HA B A 69 (a5 (Rl 2 L R R
principal balance at any time prior to the maturity date REAZREALRI0EEERNEE
by giving 10 business day’s prior written notice to holders EEHBEM NEE2MBRIH X4
of the promissory note. The fair value effect of the HoRRIEBELBRENATFETZEL
early redemption options is insignificant. Holder of the TEKO%E%‘%%%%A?&%KI$
promissory note has no right to require the Company NARAIE R AR RE AL REY)
to early redeem the promissory note. The promissory i?ﬁ@iﬁﬁ%’ﬁ?ﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬂ%%
note is initially measured at fair value and subsequently REEE AT E AL BBENERF
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest REFFIS5% o

method. The effective interest rate of the promissory note
is 9.55% per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of promissory RZZE_ZTEF+_A=+—8"

note is RMB460,809,000 (2019: RMB446,249,000), and Rm?ﬁi%ﬁﬁ/\ﬁ%460,809,000%

the directors consider that the carrying amount of the (ZZFE— % : AR¥446,249,000

promissory note recognised in the consolidated financial TIRESERR HREMBREME

statements approximate to its fair value. R EEEBENREEEAE A TEM
2

21 8 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020




31.

32.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HE&E
2020 2019
—E_ZHF —E-NHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARBTFIT
Lease liabilities payable: ERHEEEE:
Within one year —FERw 774 2,500
More than one year but not exceeding — A B BB M F
two years 86 551
More than two years but not exceeding M4 A | BT BB R F
five years - 56
860 3,107
Less: Amount due for settlement with 35 : R & & & P < 71218 B 2| A
12 months shown under current 18 23R8
liabilities (774) (2,500)
Amount due for settlement after 12 FERBEI B EFTRMA121E B 1% 2 H
months shown under non-current 18 2 FR0R
liabilities 86 607

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 5.13% to 7.13%
(2019: from 5.13% to 6.18%).

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2020

On 27 September 2020, Fuzhou Gaojia, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
51% interest in Hanzhongxu Sandi from an independent
third party at a cash consideration of RMB5,100,000.
Hanzhongxu Sandi holds a piece of land for property
development.

On 29 October 2020, Baoji Sandi Real Estate
Development Co., Limited (“Baoji Sandi”), an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 51%
interest in Baoji Xingyaocheng from an independent third
party at a cash consideration of RMB5,100,000. Baoji
Xingyaocheng holds a property development project.

32.

EARHEaBZ NEFSIZEEER
MEANF513%FE7.13% (ZFE—H
FENF513%E6.18% ) ©

Y B Bt B 2 |
BE-_Z_FEF+=-A=+—HL
gE

RZE-ZEFALA-++HH KAF
ME2EMBARIBMNSER—2
WY B HWEEEPE =M 251 %
= REeEREAARES,100,0007T °
BBz EEE e EEE
Bk

RZE_ZEF+A=-+1B AQF
ME2ENBRARBH - ABFME
AEBERAA([BEH=-HE])M—H
BWYE=ZFREEHERY 251 %
m - RWEREAARES,100,0007T °
EUERNFE —EYWEERIER -

HE=aZERARAE
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-F -_FH#F+ _H=+—HILFZE

32. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

EFRE=E

32. WEBMIB DR (&)

BE-FT-2F+-A=t—HL
FE(F)
R B IRR B EERARE
;o

Hanzhongxu Baoji
Sandi Xingyaocheng Total
EEEEE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Property, plant and equipment #12£ « & = M 3R & 82 68 150
Inventories of properties MERFE 101,847 311,755 413,602
Trade and other receivables & UK BE & N H i JE Wt Fi 399 3,923 4,322
Prepaid income tax AT - 61 61
Bank balances and cash RITEBR KRR 1,969 16 1,985
Trade and other payables AT AR 3K B EL i JE A< 3K (94,365) (293,666) (388,031)
Contract liabilities AEHEE - (6,460) (6,460)
Total identifiable net assets A 3% Rl ¥ & E 42 5 9,932 15,697 25,629
Less: Non-controlling interests J : FF1% A% # 25 (4,832) (10,597) (15,429)
5,100 5,100 10,200
Net cash inflows arising on acquisition of Hanzhongxu W ER BN EHERNEE 2
Sandi and Baoji Xingyaocheng: FREMA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Consideration paid in cash LY MZRE 5,100 5,100 10,200

Less: bank balances and cash g : B U BB RIT &84
acquired R4 (1,969) (16) (1,985)
3,131 5,084 8,215

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration
test in accordance with HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” and concluded that the land components
of Hanzhongxu Sandi and inventories of properties
components of Baoji Xingyaocheng, are each considered
a single identifiable asset.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

32. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Consequently, the Group determined that substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets (excluding cash and
cash equivalents) acquired is concentrated in a group of
similar identifiable assets and concluded that the acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

On 18 November 2019, Fuzhou Gaojia, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
100% equity interest in Baoji Ruijiacheng Properties
Development Co., Ltd. (“Baoji Ruijiacheng”) from an
independent third party at a cash consideration of
RMB55,000,000. At the time of acquisition, the directors
of the Company are of the view that the acquisition
constitutes businesses acquisition. The transaction
has been accounted for using the purchase method
accordingly. Baoji Ruijiacheng is engaged in property
development business. Baoji Ruijiacheng was acquired so
as to continue the expansion of the Group’s business.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

32. WEEHIB 2R (4)

BE-FT-_FHF+-A=1+—-HLE
FE(#H)

Rt ARBERERE 2 REAE (T
BREASEKAEEZEY) 2@AIHD
NFEEFR—AEUNHREE
N WRBKB —HEEBREAET
JE—IRER

BE-®-AFT=A=+-AL
F
R=B—A%+—A+NA AR
Mg ENBANENSEL 28
v = 5 4B E A B LR b B
BARAT ((REBESR) 2100%
Pt - 3R & KRB /& AR #55,000,000
7o RIRIERS - A A T EF R AL
B M - E Ut 2 B E 8 K
BEAK - ERBEANENEER
275 0 L B S AR A
AR 2 -

R B R RER 2 AR BEER BIE
I

RMB’'000

ARKFT

Property, plant and equipment Y ERN L] 83

Inventories of properties MERFE 151,475

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H {th & UG 5K IE M A F0E 206,358

Bank balances and cash WITEBRERS 10,944

Trade and other payables JRE 1<% BR K B EL At FE A~ R IE (81,787)

Contract liabilities AHAEE (232,078)

Total identifiable net assets AlBAFEEERE 55,000
Consideration transferred: EEAE:

RMB’'000

AR FT

Cash consideration paid ENRERE 55,000

Less: Total identifiable net assets acquired B FTEE I  RI B E R EE R (55,000)
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

32.

33.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

32. WEEKIEB ARl (&)
BE-_ZE2-hE+=-HA=+—H1L

FE(E)

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect LMy E s ReRReSECE

of the above acquisition: © I FEE
RMB’000
AR®FT
Cash consideration paid ENBEENKE (55,000)
Less: bank balances and cash acquired B EWBRITESR MRS 10,944
(44,056)

No revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
generated from Baoji Ruijiacheng.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
revenue for the year of the Group would not change,
and profit for the year of the Group would have been
RMB532,051,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
disposed of its 100% equity interest in Baoji Sandi Hotel
Co. Ltd, Baoji Sandi Pace Boutique Hotel Co. Ltd, Baoji
Sandi Ecological Catering Management Co. Ltd and Bagji
Sandi Ramada Hotel Co. Ltd (collectively referred to as
the "“Disposed Subsidiaries”) to an independent third
party at an aggregate consideration of RMB18,954,000.
The disposal was completed on 30 June 2020, on which
date the Group lost control of the Disposed Subsidiaries.
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RAG BHR-ZHMELERETERR
AR NBH - BEXEREERAT
(FBITHEWNBAR]) Z2100% K
1 BRE A ARE18,954,0007T °
tEEFBEOR-_E_TFA=1+H
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DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33.

Details of net liabilities disposed of in respect of the
Disposed Subsidiaries at the date of disposal are
summarised as below:

HEMB AT (&)
REERY SECLENBATY
EHeaEFEEEmtnT:

RMB’000
ARKEFT
Property, plant and equipment L IEN S ] 11,898
Inventories FE 597
Trade and other receivables and prepayments  J& U BR 3% [z E fib & Uk 3718 35,323
Bank balances and cash RITHB LIRS 11,973
Trade and other payables and accruals JE T BR SRUA Se EL D P& 01BN B R T B A (16,825)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (43,650)
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEBEFHE (684)
Gain on disposal of the Disposed Subsidiaries: HESHENRB AR W
Total consideration wRE 18,954
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEBEFHE 684
Gain on disposal k= 19,638
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEEZRERAERE:
Consideration received 2R E 18,954
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B FTHERITEB LB S (11,973)
6,981
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. EXERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the composition of debt and equity
balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank and other borrowings, convertible
bond, promissory note, lease liabilities and amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, related
companies and a director, disclosed in notes 26, 29, 30,
31 and 42 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising share capital and reserves.

AEBERRERAUBRAEEZE
REWFERLE WEBBLEBR
EEE YN SR SN TR R S
EnEBEERER L -FERSIE-

AEBEBZERAEERFES (BED
B 5F26 29 ~30 31 42 &
ZIRITREMEER ATRRES &
HER HEABEREMNKMEB AR
TR R CBIEARI R —RBREE K
H) ReMReSEFAMMEER
mEABMBRE(BEREARFEE)
4K °

HE=EERERA R 20205 8
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34. EXRAMERE (&)
AEEEERETHENEANERE-1E
AR S5 TEEEPIREY
FEsmstEEEEe Y EEZED
B R RERFEEE - AEEE
BEBCTIGEEEREUREBES
RAREHEECHIEBRR - AEH
BB MEBEERE RGBT
T AR [B1 88 LA K2 347 3 15 18 =5 1 1B 38
BEETEHBEERERE-

34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the
management reviews the planned construction projects
proposed by engineering department and prepares the
annual budget taking into account of the provision
of funding. The management of the Group assesses
the annual budget and considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
management of the Group also balances its overall
capital structure through repayment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. eI A
(a) Categories of financial instruments () eMIAZEH

2020 2019
—EEE —E-hnF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETF T

Financial assets BEEE
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFABE M BEE - 24,889
Financial assets at amortised cost — IR#ESER At 2V G EE 1,921,621 1,717,256
1,921,621 1,742,145

Financial liabilities Bkas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ¥R #Es45E At 28 2 5 & & 11,307,898 7,008,997
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 230,798 293,981
11,538,696 7,302,978
Lease liabilities HEARE 860 3,107
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35. £ T B (%)
(b) MEEAKREEEERBE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, amounts due
from related companies and a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary, restricted/pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, lease liabilities, amounts due to
related companies, non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries and a director, bank and other
borrowings, convertible bond and promissory note.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management of the Group
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a
monetary item will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The Company and its certain Hong Kong
subsidiaries of the Company (for which their
functional currency is RMB) have bank balances,
other receivables, other payables, amounts due to
related companies, convertible bond, promissory
note and intra-group balances denominated in
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$"). The Group manages
its exposures to foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency receipts and
payments. The Group ensures that the net exposure
to foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable
level from time to time.

The Group considers its foreign currency exposure
is mainly arising from the exposure of HK$ against
RMB. The Group regularly reviews the balances of
assets and liabilities and the currencies in which the
transactions are denominated so as to minimise the
Group's exposure to foreign currency risk.

AEEZIECRMTABRTERE
UAT R R e L A R IR - FE AR
BN M E QR FEERA R R
H - RIRG B EARITERR
RITHEB LIRS BARA A
fENKIE HEREB BN
BNTE) B QR IEEARAR &
—HBREZFAE RITLEAME
E AREEFIEALRE &
MTAZFRANHEBME-
HZEZeMmTIARBZARE
mEmis AR (B R RA =
Rk)  EERRNMEBESRE
i o /8 B8 (] B 5% 5 LR 2 R
RENTX -AEEZEEEE
B R BRI A F R - ARELR BB
B ROt R ERE E B o

SR BT
SMES RIS B B I E
EEBMHEDZ AR -

AR REETEEME QA
(B E A ARK)BRTT
MR HAbRERIE bR
FRIR ~ e BEE A R IR - Al i
BiEH AARE REEAR
AR AERRIAETIT ([BT])&t
18 o 7N 5% [B) B2 5% SN WO K 5 3R
KF-FEUERIINERZFHHR
o AN SR B RELR P K SME R,
R BN R AR K

AEERL BIMNERREER
BETHAREZRR KAEHE
EHmTEEERBEEHRIAR
RPZEEFEEN  FERD
RE B FTE S 2 SN R o
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. R T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIKEBREEEERBEK

policies (continued) (&)
Foreign currency risk management (continued) I EEERE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign AN B ASNES SHE N @ 5 HMNE R
currency denominated monetary assets and we EREERBEREBRENLK
monetary liabilities and intra-group balances, SEARRIMEEH (BERERS
with exposure to foreign currency risk which are BRE)RBEHRZREEL
considered as significant by management, at the N

end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2020 2019 2020 2019

—ER-RF TS ZB-RF TR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTFL ARETT ARMTRT ARETT

HK$ - intra-group balances 7t — %@ A2 &

3 277,100 115,466 49,002 53,75
HK$ - other balances BT — B A R 47,201 343,501 1,072,426 1,285,726
Sensitivity analysis B E ST
The following table details the Group's sensitivity TRFVNAEBARARE BT
to a 5% (2019: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB PERIE I KR A5% (ZF—h
against HK$. 5% (2019: 5%) is the sensitivity rate & S%DE%ZK@FEC’E?WW%B
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally IE%E@)\EE%?I\%HV iS5
to key management personnel. The sensitivity HRAS% (ZE—h%: 5%)7,%
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency BRELLE -FRESTERTE
denominated monetary items and adjusts their RTHREWAINEETE 2 BB
translation at the end of the reporting period end B BERMEHARKER 25%
for a 5% (2019: 5%) change in foreign currency TE—NF:5%)EHETHR
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase BB - TRZEHEBTARK
in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5% (2019: HEBTEFAS% (ZZTE—NF:
5%) against HK$. For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening 5% ) B 1& 5% Fl 2 100 - AR EE
of RMB against HK$, there would be an equal and HABTTIE®S% (ZE—NF:
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the 5% ) I - Bllg ¥ &R FEK R
amounts below would be negative. MEEEZE T N X

RE-
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @I A (#)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEREEEERBER
policies (continued) (&)
Foreign currency risk management (continued) I mpEERE ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRE T (48)
2020 2019
—BEF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FRT ARETT

Increase in post-tax profit for the year 4 A& Bt 18 Y F 18 A0 29,892 33,005
In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EIREERE BRERESWMTIKE
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange BB MNE R RE AT KRR
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the WA AERE FE 2 Bk e

exposure during the relevant years.

Interest rate risk Fil 2 |71 B

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate NEEBRBITLEMES 0[R2
risk in relation to bank and other borrowings, &S 7 BIEAKE D AW E
debt component of convertible bond, promissory BoEMN—EEEARRER
note, amount due to a related company and lease HMEAE (DRIRMHEE26 29
liabilities as disclosed in notes 26, 29, 30, 42(a) and 30 “42(a) 31 EE ) m R A F
31 respectively. These financial instruments issued (ERIEENE OEZ%%@EIE&I
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest TFEFEREEIT BRAREBE AT A
rate risk. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is EFTEAT‘JTJ—W“ cAREEBEERA
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest KA FEERNIREH 2K
rates on restricted/pledged bank deposits and bank HIBTTIFERNIRITE 88 2 F X
balances. The Group is not exposed to significant HE) o BRI R F IR &K
cash flow interest rate risk on restricted/pledged BN S B B RLSZR B, B K I
bank deposits and bank balances as the fluctuation RITFRARIRITEBEREAR
in interest rate are insignificant. Therefore, no emENERER -Eit, WES
sensitivity analysis is presented. The Group has not HI) GRS D AT o 2N £ B 3 SR
used any financial instruments to hedge potential T4 @t T B ¥R 7 85T
fluctuation in interest rates. &f) o

Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & /7 B2} o (B 57 &

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other than R_EBE_ZFN_T—NF+=
those financial assets whose carrying amounts best A=+—H BEREEZHERR
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk, the EAEERBMOBMEEEN KA
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will EERANEFIRBENBTEERS
cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the BEMERNAERRIIFELD
amount of financial guarantees provided by the EAEERBN 405 E -

Group is disclosed in note 40.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. E@ T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIKEBREEEERBEK

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
default of the customers is limited as the customers
have continuous repayment. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
based on provision matrix.

The concentration of credit risk in respect of
trade receivables is minimal, of which there is no
customers represent more than 5% of the total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 and
2019.

Other receivables and refundable deposits

For other receivables and refundable deposits, the
management makes periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there
are no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group assessed the ECL for other receivables
are insignificant and thus no loss allowance is
recognised.
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35. £ T B (%)
(b) MEEAKREEEERBE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Amounts due from related companies/a non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiary

The credit risk of amounts due from related
companies and a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiary are managed through an internal process.
The Group actively monitors the outstanding
amount owed by each related party and identifies
any credit risks in a timely manner in order to
reduce the risk of a credit related loss. Further, the
Group closely monitors the financial performance
of the related companies which mainly engage in
properties development in the PRC and financial
capacity of non-controlling shareholder and
considering the future prospects of the industry in
which those debtors operate in. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on the outstanding balances individually.
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group assessed the ECL for amounts due
from related companies and a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary are insignificant and thus
no loss allowance in recognised.

The Group exposes to concentration of credit risk in
respect of amounts due from a related company and
a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary at the
amounts of RMB312,613,000 and RMB96,594,000
(2019: RMB293,550,000 and RMB20,595,000),
respectively, representing 57% and 100% (2019:
60% and 100%) of total amounts due from related
companies and a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiary. The directors of the Company continue
to monitor and assess the financial status of the
counterparties, and they believe the exposure to
credit risk on these balances is not significant as the
counterparties are of good financial position.

(%)

1= B Ja iz 2 6l B 7P 1% (48)
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

35. £@ T B (&)
(b) MEEAKREEEERBE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Bank balances/restricted/pledged bank deposits

The credit risks on bank balances and restricted/
pledged bank deposits are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances
and restricted/pledged bank deposits by reference
to information relating to probability of default and
loss given default of the respective credit rating
grades published by external credit rating agencies.
Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on
bank balances and restricted/pledged bank deposits
is considered to be insignificant and therefore no
loss allowance was recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts

For the financial guarantee contracts provided
by the Group to banks in connection with the
customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of properties, the Group
measured the loss allowance on financial guarantee
contracts by reference to the loss on default
based on the current property value and the pre-
sale deposits already received. For the financial
guarantee contracts provided by the Group to
banks in connection with the related parties and
third parties’ bank borrowings, the directors of the
Company has performed impairment assessment,
and concluded that there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the
financial guarantee contracts. Accordingly, the loss
allowance for financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group is measured at an amount equal to
12m ECL. No loss allowance was recognised in
the profit or loss because the fair value of assets
pledged is higher than the guarantee amounts.
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mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @I A (#)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEREEEERBER
policies (continued) (&)

1= B Ja iz 2 6l B 7P 1% (48)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REBABEEEHTRTHE
comprises the following categories: TR
Internal Other financial
credit rating Description Trade receivables  assets/other items
HtBi g EE
REBERAAR  #Hd & WL AR =X Hitg B
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL-not 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
e RSHFNENRRRE B W EEM THRBEEERE N2EARHEE
BT - FERAE B8
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL-not 12m ECL
usually settle in full credit-impaired
BREE BHABLBEOMAMELCERMEN: 2URHEEER 12EARYEE
—fEERAE BB
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL-not Lifetime ECL-not

credit risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources

i BAANNESNENIIINBERER BT 2HEREEER 2PRHEEBAE
R AREE R RIEE N —EEXRRE —EEXRHRE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL-credit-  Lifetime ECL-credit-
credit-impaired impaired impaired
B REBBEREECHREERE FPHREBEEERR 2HEHEEER
—EERE —EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is Amount is Amount is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group ~ written off written off
has no realistic prospect of recovery
i 34 REBBREBARNBEMBREE LHEC M LEC M

RS B 3 A U B SRR RO A B AT R
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-—FL_FTF+_-_HA=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. 2T H (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIKEBREEEERBEK
policies (continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= BB B Rl B 771 (&)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRAJNAEEUHEERA
the Group’s financial assets and other items, which IEE (EEXEEEEBEN
are subject to ECL assessment: i) FTEER & (5 & 8L -
External Internal Gross
credit credit  12-month or carrying
2020 Notes rating rating  lifetime ECL amount
T MBER ABEA 12BA%
g S -2 fit &t RS A& 2HEEER REAE
RMB'000
AREFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBMRATECHBEE
Trade receivables 21 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 12,329
~ contracts with customers N ‘ (not credit-impaired)
ERER-KEEFALD 21 FER (WE1) 2EESEEEE
(TEEERE)
Other receivables and refundable 21 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 204,691
deposits (Note 3)
H@W&MIE&T Eba 21 TR EElE  NREARMEEER
(KraE3)
Other receivables 21 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 73
R (Note 3) (credit-impaired)
# BN 0B 21 TER EE  GHEBREEA-G
(Ktat3) ERE
Amounts due from related 42(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 547,106
companies (Note 3) \
G NS 42(a) AiE 1&@\[‘?& REAEEEREFE
(Kfit3)
Amount due from a non-controlling ~ 42(a) N/A Low risk  12m ECL 96,594
shareholder of sub5|d|ary (Note 3)
FE I — RIS AR PR B A AR K 42(a) TEH EElE  NREARMEEER
(KtaE3)
Restricted/pledged bank deposits 23 A2 N/A 12m ECL 201,570
SRE,/BEABRITER 23 A2 TER  NEABRHEEER
Bank balances 23 A3 to Aa3 N/A 12m ECL ! 838,036
RITEER 23 A3ZEAa3 TER  NEARBEHEEES
Other items
HthE g
Trade receivables 21 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 21,295
~ rental income N (Note 2) ‘
YRR —HEBA 21 TER EEB  12EARBEEESR
(Kte2)
Financial guarantee contracts 40 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 6,537,692
N (Note 4) o
MHEREH 40 TER EmE  REABRREEEE
(Kfita)
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @ T B (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEREEEERBER
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= B |2 B R ol {8 771 (42)
(continued)
External Internal Gross
credit credit  12-month or carrying
2019 Notes rating rating  lifetime ECL amount
HEBEE A ABER 12EAF
—E-hE fif i 4R TR 2HEEER REAE
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBHERATECHKEE
Trade receivables 21 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 15,511
- contracts with customers (not credit-impaired)
YRR -RERFAH 21 T A (Hr1)  2HBAEEER
(TEEERE)
Other receivables and refundable 21 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 305,401
deposits (Note 3)
HuREWFBRAREEE 21 A KRR NEABRSEEER
(Mi7t3)
Other receivables 21 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 73
(Note 3) (credit-impaired)
Hfth e W3R 21 TER Bia HRAEERE-F
(Ffrat3) ERE
Amounts due from related 42(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 491,784
companies (Note 3)
JE U B E A R R 42(a) TiE A 16 /2 B NREAEHEEEE
(Kfsz3)
Amount due from a non-controlling ~ 42(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 20,595
shareholder of subsidiary (Note 3)
R —FEIIE R B RARIREFIE  42() NEH {2 NEABRHEEER
(M7t3)
Restricted/pledged bank deposits 23 A2 N/A 12m ECL 62,840
SR/ BEBRITER 23 A2 NER  NEABHBEEER
Bank balances 23 A3 to Aa3 N/A 12m ECL 707,199
RITHEH 23 A3EAa3 TER NAARHEEBE
Other items
Htg g
Trade receivables 21 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 14,849
- rental income (Note 2)
YRR -HEBA 21 TEA ERE NREABHEEERE
(Kiat2)
Financial guarantee contracts 40 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 4,806,327
(Note 4) \
HBEREH 40 TiEH ERR 1R2EARHEERE
(Kiat4)
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. &M T A (4)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIKEBREEEERBEK
policies (continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= BB B Rl B 771 (&)
(continued)

Notes: TR

For trade receivables from contracts with customers,
the Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The trade receivables from contracts with
customers are assessed for ECL based on provision
matrix. No impairment has been made for trade
receivables from contracts with customers at 31
December 2020 and 2019 according to provision
matrix based on historical credit loss experience
adjusted by forward-looking estimates without
undue cost or effort. the loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group assessed 12m ECL for trade receivables
from rental income. No provision has been made
for trade receivables from rental income at 31
December 2020 and 2019 according to the
individual assessments based on historical credit loss
experience adjusted by forward-looking estimates
without undue cost or effort.

For the purposes of credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information of the other
receivables, related companies and a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. Except for the credit-impaired balance
of RMB73,000, which has been fully impaired, the
balances of other receivables are not past due at 31
December 2020 and 2019. The related companies
and non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary are
considered by the management to have sound
financial position and do not have any past-due
amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the risk of default by these counterparties
is not significant according to the individual
assessments and the ECL on these balances are
insignificant.
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mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

4. For the financial guarantee contracts provided
by the Group to banks in connection with the
customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of properties, loan facilities
granted to related companies and third parties, the
Group measured the loss allowance on financial
guarantee contracts by reference to the historical
default rate of the customers, the loss on default
based on the current property value and the pre-
sale deposits already received and the forward
looking information. The directors of the Company
considered that the loss allowances on financial
guarantee contracts at 31 December 2020 and 2019
were insignificant to the Group.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the directors of the Company, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by:

o continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows;

o maintaining adequate level of liquid assets
mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents
and held for trading equities securities;

o receiving pre-sale deposits for sale of
properties from customers; and

o applying long-term finance including
convertible bond, promissory note and bank
borrowings

35. £ T B (%)
(b) MEEAKREEEERBE
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e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @I A (#)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIKEBREEEERBEK
policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESERE (&)
The following table details the Group’s contractual TRAVAEBMBEEERITE
maturity for its financial liabilities and derivative THEZEHEIHER  RIETIR
instruments. The table has been drawn up based on BAREEAER T AHAE
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities HUBaEZRMRESREIE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can e TRBEMNERASRE R
be required to pay. The table includes both interest 2o
and principal cash flows.
Liquidity tables MEE & F
Weighted on demand 3 months Total
average o less than to 1-2 2-5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years Syear  cash flows amount
ESE] AHRER
nETHRE SR ZEAE-E 122F 1855 BESE BEME4E FEE
% RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

% ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTT  ARETr  ARETn  ARETR

2020 2020
Trade and other payables  FETEF )
Mz - 1,035,994 - - - - 1,035,994 1,035,994

Amounts due to related  [ERTEIE A FFUE

companies - 673,392 - - - - 673,392 673,392
Amount due to arelated BRI —TEEERAFE

company 12 8,250 24,750 33,000 287,375 - 353,375 275,000
Amount due to a director [Eff—ZEZ 3RS - 99,626 - - - - 99,626 99,626

Bank and other REMEE

borrowings
- fixed rate -Efx 8.41 342,066 3,202,618 2,055,912 3,315,491 934,240 9,850,327 8,429,965
Debt component of kER EETH

convertible bond 9.55 4,210 - 4210 429,401 - 437,821 333,112
Promissory note AAEE 9.55 15,155 - 2,133 558,222 - 596,110 460,809
Financial quarantee BBEREY

contracts (note 40) (Hti40) - 6,537,692 - - - - 6,537,692 -
Lease liabilities HEERE 6.14 493 301 86 - - 880 860

8,716,878 3,221,669 2,115,941 4,590,489 934240 19585217 11,308,758

Derivative - net settlement 74 T E—F5H£E
Derivative component of %k E% 7
convertible bond TETEHS 230,798 - - - - 230,798 230,798
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mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

35. £ T B (%)
(b) MEEAKREEEERBE

policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEBELEE (&)
Liquidity tables (continued) MEE SR (B)
Weighted on demand 3 months Total
average or less than to 1-2 2-5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years 5 year cash flows amount
eSS B RER
mERENE  SR3ER ZEAR-£ 122F 2555 BESE  RENENE BEE
% RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
% ARBFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
2019 2019
Trade and other payables EfEH R
EfpEMAFE - 1,267,295 - - - - 1,267,295 1,267,295
Amounts due to related  EREELFE
companies - 642,927 - - - - 642,927 642,927
Amount due to a director B —%EZHR - 99,626 - - - - 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings 3 /7 & L f5 &
- fixed rate -EEf® 7.94 236,576 708,177 1,043,778 2,290,100 1,092,616 5,371,247 4,229,928
Debt component of ARES 2 EREHS
convertible bond 9.55 4475 - 4475 460,891 - 469,841 329712
Promissory note EHER 9.55 16,109 - 16,109 617,505 - 649,723 446,249
Financial quarantee BREREN
contracts (note 40) (K#40) - 4,806,327 - - - - 4,806,327 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 565 649 1,957 564 57 - 3227 3,107
7,073,984 710,134 1,064,926 3,368,553 1,092,616 13,310,213 7,012,104
Derivative - net settlement §74 T E—FH&E
Derivative component of - AR E% 7
convertible bond TEIESS 293,981 - - - - 293,981 293,981

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount
is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

A EHIIBMEERE D 22
BHEERBFHIREEHE SR
R AEE Al RE AR EIERS
BRBELHEEZRS SR &
RB|ERRZ G AEERR
RIBEL A HERI IR AT 82
MEBUE - AT - % A AT BEE X2
SETRIBERIELBER AR
MM - A RAR] BE IR B XX
DY TT P G R 2 T 5 U
FARXEEBRZALLER
[ed o
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e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-—FL_FTF+_-_HA=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @I A (#)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial () BIBIAEQAFEFE

instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and FEERBELEMEERZNF
financial liabilities that are measured at fair BifBZHBEEERMKEERE
value on a recurring basis ZR¥FE

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial REREAR  NEB 2G5 TH
liabilities remeasured at fair value at the end of BEERMWBEERAFEEN
each reporting period. The following table gives FFEe TR ER HAZEY
information about how the fair values of these BEEZAFEEEAN (5
financial assets are determined (in particular the TFTABERERBAEE)

valuation technique and inputs used).

Fair value at
LYE Fair value  Valuation technique
2020 2019 hierarchy ~ and inputs used
AYE FREERE
Financial assets BHEE ZEZEE ZE-)f £ RBABE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AERETR  ARETL
Financial assets at FVTPL - 24,889 Level 1 Quoted bid price (unadjusted)
EATEH ARG HBEAE =1 inactive markets for identical
assets.
BHEERERMANAE
(RERE) -
Derivative component of 230,798 293,981 Level 3 Binomial model- Fair value is
convertible bond F=%  estimated based on time-to-
TRREFZTETASH maturity, stock price, conversion

price, risk-free rate, discount
rate, expected volatility and
expected dividend.
ZBARE-ATERIEA
RE BAE ERRNE 75
X BRRERESRS B

There were no transfers among different levels FAR- BRI EmER -
during the year.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

35. £ T B (%)
() MBIAATHEHE (&)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements E=RAFTEFTEZHE
Derivative
component
PTEE 2
RMB’000
ARMTFIT
Initial fair value on the date of issuance RBETHEHZ9ZFR EFTE 272,331
Unrealised change in fair value recognised in Rz HER 2 R #IH A L (E#
profit or loss 9,334
Exchange adjustments BEE 55, 8 #& 12,316
As at 31 December 2019 AT — jli‘i'_ﬂ*"f— = 293,981
Unrealised change in fair value recognised in Ta SR REIRNFEED
profit or loss (48,339)
Exchange adjustments PE X 7 & (14,844)
As at 31 December 2020 R-_E_TF+_A=+—H 230,798
The fair values of financial assets and financial REETKEEMPBKEEZR
liabilities of the Group are determined as follows: FELATETE:
o the fair value of financial assets and financial o REBHEKAEE 2 EE
liabilities carried at amortised costs is ELVBEBEZATETD

determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis, which the carrying amount
is approximate to its fair value; and

the fair value of financial guarantee
contracts at initial recognition is determined
to be insignificant, using option pricing
models where the main assumptions are
the probability of default by the specified
counterparty extrapolated from market-based
credit information and the amount of loss
given default.

B =R ARAF

BERBRERENNRIE
AREERAEE HE
HEEEAFERE: &

RO ERFTIBERE
N2 AFEITREKR T
FHRHREETEEAEE
EFFEBRAZRMISE
Eﬁﬂﬁ%%iﬁ?ﬁk
e RIERFIBAR
TZ%E@%O
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mEMBRRWE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated

36. MEEBAELENREHK
TREJAEMAREFTHELNE
B OEReRFRSEY NARE
BELDAEERARBZ GRS
RERTBHRSRERBAAM A
TR REBPARETHRLE

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing ZBfE-
activities.
Amounts
Amounts dueto Debt
dueto Amount  non-controlling  component Bank and
Interest Lease related dueto shareholders of convertible ~ Promissory other Bonds
payable liabilities ~ companies adirector  of subsidiaries bond note hborrowings payable Total
Y- 2HE
EN-EEE  RE-2 QFEER TERES #R
EfR HERE  MERE EERE BRERE BEES ANIEE EERE  BAEE a5t
RVB000 RUB000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RUB 000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB000
NRETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETr  ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr ABETr ARETx
(Note 426) Note 42a) (Note 26)
(lit426) (H420) (Hitze)
At January 2019 R-F-NE-R-8 - 89 1400448 386 20830 - - 4067497 9404 6222376
Financing cash flows HERER (404,246) (2,009) 443,075 (286,200) (239,784) - - 162,431 (10,077) (336,810)
Buchange adjustments  EEE - (19 - - - 13,201 18472 - 3 31,689
New leases entered BiUCHHE _ 0y B _ B B B _ B 01y
Finance costs EEs 404,246 179 - - - 25,938 36,583 - 638 467,584
Farvalue adjustments ~~ AEEZE - - . - SIS 405740 - - 6%l
Non-cash transactions #5255
(note 42(a)ii)) (W42e)i) 18,587 - (1,28059%) - (38,589) (4,041) (14,546) - - (1,319,184)
A3 December 2019 H=F-Af
+tZA=1-H 18,587 3107 042,927 99,626 - 32972 6249 4229928 - 576339%
Finandng ash flows~~~ BER2 29 Q489 28154° - N - - LB - 4155%
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENEL - B _ - _ B, B, (83,650) _ (43,650)
Bichange adjustments X EE - 31 - - - 20,501) (27,808) - - (48340)
New leases entered BiuCHHE - 1 . - n . . - B 1)
Finance costs BERK 162,559 111 B9 - - 30641 12368 - Tt
At31December 2020 R-E-EF
+2f=1-8 38,201 860 948,392 99,626 72,802 333112 460,809 8,429,965 - 10,383,767

* Included payments of RMB181,789,000 for acquisitions of
All Excel and Power Success Development Incorporated,
which are entities under common control, occurred during
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
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mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

The Group's borrowings are secured by the following
assets:

37. EEEM
REBEEUTIEEERR:

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETFT

Property, plant and equipment (note 15)¥1% - &= &% (K1aF15) 813 866

Right-of-use assets (note 16) EREEE (KFitie6) 859,503 1,003,349

Investment properties (note 17) wEWE (KHat17) 7,848,300 5,738,437

Properties under development (note 18) 2 & Fh ¥ % (fff:+18) 230,568 279,860

Inventories of properties (note 20) MEFE (KiF20) 9,132,919 4,840,692

Trade receivables (note 21) FEMBRIR (Hfaz21) 15,784 14,849

Restricted bank deposits (note 23) ZBRHIRITFR (M 5E23) 569 10,558
Deposits for land use rights for FTEERDPYMEZ L AE

properties under development for sale % & 498,500 -

18,586,956 11,888,611

Net assets of subsidiaries (note) MERARIFEEE (M) 2,742,027 2,233,522

Note: As at 31 December 2020, the entire equity interests Biat -
of Xi'an Sandi Real Estate Development Co. Ltd (“Xian
Sandi”) and Fujian Sinco Industrial Co., Ltd (“Fujian
Sinco”), Xian Diyue Real Estate Development Co. Ltd,
Yongtai Gaojia Real Estate Development Co. Ltd, Baoji
Xingyaocheng and the 66.5% ordinary shares of Longyan
Sandi Real Estate Development Co. Ltd, indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, were pledged to
secure the bank and other borrowings granted to the

Group.

As at 31 December 2019, Xian Sandi and Fujian Sinco,
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, were
pledged to secure the other borrowings granted to the
Group.

RZZBEZZFE+_A=+—1"
BAZ=ZEFERZEFR QG
([Ax=w] ) LREENEX
BRAR ([fBELRE]) - Xian
Diyue Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd kEZmEFHERER
RAF BHRERMLES=H
EERZEARAR (KARARZ
BEE2EMBERAF)2665%%
BRETHEMR (ERETAEE
RIT R H A B AR

RZBE-AF+=ZA=+—8"
AARHEZENBARIAL =
MM RELERE TIRE EAK
FAEBEMEEZER-

HE=aZERARAE
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-—FL_FTF+_-_HA=+—HILFE

38. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 38. EAX KR HAthARE
At the end of respective period, the Group has capital REBR RNEB 2 EREEWNT

commitments as follows:

2020 2019
RMB 000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Capital expenditure contracted for but B RIA T &8 2 2 5] &1 X &
not provided in consolidated financial R44& Bt Rz B 2 B ARH

statements in respect of: ¥
— Construction commitments for —BRPYEREEAE

properties under development 802,750 479,462
— Construction commitments for — BV ERERE

investment properties 267,907 405,189

Other commitments contracted for but & F'EJ U T&EZBEEAEBI X
not provided in consolidated financial 4R & BF 15 3R 3R B 45 2 H (&

statements in respect of: g
— Construction commitments for — e E R ERIE

properties for sales 3,888,355 3,043,531
— Consideration commitments for — BB £ b A 2 B AR

acquisition of land use rights 704,376 232,000

5,663,388 4,160,182
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—E_-FF+_-_HA=+—HIFZF

39. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 9. REMHERH
The Group as lessor AEBEAHBEA
All of the properties held by the Group for rental REEFRBRIEEEMERRR—Z
purposes have committed lessees for the next one to “TRF(ZE-NF: —E=+F)
twenty-five years (2019: one to twenty years) respectively. NI B A A M -
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as MEZ RBBRERWHEERNRLOT
follows:
2020 2019
RMB 000 RMB’000

AR FRT ARETT

With one year —FR 340,704 93,254
In the second year g _F 290,375 48,286
In the third year E =4 271,490 43,962
In the fourth year FEPNE 268,083 43,316
In the fifth year FERF 263,917 40,265
After five years hFi& 970,873 139,714

2,405,442 408,797
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40. fI B ER
REREHIR  AE B 008 75 1

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
At the end of respective reporting period, the Group had

financial guarantee as follows: R
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREF T
Guarantees given in favour of banks gt LA TS I8 ARTIEH B9 (R -
for:
Mortgage facilities granted to BRI AREEYMERFNIZERE
customers of the Group’s properties  (fffita)
(note a) 5,433,642 3,566,879
Guarantees given to banks in MR THEERRIZCEFRBME MY
connection with loan facilities BRTIRIT (MEED)
granted to related companies (note b) 981,200 1,157,000
Guarantees given to banks in METE=ZF2ERRERMEE
connection with loan facilities RTRIT (M atc)
granted to third parties (note c) 122,850 82,448
6,537,692 4,806,327

Notes:

(@) The Group had provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks in connection
with the mortgage loans entered into by customers of
the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, if a customer defaults on the payment of its
mortgage during the term of guarantee, the bank holding
the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued interest
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to
retain the customer’s sales deposit and sell the property to
recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. The
guarantee period commences from the dates of grant of
the relevant mortgage loans and end after the customer
obtained the individual property ownership certificate.
The fair value of the financial guarantee contracts is
insignificant at the initial recognition. In the opinion of
the directors, no provision for the guarantee contracts is
recognised at the end of the reporting period as the value
of assets pledged in higher than the guaranteed amount.

244 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

GEE

AEBERETRORHZRERE
REER ZEREBBESRHEA
SEMETPMAILZIRBER -
BREBEERZER WEXEFEPRE
REFBRZBFIA HHEZIBZ
RITAIBRAKEEETE R 2 KE
ERARETAESNE -EZXFE
BAT AEENBEERFPIHER
S RHEWE AU EAREH @R
1T 2 Z AE ] 3038 - PR HAIR fh 4R
MERBERRH SR TRE
FEREGERNEEERER HBKHE
RE K 2 RFER VIR FERE L
EXR-BEAR HARNEMREEZE
ERREREH SR REHRIL
BEAERANZEE-




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the initial
fair value of the financial guarantees given to banks in
connection with loan facilities granted to the related
companies which are controlled by Mr. Guo Jiadi or
Ms. Shum Xi Xia, the sister-in-law of Mr. Guo Jiadi, was
insignificant as the fair value of assets pledged is higher
than the financial guarantees at the date of inception
and the end of each reporting period. Also, no provision
for the guarantees contracts at the end of the reporting
period is recognised as the fair value of assets pledged in
higher than the financial guarantee.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the initial
fair value of the financial guarantees given to banks in
connection with loan facilities granted to third parties was
insignificant as the fair value of assets pledged is higher
than the financial guarantees at the date of inception
and the end of each reporting period. Also, no provision
for the guarantees contracts at the end of the reporting
period is recognised as the fair value of assets pledged in
higher than the financial guarantee.

41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
certain subsidiaries of the Company had arranged
several netting arrangements with certain related
companies and independent third parties. Under the
arrangements, the Company’s subsidiaries, related
companies and independent third parties agreed to
net-off the amounts due from related companies,
amounts due to related companies, amounts
due from independent third parties and amounts
due to independent third parties amounted
to RMB617,662,000, RMB1,280,596,000,
RMB1,014,439,000 and RMB351,505,000,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Fuzhou
Gaojia, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Nanping Huiteng to acquire
additional non-controlling interests of Wuyishan
Gaojia. Pursuant to the agreement, the amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder of RMB38,588,000
was settled by equity transaction, as set out in note
27(ii).

40. BT TR (&)
et (48)

(b)

RABEERA RBETHEHEAR
(B0 S A s EB pn e e AR BB 2
IR B A 1)) BB E M
AR TTHR (i B TG R AR 2 W16 A F
BEEXTER ARAEBWEEZR
FESRFAHARRSHRERRZ
MBER- AREREEZRAFE
SR EER @R HRERRLE
HRERAN ZBE-

ARREZRR URTE=ZTE
HEBEMARTREZTBEERZ
VAR FELITBER BAEK
REEZATFESRFABARRS
BERRZHBER ARERE
EZAFESRBBER WRH
THRTERBERAOZBMHE-

M. TEFBEERS

(a)

REE-_T—NF+-_A=1+—
BIEFE ARQAETHEBR
RIEAETHEERARNBYE =
PR ETFRELEELREE R
BRETH ARBIME AR
FENRINBYE=TRELE
BEWEEERRRIE  ENE
BEBRARRE - EBRBYIE=ZF
FENEMNBIE=HRED
Bl A ARME617,662,0007T
A FR#1,280,596,0007T * A K
#1,014,439,0007T R A R
351,505,0007T ©

REEZZE-NF+_A=1—
HBIFFEE ARaEE2EWE
NAEfEMNEEERE FIBEE] L
EEma UWKEBERRLSE
B RE SN FE 1 IR M 1 o IR B X
MR ERERIBARK
38,588,0007T J5 40 B 55 27(ii)FT
BUBRARZEE -

HE=aZERARAE
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-F -_FH#F+ _H=+—HILFZE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 2. EREALZRS
BALANCES
(@) The Group had the following balances with related (a) REMEHR AEBEHEBUT
parties at the end of each reporting period: R A
Maximum amount during
the year ended
BEREBEZRANA
2020 2019 2020 2019
2 I Syik:3 I i 1}
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR ANREFT AEBFR NEBFT
Amounts due from related companies EREERD
(notes (i}, (i) and (i) (W) (//)&(//I)) 547,106 491,784 832,699 1,083,582
Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder EUIEIR I B2 AR R
of subsidiary (notes () and (i) (WitiR() 96,594 20,595 96,594 20,595
643,700 512,379 929,293 1,104,177
Amounts due to related companies EBELFFE
(notes (i, (i) and (ii) (Wiat0)- (i Kfii)) 948,392 642,927 N/A FE R NIA MR
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of S KB A Ak RKERAE
subsidiaries (notes (i) and (iv) RV GED) 72,802 - N/A RER NA TiE B
Amount due to a director (note (7) i —RESHE (M) 99,626 99,626 N/A R R NIA iR
1,120,820 742,553 N/A &R NIA T i8R
Notes: Hfat -
(i) Except for the amount due to a related company () BEN—HBEEQFREAR

of RMB275,000,000 (2019: Nil) which is non-trade #:275,000,0007T (_ — A

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

related, unsecured, charged at 12% per annum and
repayable after one year, all amounts are non-trade
related, interest free and repayable on demand.
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note
35.

Mr. Guo Jiadi is a director and beneficial owner of
these companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain
PRC subsidiaries had arranged multi-party netting
agreements with related companies, which Mr. Guo
Jiadi is beneficially interested in and has legally
enforceable right to offset the balances among
the related parties in an aggregate amount of
RMB1,280,596,000.

These entities have significant influence over several
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group.
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. EBEALTZRS (&)
BALANCES (continued)
(b) The Group entered into the following transactions (b) PFRAREEEEREESG A
with its related parties during the year: TR 5 :
Name of related parties Nature of transaction 2020 2019
BAE 5 & A RHME —EEF —T-h%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMFT ARETT

Fujian Sandi Real Estate Rental income received 240 240
Development Co. Limited (note)

wE-EEMERMERRAR (M) 2WESWA

Interest expense 23,925 -
MEXH

Primary Partner (note) Interest expense 73,009 62,521
Primary Partner (ffa%) B

Note: Mr. Guo Jiadi is a director and controlling Bt Bt A BB AR

shareholder of the related company. EERIERBRE-
(c) The remuneration of directors and other members (€0 MAFE EBZREMTEEIR
of key management during the year was as follows: BB M :

2020 2019

—EZEHF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 7,219 5,062
Post-employment benefits BEIR 12 18 7 620 292
Equity-settled share-based payments #x & EARND BEEZ T 5 170 865
8,009 6,219

(d) Mr. Guo Jiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse of (d) ?BDDL?‘EE&EMHL%I@E%%
Mr. Guo Jiadi, have provided guarantees to banks 2R LTERRITEEREITE

for the bank borrowings. Details of guarantees are T R - ERFBHRMEE26 o

set out in note 26.

(e) As disclosed in note 40, the Group provided (e) WNFMIFH40FTIEEE M- —FF
guarantees to the related companies amounted to + A=+ —HAEERENG
RMB981,200,000 (2019: RMB1,157,000,000) in BEmBEEARRRERESER
connection with loan facilities at 31 December 2020. AFR#981,200,0007T ( ZZE— 11

F: AR #¥1,157,000,0007T) ©
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. A AT TEMEB AT 2F15
OF THE COMPANY

General information of subsidiaries MEAE—RER
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RBERRARREERBEEREZ
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set B AR ZFBE#IINT -
out below.

Place of

incorporation/

registration/ Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power held Principal
Name of subsidiary  operations registered capital by the Company by the Company activities

ERRL/ BRERY/ LSNGliigs: KRR
WEARER RIRBEHE aZREE BERER LA REZLA TEEH

Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# 583 EE 4
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

“RCRE CT-NF CBCRE CR-NF CRCRE CTNE ZBORE R

Fujian Sinco* The PRC RMB290,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property
investment
BREM P AR%290,000,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% MERE
Fujian Jingdu The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
Land Co., Ltd* development
and property
investment
BERBPELERAT PH AR%100,000,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% MEERR
nERE
Xian Sandi* The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
development
ER=i# HE ARH100,000,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% #E%R
Nanping Sandi XiangsongThe PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 60% 60% - - 60% 60% Property
Property Development development
Co., Ltd
("Nanping
Xiangsong")*
BY=RERERAR TE AR 50,000,000 - - 60% 60% - - 60% 60% MEER
([mTEE])
Strike Again Group Ltd  BVI Us$1 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Securities trading
Strike Again Group Ltd - £BERLEE 1ET 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Securities trading
Grand International Hong Kong HK$100 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Development Limited
EXERYERERAR B4 1007 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ®ERKR
Guoshi Investment Group The PRC RMB100,000,00 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Company Limited*
IRREEEERLA T8 A&100,000,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ®ERK
Fuzhou Gaojia* The PRC RMB1,500,900,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
development
and property
investment
BMRE Gl AR 1,500,900,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% WEERR
NERE
Shanghai Gaojia* The PRC RMB55,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
development

LERE P AR #55,000,0007C - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% MEEE
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. A AT TETEMB AT 215

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#)
General information of subsidiaries (continued) MEAR—RER (&)
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power held Principal
Name of subsidiary  operations registered capital by the Company by the Company activities
HBARL/ #regs/ LA i KAAME
WEARER RIRBE®E EfER BREER LA REZLLA TEXH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
EE B ¢4 B

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZZ-%F “T-NF ZB-%F “T-NF -B-%F “T-NF ZB-%F “T-NF

Shanghai Sandi Real  The PRC RMB196,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
Estate Development development
Co. Ltd* and property

investment

LEZHEHERE PHE AR 196,000,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% MEERR
BRAA NERE

Baoji Sandi* The PRC RMB150,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property

development
and property
investment
= P AR#150,000,0007C - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% MEERR
NERE

Jilin First Real Estate  The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property
Development Co. development
Limited ("Jilin First")*

EMEAEHEREERPE AK#100,000,0007 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% NEEE
DA ([EmES)

Yongtai Sandi Real Estate The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
Development Co. Ltd* development

XEZHERERE  PHE AR 100,000,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% MEEE
BRAR

Nanping Sandi Real EstateThe PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property
Development Co. Ltd development
("Nanping Sandi")*

BT ERHEREERTE AR H50,000,0007 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% NERE
RA([EF=#])

Wuyishan Gaojia Real  The PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
Estate Development development
Co. Ltd*

RELBERHERE +E AR 20,000,007 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% #EER
BRAR

Yongtai Gaojia Real EstateThe PRC RMB82,500,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
Development Co. Ltd* development

KEZREHEFRE  PE AR #82,500,0007C - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% #EER
ARAR

Fuzhou Sandi Banbei  The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
Property Co. Ltd* development

BM=ERLESX  PHE AR%100,000,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% MEERE
BRAR

REZEZERERLT 2020
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)

43.

ARBEEMBEAR 2#1E
(#)
ME AR —RER (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power held Principal
Name of subsidiary  operations registered capital by the Company by the Company activities
HBRL/ #regs/ LA i KAAME
WRARER RIRBE®E aREE BEEER LA REZLLA TEXH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# B B B
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CRCRE CToNF CBRIBRE CToNF CBIRE CTNF ZEIRE CRNE
Fuzhou Sandi Bannan  The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property
Property Co. Ltd* development
Bl=zeRsE%: 8 AR100,000,0007T - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% PEER
BRAA
Baoji Ruijiacheng* The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property
development
BEmEN HE AR #50,000,0007 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% MEERE
Nanping Sandi The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property
Yungu Real Estate development
Development Co.
Ltd ("Nanping Sandi
Yungu")*
HT-RZARLERETE AR 50,000,007 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% NEER
BRAA
([EF=REA])
* These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises * ZERRRRPBK L 2INEEE
established in the PRC. The English names of these ﬁé%o%i% R ZEEMR-RZE
companies are for reference only and have not been BoRA&FM-

registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, results in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in the PRC. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as
follows:
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. A AT TETEMB AT 215

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#)
General information of subsidiaries (continued) MEAR—RER (&)
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at A R B A B BT E 7S
the end of the year. I
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
TEEK TEEEMY M AREE
2020 2019

i —T-hF
Property development The PRC 17 8
MEER a3
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEERFEREGZHFZENE
have material non-controlling interests REZFHE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned THRFAJNAEEER ERIFEERERS
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- ZIIEEEWBRAIFIE:

controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting (Loss) profit
Name of and principal rights held by non- allocated to non- Accumulated non-
subsidiary place of business controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
AL FERRRFBA HARER PEEFERERC
WEATAR RRBIEHE KRR LA (F8) &R ZitFERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CECRE CEAF CBIRE TN CROEE CENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBFR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Nanping Xiangsong The PRC 40% 40% (10,279) (9,220) (2,081) 8,198
R HE
Nanping Sandi The PRC 49% 49% 99,663 (3,741) 111,623 11,960
BTz i
Jilin First The PRC 49% 49% 33,460 (2,022) 67,211 33811
EEE h
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests (2,444) - 57,085 -

SRS BN EANBRE

120,400 (14,983) 233,898 53,969
Summarised financial information in respect of each of AEBEABGEAERESHIE R
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling AP ERBES T - XX
interests is set out below. The summarised financial BRI B B R RTRSEE o
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
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e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. A AT TEMEB AT 2F15

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Nanping Xiangsong BYEE
2020 2019
—ECEE —ET—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR  AREFL
Current assets MEEE 1,409,503 1,108,823
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,171 6,718
Current liabilities mEEE (1,101,193) (1,019,058)
Non-current liabilities ERBAG (317,683) (75,987)
Net (liabilities) assets F(AB)BEE (5,202) 20,496
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NGIEZ RN
of the Company (3,121) 12,298
Non-controlling interests FEIE R M A (2,081) 8,198
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mEMBERRHME

For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

43.

AAREENBRARZFHE

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
Nanping Xiangsong (continued) BYEME(#)
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T
Other income EgA 204 303
Expenses B (25,902) (23,353)
Loss for the year REEEE (25,698) (23,050)
Loss attributable to owners KARHEA AELER
of the Company (15,419) (13,830)
Loss attributable to of JEVE % ME 2 FE G O A B 1B
the non-controlling interests (10,279) (9,220)
Loss for the year KEEEE (25,698) (23,050)
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFIT
Dividends paid to B IR ER 2 IR E
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash outflow from KE TR R F5
operating activities (3.460) (312,328)
Net cash outflow from KEFSH 2R R FEE
investing activities (23) (3,202)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from mEEH BES (RE)RA
financing activities A (6,609) 340,859
Net cash (outflow) inflow BRe ORE)RAFHE (10,092) 25,329

HE=aZERARAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. A AT TEMEB AT 2F15

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Nanping Sandi m¥r=a
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Current assets MBEE 1,990,461 1,553,767
Non-current assets ERBEE 427 7,781
Current liabilities mEEE (1,763,087) (1,535,400)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEB - (1,741)
Net assets BEFHE 227,801 24,407
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NGIEZ RN
of the Company 116,178 12,447
Non-controlling interests JEFE IS RE S 111,623 11,960
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. A AT TETEMB AT 215
OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#)

Nanping Sandi (continued) EY=# (&)

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%F ARMTFIT
Revenue W= 1,143,267 -
Cost of properties sales ESIER= VPN (829,676) -
Other income Hib g A 189 -
Other gains and losses Bt kBB - 210
Expenses 3 (110,386) (7,844)
Profit (loss) for the year KEL RN (FEE) 203,394 (7,634)
Profit (loss) attributable to RARHE AEEEN (EE)
owners of the Company 103,731 (3,893)
Profit (loss) attributable to JEVERS HE S FE (R A (E548)
of the non-controlling interests 99,663 (3,7471)
Profit (loss) for the year RER &M (FHE) 203,394 (7,634)
2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Dividends paid to EATIEIE R i i 2 BR B
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from e EBIRe O M) RAFE
operating activities (328,053) 289,917
Net cash outflow from KESZBS s RE AL FHE
investing activities (291) (85)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from BMESEBSIRSMA CGnE ) E5E
financing activities 477,259 (324,240)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BamA CRit) F5E 148,915 (34,408)

HE=aZERARAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

43. RATREENB AR ZFH1E

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Jilin First EMEER
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBF T
Current assets MBEE 335,646 478,167
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,353 5,187
Current liabilities mENEE (201,894) (411,303)
Non-current liabilities EnBaE (814) (3,045)
Net assets EEFE 137,291 69,006
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NGIEZ RN
of the Company 70,020 35,195
Non-controlling interests JEFE IS RE S 67,271 33,811
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

43. KRR EENB AR ZFH1E

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
Jilin First (continued) EMER (&)
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFIT
Revenue Wz 328,056 7,333
Cost of properties sales ESIER= VPN (228,855) (3,761)
Other income H A A 73 1,221
Other gains and losses Bt REE - (87)
Change in fair value upon transfer AYEFEEREINEMHERTZ
from inventories of properties to N EES
investment properties - 2,094
Expenses iha (30,989) (10,925)
Profit (loss) for the year RE T (FE) 68,285 (4,125)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of AT A AE(EER
the Company 34,825 (2,103)
Profit (loss) attributable to of the non- JEIE RS KE 25 FE(G 3% F B 18
controlling interests 33,460 (2,022)
Profit (loss) for the year RED T (FHE) 68,285 (4,125)
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFIT
Dividends paid to EfNIEERERE 2R E
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash outflow from KE TR R F5
operating activities (7.158) (14,895)
Net cash outflow from KEFSH R R FEE
investing activities - (5)
Net cash outflow MEEH R ML FRE (7,158) (14,900)

HE=aZERARAE
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

44, KR T 2 M BRR K #EExR

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR F T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries MEBARZIELMIRE 3,190,822 3,183,619
Property, plant and equipment W BB MR E 286 358
Right-of-use assets EREEE 266 1,835
3,191,374 3,185,812
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments o th i W 5k IE & TR A RE 912 1,116
Bank balances and cash RTEH RS 1,924 580
2,836 1,696
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 303 1,887
Other payables and accruals Hih KB RETER 308,557 287,872
308,860 289,759
Net current liabilities FBaEEE (306,024) (288,063)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZLERABERE 2,885,350 2,897,749
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital (note 27) WA (B at27) 42,881 42,881
Reserves =i 1,817,750 1,791,504
Total equity b 1,860,631 1,834,385
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Lease liabilities HEaE - 162
Debt component of convertible bond AR E S 2 EE LD 333,112 322,972
Derivative component of ARBRESFITETRELS
convertible bond 230,798 293,981
Promissory note o EE 460,809 446,249
1,024,719 1,063,364
2,885,350 2,897,749
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—_F-_FF+-_H=+—HILFZE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44. ATz BR AR #EER

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#&)
Movement in the Company'’s reserves KARREZES
Share-based
Share compensation  Translation Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
NRGBARE
ROEE <HERE  AERE  HERE | RHER @it

RVMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBO0O
ARBTL AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETI

(note |) (note ii)
(Hizti) (Hiztii)

At 1 January 2019 R-E-hE-A-H 534,288 10,707 (35,382) 1,224,806 (140,313) 1,594,106
Loss and other AEEBER

comprehensive expense A 2EH Y

for the year - - - - (103,479) (103,479)
Recognition of equity settled BERMKN AEEZ

share-based payments E - 2,640 - - - 2,640
Exercise of shares options 17 BB i1 1,647 (830) - - - 817
Acquisition of MRS MR —

additional interests A E LR BIME

in a subsidiary from &=

non-controlling interests 64,548 - - - - 64,548
Acquisition of entities under Yi% £ RIZHIE

common control 232,872 - - - - 232,872
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF

+-ZR=t—-1H° 833,355 12,517 (35,382) 1,224,806 (243,792) 1,791,504

Profit and other REERMR

comprehensive income EEElE

for the year - - - - 25,782 25,782
Recognition of equity settled ARG AEE

share-based payments E - 464 - - - 464
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZTF

+-RA=+-H 833,355 12,981 (35,382) 1,224,806 (218,010) 1,817,750
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For year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HILFZ

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves (continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

Share-based compensation reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees, directors and others
providing similar services of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments.

The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus
account of the Company, represents the difference arising
from the share premium reduction which was being
effective and approved by the Bermuda Registrar of
Companies on 11 May 2016. Under the share premium
reduction, entire amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company as at 29 February
2016 in the sum of RMB3,049,440,000 be reduced, with
part of the credit arising therefrom being applied to offset
the accumulated losses of the Company in the sum of
RMB1,824,634,000 in full and the remaining balance of
the credit in the sum of RMB1,224,806,000 being credited
to the other reserve of the Company.

Details of the share premium reduction are set out in the

Company’s circular dated 15 April 2016.

The share premium reduction was approved at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 10 May 2016.
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44, KR T 2 M BRR K #EExR

(#)
Z NN
Wit

()

(ii)

AfEEzEE (&)

SRR 75 2o 1 B 8 4R
AR AR 3R TR A 2 B3
BEFERETFALRIEE EF
BER BRSO E ALY
RITEBR RS BE 22
T

HitfEEBE (AEARE 2 EHRAER
RIERNDEERSEENEZRE
RZE—ARNFRA+—AKERE
RN AR R R EEB - RIBH
AR 8 B - BB AR R B IR ) & (&
ER-_ET—X"E-_A-+hBZ
2 ZP i Bk 58 A R #3,049,440,000
T AMESEZERRERS AR
BEEBEARB 2 REBARE
1,824,634,0007T £ T BRFIA A
R #1,224,806,0007T5F AR R B E
fth &4 o

BRI 00 5 8 2 sF IS HN A AR A
HR-_Z-—XR"EFNAt+RhAZE

BB 2 A2 AR = B — 7%
FHATARTHBRRENAR L
R -
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